
WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA FOR REGULAR MEETING, 

January 3rd, 2024 7:00 p.m. 

Whitewater Township Hall Via ZOOM (if available) and in-person  

5777 Vinton Road, Williamsburg, MI 49690  

Phone 231-267-5141/Fax 231-267-9020 

Zoom: 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/84163003660?pwd=bgDt4r9usDoa7NrjHS2c328mpPopdN.1 

Meeting ID:  841 6300 3660 Passcode:    004891 

1. Mic Check, Call to Order, Pledge Allegiance

2. Roll Call of PC Members

3. Set/Adjust Meeting Agenda

4. Declaration of Conflict of Interest pertinent to agenda items

5. Public Comment – Any person shall be permitted to address a meeting of the PC. Public

comments shall be carried out in accordance with the following rules and procedures:

a. Comments shall be directed to the PC, with questions directed to the Chair.

b. Any person wishing to address the PC shall speak from the lectern (or use the

raise hand feature if Zoom is being utilized) and state his/her name and address.

c. Persons may address the PC on matters that are relevant to Township planning

and zoning issues.

d. No person shall be allowed to speak more than once on the same matter,

excluding the time needed to answer a PC member’s questions.

e. Public comment shall be limited to 3 minutes per person.

6. Public Hearing:  None

7. Approval of Minutes of Previous Meeting December 6, 2023

8. Correspondence:

a. Notice of Elk Rapids Draft Master Plan

9. Reports/Presentations/Announcements/Comments – Read and Review together

a. Zoning Administrator – Hall

b. Chair – Steelman

c. Township Board Representative – Vollmuth

d. ZBA Representative – Wroubel

10. Unfinished Business

a. Master Plan (MP) – ROS and PC

i. Ron’s comment on Chapters 1-4

ii. Chapter 5 discussion

iii. Anything else related to MP project

b. Zoning Project Update

1

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/84163003660?pwd=bgDt4r9usDoa7NrjHS2c328mpPopdN.1


i. Zoning Map Discussion Continued 

ii. Correspondence and Discussion about the timing to invite Laura Rigan 

from Grand Traverse Regional Land Conservancy.   

1. Discussion about other resources/ideas to assist during some of 

our hot topic Zoning concerns as we should begin planning for and 

inviting experts now.   

iii. Supervisor Popp’s comments Discussion (end of packet, pages 70 - 265) 

iv. Anything else related to the Zoning Project 

11. New Business  

a. Meeting Resolution for FY24/25 

b. Bylaws  

c. FY 24/25 Budget 

d. Zoning Administrator Email - Grant: MSHDA Housing Ready Grant Initiative 

12. Next Meeting/s:  PC Regular Meeting 02/07 at 7pm 

13. Public Comment  

14. PC Discussion/Comments  

a. Key Notes to share at next Regular TB Meeting  

b. Action Items for PC Members reviewed  

15. Continuing Education - none 

16.  Adjournment 

 

Whitewater Township will provide necessary reasonable auxiliary aids and services to 

individuals with disabilities who are planning to attend Contact the township supervisor at  

231-267-5141 

2

-



Page 1 of 2 Planning Commission 12/06/2023  DRAFT 

DRAFT 
WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP PLANNING COMMISSION 

MINUTES FOR REGULAR MEETING 

December 6, 2023 

  

Call to Order at 7:00 p.m. 

Roll Call:  DeYoung, Jacobson, Keaton, Slopsema, Wroubel,  Steelman, Vollmuth 

                  Absent:  None  

Also in attendance:   Planner Mielnik, Recording Secretary MacLean, Members of the ROS, Barry Hicks of LIAA 

Two on Zoom at the start of the meeting.    
          

Set / Adjust Agenda:  Set 
 

Declaration of Conflict of Interest:  None 

Public Comment:  

Denise Peltonen 
 

Public Hearing:  None  

 

Approval of Minutes:   

MOTION by Jacobson second by Keaton to approve the Regular Meeting Minutes of  November 1, 2023.          

Roll call vote:  Vollmuth–yes; Jacobson-yes; Wroubel-yes; Steelman-yes; DeYoung-yes; Slopsema-yes, Keaton-yes.   

Motion carried. 
 

Correspondence:  None. 

 

Reports and Presentations:  

Zoning Administrator Report, Hall:  None 

Chair’s Report, Steelman:  None             

Township Board Rep, Vollmuth:  Requests everyone read the Board packet that came out on the 5
th
; shared Alabama Short 

Term Rentals (STR) moratorium, requested everyone research STR, referendum vs ordinance.     

ZBA Representative, Wroubel:  No cases in November.      

Committee Reports:  None 

Additional items:  None 
 

Unfinished Business:   

1. Master Plan / Resident Outreach Subcommittee (ROS)  

a.  Review and discuss MP Open House and Workshop Results, Mielnik and Hicks of LIAA, public input events 

completed.  Workshop on November 7th had 60+ in attendance.  Four groups ranked and prioritized planning 

principals.  Information and comments presented in the summary presented in the packet.  Hicks did a quick run 

through, hitting the highlights.  Discussion ensued, including comments from the ROS members.   

The Master Plan is the broad goal to guide the zoning.   

Support the schools, support the farmer, tick off objectives – what ordinances need to be addressed?  Have to find 

a careful balance.   

Everything from the open house and workshop, including the handouts, are available in the packet and can be 

made available to post on line.  Public input summary.  Analyze the data as needed.  The prioritization of the open 

house items were brought forth to the workshop. 
 

b.  ROS has been very beneficial with the public engagement.  Keep the ROS involved in reading through the MP 

draft chapters as they come through.     

Grow the ROS for future topics on zoning in the spring after the draft MP is complete. 
 

c.  Drone photos provided by Mielnik of some of the area around M72 and Old M72.    
    

d.  Anything else related to MP 

 

2. Zoning Ordinance project update 

a.  Zoning map discussion:  Mielnik and Keaton have been in communication with the county.  Create a 

disclaimer stating that the GT County has created the map.  Will be discussed in the future. 

3



Page 2 of 2 Planning Commission 12/06/2023  DRAFT 

 

b.  Anything related to Zoning Ordinance project  
 

c.  Joint meeting with Township Board scheduled for December 13 

Agenda items, Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO), Master Plan update, Zoning Ordinance project 

update, FY2024/2025 budget discussion. 

Mielnik will do a brief presentation with bullet points at the beginning of the joint meeting. 

The idea is to bring the board up to speed so they are not presented with everything all at once when the PC is 

done with the drafts of the MP and the zoning ordinance update. 

A draft MP will be presented to the board in April.  Explain the community outreach.  Include the LIAA 

summary.  Tentative timeline.  The board will have bits and pieces along the way.  They will have to approve the 

draft for distribution. 

Will continue with the ROS as needed in the future. 
 

MPO discussion to be presented to the board as a positive thing, make a recommendation. 

MOTION by DeYoung, second by Keaton to recommend the township participate in the Metropolitan Planning 

Organization (MPO).   

Roll call vote:  Jacobson-yes; Wroubel-yes; Steelman-yes; DeYoung-yes; Slopsema-yes; Keaton-yes;  

Vollmuth–abstain (so she can vote at the Board level without any question of duplicity) .  Motion carried. 
 

How does the board want the 2024/2025 budget presented to them for their budget? 
 

New Business:  

1. Bylaws  

a.  Review and bring any amendment suggestions to the January meeting 
 

b.  Officer Selections 

MOTION by Steelman second by DeYoung to change the section 2a Officers selection and tenure to the first 

regular meeting in April. 

Roll call vote:  Jacobson-yes; Wroubel-no; Steelman-yes; DeYoung-yes; Slopsema-yes; Keaton-yes;  

Vollmuth–yes.  Motion carried. 
 

c.  Meeting Resolution 

            

Next meetings:  December 13, 2023 Joint Planning Commission / Township Board; January 3, 2024 Regular PC meeting.    

 

Public Comment:    

Gary Buczkowski 

Connie Hymore 
 

Commission Discussion/Comments:   

     Wroubel voted no because he believes Steelman is doing a great job and a change can be addressed later in the year. 

     DeYoung is willing to help while he is gone January, February and March. 

     Key notes to share at next Regular Board Meeting covered during plan for joint meeting. 

     Action items for PC members – Steelman. 
 

Continuing Education:  January 9 is a training opportunity, see the email sent to all.  Wroubel is willing.   
 

Adjournment:  9:53  p.m.   
 

Tabled items:  Article 5 Districts; Article 25, Special Use Permits:  Campgrounds 
 

Respectfully Submitted 

Lois MacLean,  

Recording Secretary  

4



 
Cheryl A. Goss  
From:clerk@whitewatertownship.org 
To:Rachel Steelman,'Randy Mielnik',Robert Hall ZA 
Tue, Dec 19 at 1:03 PM 
Rachel/Randy – 
  
FYI - 
  
Cheryl A. Goss 
Whitewater Township Clerk 
5777 Vinton Road, P.O. Box 159 
Williamsburg, Michigan 49690 
Telephone:  231.267.5141 x24 
Fax:  231.267-9020 
clerk@whitewatertownship.org 
Office Hours:  Mon/Tue/Wed/Thurs 9:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. 
I Pledge Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of America, and to the REPUBLIC for which it 
stands, One Nation, Under God, Indivisible, with Liberty and Justice for All. 
  

•  

Elk Rapids Township Notice 12.15.2023 re Draft Master Plan.pdf 

185.6kB 

 

 

5

mailto:clerk@whitewatertownship.org
https://apis.mail.yahoo.com/ws/v3/mailboxes/@.id==VjN-o1IveupeQLInY982kVfQ94laL9gpN5iQunLaoOnOYZ2YT0k0DUCGHdT6S7HxgqZWOstHGQ2SvOzuBlPC52QM-g/messages/@.id==AEXU6CFLUlcMZYHbDgCQiF8EeJg/content/parts/@.id==2/refresh?appid=YMailNorrinLaunch&ymreqid=0c4bfa0c-7f2b-314b-1c65-21000001db00
https://apis.mail.yahoo.com/ws/v3/mailboxes/@.id==VjN-o1IveupeQLInY982kVfQ94laL9gpN5iQunLaoOnOYZ2YT0k0DUCGHdT6S7HxgqZWOstHGQ2SvOzuBlPC52QM-g/messages/@.id==AEXU6CFLUlcMZYHbDgCQiF8EeJg/content/parts/@.id==2/refresh?appid=YMailNorrinLaunch&ymreqid=0c4bfa0c-7f2b-314b-1c65-21000001db00
https://apis.mail.yahoo.com/ws/v3/mailboxes/@.id==VjN-o1IveupeQLInY982kVfQ94laL9gpN5iQunLaoOnOYZ2YT0k0DUCGHdT6S7HxgqZWOstHGQ2SvOzuBlPC52QM-g/messages/@.id==AEXU6CFLUlcMZYHbDgCQiF8EeJg/content/parts/@.id==2/refresh?appid=YMailNorrinLaunch&ymreqid=0c4bfa0c-7f2b-314b-1c65-21000001db00
https://apis.mail.yahoo.com/ws/v3/mailboxes/@.id==VjN-o1IveupeQLInY982kVfQ94laL9gpN5iQunLaoOnOYZ2YT0k0DUCGHdT6S7HxgqZWOstHGQ2SvOzuBlPC52QM-g/messages/@.id==AEXU6CFLUlcMZYHbDgCQiF8EeJg/content/parts/@.id==2/refresh?appid=YMailNorrinLaunch&ymreqid=0c4bfa0c-7f2b-314b-1c65-21000001db00


6

Township of Elk Rapids 
315 Bridge Street • P.O. Box 365 • Elk Rapids, Michigan 4962 

Telephone 231-264-9333 • Fax 231-264-6676 

December 15, 2023 

Whitewater Township 
Planning Commission 

P.O. Box 159; 5777 Vinton Road 
Williamsburg, Ml 49690 

RE: Draft Master Plan, Elk Rapids Township 

Over the past several months, the Elk Rapids Township Planning Commission have worked to 
update the Master Plan. This past week, the Township Board approved the draft plan for 
distribution for comment, pursuant to the requirements of the Michigan Planning Enabling Act 
(MPEA), as amended (MCL 125.3845) . 

Under Section 45 of the MPEA, your community or agency may submit comments on the 
updated plan to the two Planning Commissions. Please provide your comments not later than 
63 days after your rece ipt of this letter. 

The draft Master Plan can be found at: 

https://www.elkrapids.com/ uploads/ 4/6/ 4/5/ 46455369/2023 _m pd raft_ oct. pdf. 

If you would like a CD containing an electronic version of the draft Master Plan or a "hard copy," 
please let me know. 

Thank you for your interest. 

Sincerely, 

Larry Nix 

Elk Ra & ownship 
Zoning Administrator/Planner 
(616} 264-9333 



7

.. -..., ... _ 

c •~,, . <:,: .. ·!-{_•_;_~,;_;_:.·.~-~-:.-_i_,~'._:__'.· __ ~,:l·_~,'.ll_•~----•l.:~i) ... -•·-·• , .. ~• ;•, ... - _· ... ?,/~.>~:-/; 
·-.. \· ·:!;._ 

-· 

:·,. .... 

•:•• - .. ••··•.:•·· ........ ·.~·· .. ~•: ... ;; .. •.•··•·•.:.:-· .. •··-·•n 

··;:,;~~~~·•i•_:.,;r-:;; tt~•~.('~i?~~:~ ·'.:(;:;·· ~ ~~·.::)· .. ··:~::<~~-
:,. -: ,.._·;-._, :·. /i!-: (j?--~~-:L1··~: ,-: ·~\~.f·~) :~.~.-!~~-

. I 

. . .. ~ 

;,_ I • t .'. -•~:; • 

.,. -- --- ............. ··----~-:-,.~~---
.-. :: ·.. .. . ~ 

,-:·;'::: 

---------~=-------- ---

,._ i:_:- _,,- .... , 

. : ,. _:. i i-1~-

•: .. ·· ·•·· 

.: ~-- t •• 

; ~ -. .• ·~: .. 

:· . .:.·. ·••.:.:....: __________________ _ 

· .. t~ •· • .. •;iv:~:: :·· .. :·i 

': . ,··· ...... , · ... :: . "\ ::: .. , . 



 
Ron Popp  
From:supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com 
To:Rachel Steelman,heidivyourtrustee@gmail.com 
Fri, Dec 15 at 2:44 PM 
Rachel - Sections 1 ~4 of the draft master plan was placed on the 08.08.2023 Whitewater Township 
Board's agenda by Trustee Vollmuth, so my review of the information was inside a board packet not a 
stand-alone document as I had been searching for. 
 
But I found it!  
 
Review of that packet provided a single page with master plan comments and it is attached below. The 
lack of comments is a pretty substantial statement, you know I always have comments!  With that thought 
in mind, I will take this opportunity to say good job! 
 
Have a good weekend  
 
Ron Popp 
Whitewater Township Supervisor 
231.267.5141 Ext. 23 
supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com 

•  

Pages from 2023.08.08_agenda_packet commented.pdf 

 

 

8

mailto:supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com
https://apis.mail.yahoo.com/ws/v3/mailboxes/@.id==VjN-o1IveupeQLInY982kVfQ94laL9gpN5iQunLaoOnOYZ2YT0k0DUCGHdT6S7HxgqZWOstHGQ2SvOzuBlPC52QM-g/messages/@.id==ACheMr4hF1WmZXysngQqaHRk3Rw/content/parts/@.id==2/refresh?appid=YMailNorrinLaunch&ymreqid=0c4bfa0c-7f2b-314b-1c65-21000001db00
https://apis.mail.yahoo.com/ws/v3/mailboxes/@.id==VjN-o1IveupeQLInY982kVfQ94laL9gpN5iQunLaoOnOYZ2YT0k0DUCGHdT6S7HxgqZWOstHGQ2SvOzuBlPC52QM-g/messages/@.id==ACheMr4hF1WmZXysngQqaHRk3Rw/content/parts/@.id==2/refresh?appid=YMailNorrinLaunch&ymreqid=0c4bfa0c-7f2b-314b-1c65-21000001db00


                 Whitewater Township    

Chapter 4 - Important Trends                                                                                                                                                                                     53                                    

work arrangements (work from home 
and an office) are here to stay.   This is 
a significant societal change impacting 
both the workplace and some 
communities.  If some workers no longer 
need to live close to a workplace, they 
can live anywhere they desire.  This is 
especially true for “knowledge workers” 
in industries such as technology, finance, 
media, etc., whose primary needs 
are a computer, phone, and internet 
connection   The term “zoom towns” 
was coined to identify vacation areas 
that grew with an influx of workers.  
While there is only anecdotal evidence 
of this trend in Whitewater Township, it 
is evident nationally, in Michigan, and 
specifically in the Traverse City region 
(see	for	example:		The	Rise	of	Remote	Work	
in Rural America - A Report by The Center 
on Rural Innovation and Rural Innovation 
Strategies, Inc., October 2021).

APA Trend Report 
In 2022 and 2023, the American Planning 
Association (APA) and Lincoln Institute 
of Land Policy began publishing reports 
that identify trends to recognize while 
planning for the future of communities 
and regions. Planners can use the 
identified trends listed as input to inform 
future decision-making.  A selected 
number of trends identified in 2022 and 
2023 include the following:

•	 Support for a growing green 
economy:   The climate change 
provisions in the Inflation 
Reduction Act (IRA), totaling 
$369 billion, constitute the 
single largest investment 
in climate mitigation and 
adaptation in U.S. history.  

The IRA, promises $60 billion 
in incentives for wind and solar 
power generation.

•	 Electric mobility:  Electric 
transportation is increasing 
and will continue to grow.  Five 
states have banned congestion-
engine cars by 2035, and the 
U.S. Department of Energy 
announced a new $5 billion 
program to fund the expansion 
of the electric vehicle charging 
network over the next five years.  

9

Supervisor
Sticky Note
Response possible wording issue.

Supervisor
Highlight



 
Al Keaton  
From:kakeaton@charter.net 
To:'Rachel Steelman' 
Mon, Dec 11 at 4:26 PM 
Rachel, 
  
Attached is a good resource laying out the language and format used in surveying, I 
thought it would be a good handout for each PC member to have, we may ask if the 
board would like a copy as well. If you agree can we have Lois print out a cc for each as a 
resource? 
  
As an example when looking at legal description you find NW of SE of SW sec14 of 
a  TWP and this explains what that is implying. And there many are other examples 
explaining what the lingo actually is conveying. 
  
Thanks 
AL     
Download all attachments as a zip file 

•  

Survey lingo.pdf 

7MB 

 

•  

 

image001.gif 

835B 

 

 

10

https://apis.mail.yahoo.com/ws/v3/mailboxes/@.id==VjN-o1IveupeQLInY982kVfQ94laL9gpN5iQunLaoOnOYZ2YT0k0DUCGHdT6S7HxgqZWOstHGQ2SvOzuBlPC52QM-g/messages/@.id==AJAoXWcQVH14ZXd-bgbGYBiTitU/content/parts/@.id%20in%20%5B'2','1.2'%5D/refresh?appid=YMailNorrin&ymreqid=0c4bfa0c-7f2b-314b-1c7c-b4003401d000
https://apis.mail.yahoo.com/ws/v3/mailboxes/@.id==VjN-o1IveupeQLInY982kVfQ94laL9gpN5iQunLaoOnOYZ2YT0k0DUCGHdT6S7HxgqZWOstHGQ2SvOzuBlPC52QM-g/messages/@.id==AJAoXWcQVH14ZXd-bgbGYBiTitU/content/parts/@.id==2/refresh?appid=YMailNorrin&ymreqid=0c4bfa0c-7f2b-314b-1c7c-b4000601d000
https://apis.mail.yahoo.com/ws/v3/mailboxes/@.id==VjN-o1IveupeQLInY982kVfQ94laL9gpN5iQunLaoOnOYZ2YT0k0DUCGHdT6S7HxgqZWOstHGQ2SvOzuBlPC52QM-g/messages/@.id==AJAoXWcQVH14ZXd-bgbGYBiTitU/content/parts/@.id==2/refresh?appid=YMailNorrin&ymreqid=0c4bfa0c-7f2b-314b-1c7c-b4000601d000
https://apis.mail.yahoo.com/ws/v3/mailboxes/@.id==VjN-o1IveupeQLInY982kVfQ94laL9gpN5iQunLaoOnOYZ2YT0k0DUCGHdT6S7HxgqZWOstHGQ2SvOzuBlPC52QM-g/messages/@.id==AJAoXWcQVH14ZXd-bgbGYBiTitU/content/parts/@.id==2/refresh?appid=YMailNorrin&ymreqid=0c4bfa0c-7f2b-314b-1c7c-b4000601d000
https://apis.mail.yahoo.com/ws/v3/mailboxes/@.id==VjN-o1IveupeQLInY982kVfQ94laL9gpN5iQunLaoOnOYZ2YT0k0DUCGHdT6S7HxgqZWOstHGQ2SvOzuBlPC52QM-g/messages/@.id==AJAoXWcQVH14ZXd-bgbGYBiTitU/content/parts/@.id==2/refresh?appid=YMailNorrin&ymreqid=0c4bfa0c-7f2b-314b-1c7c-b4000601d000
https://apis.mail.yahoo.com/ws/v3/mailboxes/@.id==VjN-o1IveupeQLInY982kVfQ94laL9gpN5iQunLaoOnOYZ2YT0k0DUCGHdT6S7HxgqZWOstHGQ2SvOzuBlPC52QM-g/messages/@.id==AJAoXWcQVH14ZXd-bgbGYBiTitU/content/parts/@.id==1.2/refresh?appid=YMailNorrin&ymreqid=0c4bfa0c-7f2b-314b-1c7c-b4000601d000
https://apis.mail.yahoo.com/ws/v3/mailboxes/@.id==VjN-o1IveupeQLInY982kVfQ94laL9gpN5iQunLaoOnOYZ2YT0k0DUCGHdT6S7HxgqZWOstHGQ2SvOzuBlPC52QM-g/messages/@.id==AJAoXWcQVH14ZXd-bgbGYBiTitU/content/parts/@.id==1.2/refresh?appid=YMailNorrin&ymreqid=0c4bfa0c-7f2b-314b-1c7c-b4000601d000
https://apis.mail.yahoo.com/ws/v3/mailboxes/@.id==VjN-o1IveupeQLInY982kVfQ94laL9gpN5iQunLaoOnOYZ2YT0k0DUCGHdT6S7HxgqZWOstHGQ2SvOzuBlPC52QM-g/messages/@.id==AJAoXWcQVH14ZXd-bgbGYBiTitU/content/parts/@.id==1.2/refresh?appid=YMailNorrin&ymreqid=0c4bfa0c-7f2b-314b-1c7c-b4000601d000
https://apis.mail.yahoo.com/ws/v3/mailboxes/@.id==VjN-o1IveupeQLInY982kVfQ94laL9gpN5iQunLaoOnOYZ2YT0k0DUCGHdT6S7HxgqZWOstHGQ2SvOzuBlPC52QM-g/messages/@.id==AJAoXWcQVH14ZXd-bgbGYBiTitU/content/parts/@.id==1.2/refresh?appid=YMailNorrin&ymreqid=0c4bfa0c-7f2b-314b-1c7c-b4000601d000


11

Reading and Understanding 
Legal Descriptions 

David Lawson 

Washington Underwriter 

Fidelity National Title Group 

Washington Land Title Association - October 2018 



12

This presentation focuses on legal descriptions 
which are not simple Lot/Block or condo unit, but 
require an understanding of how to interpret or 
locate boundaries on a map. 

• Statutory purpose of a legal description: To clearly 
identify property boundaries, sufficiently for a surveyor 
to determine boundary locations on the ground. 

• CAUTION: Writing or amending legal descriptions 
involves more complexity than might be apparent, 
requiring training beyond the scope of this presentation. 
It is strongly recommended that any new legal 
description or revision of an existing legal description be 
double-checked by a second experienced person. 



13

Common Types of Legal Descriptions: 
• Subdivision 

• Recorded plat, short plat, etc. 

• Sectional 
• Federal governmental subdivision of Sections/Townships/Ranges 

• Donation Land Claim 
• Boundaries predate the federal government subdivision into Sections, 

but are reflected in those subsequent federal government surveys 

• Metes and Bounds 
• Boundaries described by bearings and distances 

• Condominium 
• Airspace described in a survey with lateral boundaries and upper/lower 

elevations 

• Un recorded Plat 
• This should really be a metes and bounds description, commonly with 

additional reference to an unrecorded plat 

All legal descriptions are based upon survey information in some 
manner, either original federal government surveys of sections, 
townships and ranges, or a survey of a plat, condo, etc. 



14

Problematic legal descriptions 

• Tax roll descriptions sometimes don't contain enough 
information to fully identify the property. 

• But lack of plat recording data is normally not a critical defect 
if the plat name is complete & unique. 

• Sectional descriptions based on theoretically perfect 
sections will create gaps or overlaps 

• SEl/4 SEl/4 theoretically 1320' x 1320' containing 40 acres. 

• W 660' of SEl/4 SEl/4 does not equal WH of SEl/4 SEl/4 
• W 20 acres of SEl/4 SEl/4 does not equal WH of SEl/4 SEl/4 

• If two descriptions overlap, first split out of common 
ownership has paramount title. 



15

Sample platted property legal description: 
"Lot_, Block_, (Plat Name), according to the plat thereof 
recorded in (Volume/Page, or Book/Page, or Recording Number), 
records of_ County, Washington. (or some variation) 

.• 
7 ... ~ 6 

~ 

1. .... 

•• 

9 

.. 

SOUND BR-E EZE 
S.W ... SECTION 21, TWP.22 N, R4 E, W.M . 

IC INO COUNTY, IIWASHINOJ.ON 
Jlt[DERICI< ... DRAK[ • £NOIHE[R • n:a. 1999 

SCALE I INCH • 110 F E ET 

lJ~JPL i:.TT EO 

4 

{ , ~·11., .• ·. ".'/ .. ,,11 

,~ 1959 

l \ 
·g~ U~JPLATTEO ., " '-

,. 

" 10 II 12 ~ ·., ... 
i: ll .. 

I. 



16

Sample condominium unit legal description: 
"Unit_, Building_, (Condo Name), according to the 
Declaration recorded_, Survey recorded_, records of 
County, Washington. (or some variation) 

Per Condominium Act RCW 64.34.212 "Description of 
units": 

• A description showing the name of the condo, the 
recording data for the declaration, the county/state, and 
the identifying number of the unit is a sufficient legal 
description of that unit and all rights, obligations, and 
interests established as appurtenant to that unit by the 
declaration or bylaws (such as assigned limited common 
elements or the undivided interest in common elements). 

New WUCIOA: RCW 64.90.220 Description of units is 
almost identical to the Condo Act provision. 

Statutes do not require mention of the condo survey, but 
most title companies strongly prefer it be included. 



17

Converting types of measurements 

Old surveys often measured land in "Chains" or 
"Rods" carried by the surveyors. 

• 1 mile = 5,280 feet = 80 chains 
• 1 chain contains 100 links 

• 1 chain = 66 feet = 4 rods 
• 1 link = 0.66 feet 

• 1 rod = 16.5 feet = 25 links 
• 1 acre = 43,560 square feet 

Older legal descriptions may even have used paces, 
but there's no standard conversion. 



18

Federal surveys: measured from the 
Willamette Meridian 

UI 
. I- z 

I- < 
LIi -
~ 0 
<1-...J Ir 
...J UI -~ 



19

Federal lands were surveyed into Townships & 
Sections for homesteading or sale 

• Townships: intended to be 6 miles on each side 

• Sections: intended to be one mile on each side 

BUT IN REALITY, THEY ARE ALL DIFFERENT SIZES 
BASED ON FIELD SURVEYING DISCREPANCIES. 

• Federal surveyors placed monuments to establish 
the corners of sections and quarter sections. 

• Rugged terrain and other factors prevented 
sections from ever being perfect square miles. 

• This is the source of many gaps and overlaps of 
legal descriptions. 



20

Townships contain 36 Sections, each 
approximately 1 mile square 

T24N R5E 
36 31 32 33 34 35 36 31 

1 6 5 4 3 2 I 6 

12 7 8 g IfJ I I 12 7 

-- - . -- - · - ----

13 18 17 16 15 I4 13 18 

T23N T23N ; 23N 
I 

···- · ·-
AAE ~E .. RSE 

24 19 20 21 22 23 24 19 

-
- ,,.., .---··~-. \ 

25 30 29 28 27 I 26 ) 25 30 ' 
\ 

' 

36 31 32 33 34 · ' 35 36 31 

l, 

l G 5 4 3 2 1 . . 6 

T22N RSE , . .i. .... ,. 



21

Sections were surveyed into quarters and 
commonly sold in smaller portions 

0 
~ 
\D 
N 

-
0 
N 
("V) 

,-:i 

660' 

W½ 
NW¼ 
SW¼ 

20 !3-C. 

ill 

2640 1 

NW¼ 
160 ac. 

(1) = 

660' 1320' m -0 N½-NE¼-SW¼ \D 
E½ \D 20 ac. 

NW¼ 
SW¼ S½-NE¼-SW¼ -20 ac. 0 20 ac. 

\D 
\D 

o · NW¼ NE¼ 
(3) \D SE¼ SE¼ 

I\D SW¼ SW¼ 
10 ac·. 10 ac. 

SE¼ ... SE¼ 
SW¼ 0 SE¼ 
SW¼ ~ (5) SW¼ 

10 ac. 10 ac. 
66 0 • 660 1 660' 

1320' 

W½-NE¼ 
80 ac. 

1320' 

(2) 
= 

NW¼-SE¼ 
40 ac . 

SW¼-SE¼ 
40 ac. 

1320• 

1320' 

E½-NE¼ 
80 ac. 

-

1320' 

NE¼-SE¼ 
40 ac. 

SE¼-SE¼ 
40 ac. 

132Ql 

-
0 
~ 

\D 
N 

-0 
N 
('V) 

. .., 

-
0 
N 
('V) 

.-I 



22

Read Sectional descriptions ''backwards'' 
Example: The N 200 feet of the E half of the NE 1/4 of the NE 
1/4 of the SE 1/4 of Section 8, Township 25 N, Range 5 E, ... 

---IJ 
0 I 

t?f ,' 
-'C7f -

@ Sec 8-25-5. 

_0 SE¼ 8-25-5. 

0 NE¼ - SE¼ 8-25-5. 

0 NE\ - NE\ - SE\ 8-25-5. 

@ E½ - NE\ - NE\ - SE\ 8-25-5. 

@ N 200' - E½ - NE¼ - NE¼ - SE\ 8-25-5. 



23

Acreage legal descriptions 
• Because Sections were theoretically a square mile and 

should contain 640 acres, descriptions based on acreage are 
not uncommon. 

• Example: "The North 15 Acres of the NW 1/4 of the SE 1/4 
f S t

. ,, 
o ec ,on ... .. 2640' 1320' lJlU' 

--
0 NW\i W\-NE\i El,-NE¼ 0 .,. ... 160 ac. 80 ac. 80 ac. .,, 
\LI N 
N 

(l) 

~ ~ 
660' 660' _ 1320 1 - ~ ~/,--r,;,.~;1,,,,✓• 1320 1 p.-c., ). 

:; N½-NEl.r-SW\i \'? : 
" w;, E½ "' 20 ac. 

✓.,, ,I I, . ,, ., , -
0 NE\i-SE;, 0 
N NW), NWl.,i N 
M SW¼ SW¼ S\-NEl,.-SW¼ )(,.,, 40 ac. M 
>-! .... 

20 ac. 20ac.~ 20 ac. f'.C-0 
kc 1-.:, 

ill . NWJ., NE>.; 
~ SE¼ SE¼ (3) w SW¼ SWJ..i -10 ac; 10 ac. SW\-SE\, SE¼-SEI, 0 

SE!; SEl>.i 40 ac. 40 ac. "' M 

SW¼ 0 SE¼ 
SWl.t ~ (5 ) SW¼ 

10 ac. 10 ac. 
660' 660' 660 ' 1320 1 1320 ' 



24

Irregularities in sections are dealt with through creation 
of Government Lots. Meander lines are surveyed lines 
approximating the boundaries of navigable water. 

Govt Lot 4 I Govt Lot 3 Govt Lot 2 

I 
37 -094G- I 37.,;7,11c.. 39,"Z~'Ac. . 

ovt Lo~+ SE¼ - NW .. 

:I?, G.c- Ac.. 

Govt Lot 6 

38. t-2 AC, 

- - _ ___, E½ - SW¼ 
Gov t Lot 7 Donation 

Land 

Claim 



25

Plats and similar subdivisions 

• A platted lot legal description incorporates the 
surveyor's lot boundaries by reference to that plat. 

• Like any other survey, plat surveys can include 
errors, especially in older plats. Don't be surprised 
if a new survey shows discrepancies. 

5 • 4 . 

10 . U 

,,. 

IJ N P i_ A T T E I) · 



26

Conventions in describing lot boundaries 
• N, S, E & W, vs. Northerly (NY), SY, EV & WY, vs NEY, 

SEY, NWY & SWY 
Al 

rt'\ lorJy~· w -2.i,~ 

s line 



27

Conventions in describing corners 

SWl!J 



28

Divisions of a larger lot 
• Parcel A: The W 50' of the Lot. (A 50 foot strip closest to the W line) 
• Parcel B: The E 50' of the W 100 'of the Lot. (A 50 foot strip closest to 

the E line of the W 100') 

• Parcel C: The E 50' of the W 150' of the Lot. (A 50 foot strip closest to 
the E line of the W 150') 

• Parcel D: The N 50' of the Lot, EXCEPT the W 150 '. (Describes the N 50 
feet of the entire Lot, then cuts away the westerly 150 feet) 

• Parcel E: All of the Lot, EXCEPT the N 50' thereof, and ALSO EXCEPTING 
the W 150 feet thereof. of the Lot, EXCEPT the W 150 '. (Describes the 
N 50 feet of the entire Lot, then cuts away the westerly 150 feet) 

O' 50" !:SO' N 1-11'/IIE 
~ 

l I t' D 
'U 
~A I B C 

I ' ~ I " I E lU 
6J.1NB 



29

Dangers in interpreting descriptions I 
Where is the Westerly 50 feet of this lot? 

1:3 

so? 

I e 
l---100' 

a. Parcel A - the Westerly 50 
feet (the 50 feet is measured 
at right angles to the westerly 
line). 

Parcel B - all of the lot, 
except the Westerly 50 feet. 

b. Parcel A - the Westerly 50 
feet, measured along the 
North and South lines. (A 
narrower strip than in la.) 

Parcel B - all of the lot 
except the Westerly 50 feet 
measured along the. North and 
South lines. 

c. Parcel A - all of the lot, 
except the East 100 feet 
(the east line of this parcel 
is 100 feet west of the east 
line of the lot - Parcel A 

· may or nray ·not have a 50 foot 
fronta~e on the north line). 

Parcel B - the East 100 feet. 



30

Or the westerly 50 feet of this lot? 

By dimension 

ao West 50 feet is a strip of land 
50 feet wide, measured at .right 
angles to the west line of th~ 
lot. 

b. West 50 feet measured along the 
north line of the lot is a strip 
between parallel lines, the d,i·s
tance between said lines being 
measured on the north line of 
the lot. 

c. West 50 feet front and rear is 
a strip of variable width, having 
a frontage of 50 feet, and a width 
of 50 feet along the opposite or 
rear line of the lot. 



31

Metes & Bounds (Bearings & Distances) 
• Bearing: an angle measured easterly or westerly from 

a line pointing north or a line pointing south. 
• A circle has 360 degrees {360°) 

• Each degree is divided into 60 minutes {60') 
• Each minute is divided into 60 seconds {60") 

• There are 90 degrees between a line pointing N and a 
line pointing E {or between S & W, or S & E, or N & W) 

• All bearings are phrased as the angle that the line is 
veering easterly or westerly from a line pointing either 
Nor S. 

• N 7° E means a line rotated 7 degrees easterly of a line 
pointing N {a line that is just slightly easterly of N). 

• S 89° W means a line rotated 89 degrees westerly of S {a 
line that is slightly southerly of W). 



32

Bearin~g~s:~:------:-:;------7 
(Azumiths N 
in ((1') 
Parentheses) ,

340
~ Due 

\; North 

w 

N208W 

S30~W 
(2luJ 

s 

Compass 
Quadrant 
Bearings 
in Red 



33

Where are North, South East & West? 
• "NORTH" can have different meanings 

• Magnetic North vs. True North vs. along or parallel to a 
N-S Sectional line or a N-S lot line 

• E & W can have different interpretations, too, being at 
right angles to a N-S line, or parallel to a Sectional line. 

• Each line has two bearings associated with it. S 
82°26'13" W follows the line in a SWY direction, starting 
from the E end. But the same line's bearing is N 82°26'13" 
E when starting from the Wend. Which way are you 
going? 



34

Structures of metes & bounds descriptions 

• Preamble: That portion of_ (identify 
section/township/range or portion thereof, or 
Lot/Block) described as follows: 

• Identify the "Point of Beginning" or "True Point of 
Beginning" (TPOB) of the parcel boundaries, which 
often requires starting ("commencing") at some other 
known point, then describing how to get to the TPOB; 

• Followed by metes and bounds which follow the 
perimeter of the property, returning to the TPOB; 

• The word "thence" is commonly used at the start of each 
subsequent segment of the boundary being followed. 

• Subparagraph(s), if needed, excepting portions (roads, 
etc.); AND/OR subparagraphs adding more land. 



35

Exceptions from legal descriptions 

• It is common for a description to except one or more 
portions which lie within roads, m: were previously 
sold to someone else, Q[ are being retained by the 
seller: 

• EXCEPT the E 30 feet for road; 

• ALSO EXCEPT the N 100 feet of the west 60 feet thereof. 

• Beware of the "double negative" effect of excepting a 
portion, then excepting another portion. Is it excepting 
two different portions, or is it excepting only the first 
portion, then adding part of that first portion back into 
the final boundaries? 

• (Pay attention to phrasing and punctuation. Final 
interpretation may depend on historical chain of title.) 



36

Example: Lot 1, followed by: 

• EXCEPT the W 100 feet; ALSO EXCEPT the south 60 feet thereof. 

-w~ 



37

Getting to the True Point of Beginning 
• Beginning at the SE 

corner of the NE¼ of 
Section _; running 
thence ... 

T 
I 5.E/~ e_o,- -

N•~ 
420- .S - ✓<:J 

' I 

• Beginning at the NW 
corner of Lot 10; running 
thence ... 



38

• Beginning at the NE 
corner of Lot 5, said 
corner being at the 
intersection of the 
centerlines of 15th Ave 
and Johnson St.; thence ... 

- - - J 

Lo-I 5 

• Beginning at the 
intersection of the SWY 
margin of State St. and 
the N margin of "A11 St.; 
thence ... 

A :ST. 



39

Understanding "ties" and "more or less" 
A metes & bounds line can include a "tie" forcing the line to 
go to a particular point or in a certain direction. Any stated 
distance is really "more or less" even if not phrased that way: 
• Thence NEly to the SW corner of the land conveyed to 

Smith by deed recorded_; (the angle and distance are 
whatever it takes to reach that corner) 

• Thence S 72° W 400 feet to the shore of Lake _; (this line is lengthened or shortened to reach the shore) 
• Thence N 38° E 726.35 feet to the NE corner of the NE 

quarter of Lot_; (both the angle and distance are 
adjusted to actually reach that corner) 

• Thence along Wolf Creek N 23° W 76 feet to a line which 
bears S 38°36'14" W from the TPOB; (two ties1 one 
following the creek meanderings1 not the bearing1 the 
other creating an ending point that must be where that 
line to the TPOB intersects the creek) 



40

Standard curves are part of the arc of a circle. 
They can be described by: 

• the direction of the curve, left or right, based upon 
whether the curve is veering to the left or right as 
you follow the curve 

• (or concave in a particular direction) 
• the radius length 
• the radial bearing (angle to the center of the curve) 
• and either: 

• the length of the curve as measured along its arc, 
OR 

• a central angle (angle between the radial bearing at 
the beginning of the curve and at the end of the 
curve), OR 

• a long chord bearing and distance. 



41

Curve measurements & relationships 

Length of Curve (L) , 
"' 

End of Curve 

" .' 
~~ Center of Curve 



42

Tangent curves, tangent lines: 
"Tangent curve": a curve whose radius bears 90° from the last line. 
** We should assume a curve is tangent unless stated otherwise! 

The 1st sketch shows the end of a straight line, continuing thence on 
a tangent curve to the left with a radius of 100', central angle of 
46°30' and an arc length of 79'. 

The 2nd sketch shows the boundary continuing on a line tangent to 
the end of the curve. 

~.:r 100' 

L. :r 79' A•46•¥ 

- ...,. __ ___ 



43

Compound, reverse and non-tangent curves 
"Compound curve": a second curve with a different radius. 
"Reverse curve": a second curve bending in the opposite direction. 

• Reverse curve: 

• Compound curve: 

-· 
• Non-tangent curve: 



44

Tangent / 
. ~ / Radius- '\ / 

'\..... Tangent Center-"29 

Center~ 

Point of 
curve 

curve 

Point 
curve 

Center~ 

Non tangent 

-22-

\ 

" 

curve or 
of tangency 



45

Comparing a description to a survey -
check the "Legend" for types of lines 

LEGEND; 
@ STORM SEWER MANHOLE ----PROPERTY LINE 

--BUILDING SElBACK LINE 
__ . . _ _ B.S . .L_ © TELEPHONE t.4ANHOLE 

@ GAS METER --CENTERLINE 

/ / / / ( / / / / / / / / / BUILDING LINE 

-----------5• CONCRETE CURB 

D CATCH BASIN 

C)- TRAFFIC SIGNAL POLE 
-- · · - · · - · ·--EDGE Of ASPHALT ® CROSSWALK POLE 
-•--••--••--•-FENCE AS NOTED 

. pp POWER POLE 
-0,--0--0,--0-FENCEASNOTED 

E-epp 
POWER POLE W/GUY 'MRE 

===========CONCRETE WALL ¢ LIGHT STANDARD 

l<>i::_<:;7.:\:_;·:,:~-::,i-::;'.:·i-~.:·:;:·;·'.:\·~:>,:'"'.:>,:I CONCRETE SURFACE 
I!] PHONE RISER 

~ CABLE TV RISER 
<>o" FIRE HYDRANT 0 ELECTRIC VAULT 'Cf FIRE CONNECTION 

cgJ WATER METER 
t,q WATER/GAS VALVE 

0 POWER TRANSFORMER 

[i] TELEPHONE VAULT 

0 WATER VAULT L/S LANDSCAPED AREA 
® WATER MANHOLE • FOUND AS NOTED 
® SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE T.E. TRASH ENCLOSURE 
oco SANITARY SEWER CLEAN OUT 



46

"filOll!ICAL OAlll•IET'\_ 

~ E~ETT W~~ ~ ~ 
* I l "' 11ccc i 1 1 1 

I I 1 1 I I '1 l \ ~ • . 
~

1 l , \ T w_ 1 
1 1 

1 , S1G11 £=.am ~s ¥ ' ' ~M.. <, -I---+ --1- "-. SCH B 11 ~':t 11\ 
_,.- ' T SCH 11 18 S! "' 

l I \ AF '20ft=JO•-~' ~~ - \\\il • --
• 

~4 ~ - l ~• ~ - ·-- , -. I~-- '4-. 
,s,11/IL.l 

..... •ATE~ 

• 
IRICAL t IET 

:CTRICA!. 
JLT ~ 

FENCE J - )(0 
!'l . .f 

- ~9.7' 

CON<:lltlt 

>< 

Ill liD 

Lx- x 
'I/ATER 
VMJLT 

~ 
I 

~, __ - * \ ; \ GRASS/IREtS I ~ ---1 ,. I __ ~:~ ---"--· i llt-:::1~ .. J --- s 
-~.-- 'flV I --. ~c: 

_ _ Vf'I#' MO!tlll EMOSIMENMCH 8 IJ C 

Pl. 

I 
I 

/ 
I 

i' ,. I ~, 
!t 
II 
I 
I 
I 
I 

I w~ 
I-~ 

=-~ ~~1 .... , \\\ 

I ..., I --- l:r \t~ --- I I -- -~ 
I I --- * \ ~ •H--- ·1 -___ \ 

----I; I ---- \ 
\,. 

~ ! llil 
ii~ 

t~ 
~ ~ 
Cl) 'j; 

0::: I!! w~ 
I- ~ z 

~ I - -- \ ---=-J 'i --
--- 11 I =-_ -- \ ,-=;-i ti I 

1
1 

'-:: I ~~ ~----_ 7 
\. " --- I,, /Jr 
""" ~~ I I 

Id 

,o.• 

PlJ.NTER !§ 

FOUND 1/ 2" fll!i',SS CA 0

(0f(C,I, LS 20719) 

·FENCE IS O.G' WEST 
Of PROP{RlY UIIE 

FOUNll 5/a' 



Thomas McElwee  
From:tlmce@live.com 
To:Rachel Steelman 
Mon, Dec 11 at 10:21 AM 
I talked with Laura Rigan at GTRLC. Her email is lrigan@gtrlc.org, phone 231-929-7911. She sounds like 
she would be a good resource and is willing to have further discussions and be put on the agenda at a PC 
meeting. I stuck my neck out and mentioned that PC meetings are early in the month but that no zoning 
changes would be made until after the Master Plan is accepted after April. 
She states that it is "tricky" to do proper zoning with agricultural land and mentioned "other tools" 
including Zoning Districts,  Farmland Preservation and "other resources available". She is aware of the 
pressure that may be felt from the participants at the horse show. 
Apparently in 2004 there was a Farmland Preservation Millage that passed in Acme Township but was 
not passed in WWT. It was a 10-year millage in Acme that was renewed in 2014. She is "on contract" 
with Acme to administer that program and it has preserved about 1000 acres. She has doubts that it will 
be renewed in 2024. Peninsula Township has a similar program. Acme and Peninsula have 5-acre 
minimum lot size on Agricultural Land. 
I will CC you on the follow up email to her. 
 
Tom 
 

 
From: Thomas McElwee <tlmce@live.com> 
Sent: Monday, December 11, 2023 9:46 AM 
To: Rachel Steelman <rsteelmanpc@yahoo.com> 
Subject: Re: ROS 
  
I will contact her and let you know what I discover. 

 
From: Rachel Steelman <rsteelmanpc@yahoo.com> 
Sent: Sunday, December 10, 2023 11:42 AM 
To: Thomas McElwee <tlmce@live.com> 
Subject: Re: ROS 
  
Wow that is interesting and sounds like a great program! If you want to reach out 
directly to start a conversation, ask if she can help us understand the pros and cons of 
lot sizes, and see if she’d be interested in attending a meeting to share more I’d def put 
her on an agenda. Or if you think I should reach out, I can and will.  
 
Thank you for sharing!  
 
 
Rachel’s iPhone  
 
On Dec 10, 2023, at 9:03 AM, Thomas McElwee <tlmce@live.com> wrote: 
 
 
Good morning Rachel,  

47



I saw this article in yesterday's Record-Eagle (though I don't usually read the farming page!). I wonder if 
Laura Rigan would have an opinion on the impact of 1 acre vs. 5 acre agriculture zone minimum lot size? 
How do you feel we would best interact with her or the Land Transfer Navigator program? 
Tom McElwee 
 
 
 

 

48

G 
46 
.02 
44 

• 61 
.54 
!.09 
!.94 
·.13 
•.58 
f.17 
l .78 
1.13 
) ,84 
t .31 
·1.11 
+. .07 
+.30 
3 .18 
+.04 
+.55 
(1.74 
-.46 
+.61 
•1.26 
· .13 

-3.28 
+.07 
-.01 

-1.78 
+.15 
+.19 
-1.35 
+.20 

·.17 
-.26 

+.2 1 
1.22 
1.39 
· .07 
. 05 

144 
•.75 
.4-0 

q 

The aging forming population indicates an impending wave of land transfer. 

Land transfer prograrn protects farillS 
BY LAURA RIGAN 

Farmers, ranchers and agricul 
tural managers are in the occupa
tion with by far the highest median 
age, at 56.8 years. This is more than 
two years older 
than any other 
job. Almost a third 
of all agricultural 
producers are 6S 
or older and own 
40%, or 370mlllion 
acres, of the coun
try's agricultural 
land. The aging 
farming population 
indicates the im-

Rlgan 

pending wave of land transfer. How 
and to whom they transfer their 
land will have an enormous impact 
on the next generation of farmers 
and ranchers and the opportunities 
available to them. Regional food 
systems, local economies and cli 
mate change solutions all depend 
on a new generation's ability to 
access and steward the land well. 

Most of the farms that make up 
northern Michigan's landscape are 
family farms. They are loved, cared 
for and central to the identity of 
the communities they are part of. 
They can also contain multiple 
conservation values, including sce
nic views, water quality protection 
and wildlife habitat. But much of 
this land has and could continue to 
be lost to agricultural production, 
unless we can find a way to get it 
into the hands of the next genera
tion of fa rmers. 

For this reason, the Grand Tra
verse Regional Land conservancy 
(GTRLC) has placed an emphasis on 
preserving our local farmland. As a 
land trust, we are uniquely posi
tioned to help facilitate successful 
land transfer . 

GTRLC has protected thousa~ds 
of acres of farmland in our region 
and is actively working to protect 
more. Land that has been perma
nently protected with an agricu l
tural conservation easement is 
typically more affordable than un
protected land, ma ki ng it especially 
appealing to beginning farmers and 
ranchers. 

At the same time, fund s paid to 
landowners to protect the land 
are often used to make importan t 
investments for the farm business, 
including aiding in retirement for 
senior generations. GTRLC is re
sponsible for stewarding these con
servation easements in perpetuity, 
which typically leads to long-term 
relationships with landowners. 
These relationships could play an 
important role when it comes time 
to transfer these already protected 
lands and help new farmers access 
them. 

To expand on this work,Gl'RLC 
appl ied to and was recently ac
cepted into a newly launched 

. ral land conservation 
of a_~1cultu eir staff to support 
entities and th th t work for both 
f m transfers a . ar ' f g generations. 
entering and ~xi mgrarn is for the 

A goal of this pro . 'fy 
·gator organization to idenll 

naVJ . 1 tworl<s to 
and develop reg1ona ne d 
host landowner worl<shops ~n e 

rovide direct technical ass1~tanc 
P ort farmland success10n 
to supp 
planning. . b 

Land access will continue to e a 
central barrier to the succe s_s of the 
next generation of farmers m the 
United States, and one that cannot 
be breached by farmers alone. 

What is needed are tools and sup
port networks to assist in succes
sion of and access to land. Through 
the Land Transfer Navigator pro-
gram, GTRLC is becoming equipped 
to assist the landowners of the 80 
existing agr icultura l conservation 
easements, as well as any farms 
that will be protected in the future. 

By providing coaching and 
technical assistance to landown-
ers considering transfer options 
or beginning the transfer process, 
Navigators can help mitigate agri 
cultural land loss and keep agricul 
tural land in agriculture. 

The Land Transfer Program 

F 
an 
M01 
fro 
leg 
Mi 
slid 

A 

is 
a 
p 

p 

Land Transfer Navigator prog,:am, 
created by American Fannllnd 
Trust with support from die OSDA 

will begin in early 2024. lfyou're 
interested in learning more about 
the program or GTRLC's Farmland 
Protection Program, please contact 
231-929-79 11 or lrigan@gtrlc.org . 

Laura Rigan is Farmland Pro
gram manager for the Grand 
Traverse Regional Land Conser
vancy. 

Natural Resource Co 
Service. • four-year )ll'GllaDl 
provides funding and 
evate the capacity and 

l\.l \ T l· 

too littl rtoo1n 



 

Resolution #PC24-01 

Resolution for Whitewater Township Planning Commission 

Regular Meeting Schedule for 2024/2025 

Whitewater Township 

Grand Traverse County, Michigan 

Be It Resolved that the Whitewater Township Planning Commission will meet in regular sessions for the 2024/2025 fiscal year on the 

following dates at 7 p.m., unless otherwise noted, at the Whitewater Township Hall, 5777 Vinton Rd., Williamsburg, Michigan. 

         Wednesday, April 3, 2024 

                                                           Wednesday, May 1, 2024 

    Wednesday, June 5, 2024 

    Wednesday, July 3, 2024     

                                                             Wednesday, August 7, 2024 

    Wednesday, September 4, 2024 

        Wednesday, October 2, 2024 

    Wednesday, November 6, 2024 

    Wednesday, December 4, 2024 

    Wednesday, January 8, 2025 (2
nd

 Tuesday due to January 1
st

 holiday) 

    Wednesday, February 5, 2025 

    Wednesday, March 5, 2025 

A motion to adopt the foregoing Resolution was made by ______________ and seconded by _________________. 

Upon roll call vote, the following voted: 

 DeYoung - 

 Jacobson -    

 Keaton -  

 Slopsema -  

 Steelman -   

 Wroubel -   

 Board Rep. Vollmuth -   

Resolution declared adopted. 

I, ___________________________, Secretary of the Whitewater Township Planning Commission, Grand Traverse County, Michigan, 

do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of certain proceedings taken by the Whitewater Township Planning 

Commission of said municipality at a meeting held on _____________________________, relative to the adoption of  

Resolution #PC24-01. 

         __________________________________ 

          

49



Bylaws discussion: 
 

1. Updates and/or changes 
a. Selec�on and Tenure (2.A) 
b. Order of Business (9) 
c. What else? 

 

 

Order of business – Propose upda�ng the Public Comment sec�on to add: 

“In order to avoid unscheduled debates, the PC generally will not comment or 
respond to public comment.  Silence or non-response from the PC should not be 
interpreted as disinterest.” 

 

 

 

50



 

 

PAGE 1 OF 9 

 

 

  Whitewater Township Planning Commission Bylaws 

Adoption Date: July 12, 2023 

 

 
The following rules of procedure are hereby adopted by the Whitewater Township Planning 
Commission to facilitate the performance of its duties as outlined in the Michigan Planning 
Enabling Act, Public Act 33 of 2008, MCL 125.3801, et seq., and the Michigan Zoning Enabling 
Act, Public Act 110 of 2006, MCL 125.3101, et seq.  

SECTION 1: MEMBERSHIP  

A. Membership Size - The Planning Commission (PC) shall consist of seven (7) 
members.   

B. Membership Terms of Office – Members are appointed by the Township Supervisor 
for staggered three-year terms with the approval of the Township Board and expire 
December 31.  Members are expected to take the Oath of Office and serve until their 
term expires and a successor has been appointed as provided above.    

C. Membership Departure - Members who are unable or unwilling to serve the entire 
terms for which they were appointed or who do not wish to be considered for 
reappointment shall provide sixty (60) days advance written notice of that fact to the 
Township Supervisor so that a successor may be appointed and approved in a timely 
manner that does not require the PC to function with less than the seven (7) members 
provided.   

D. Membership Qualification - All members shall be qualified electors of the Township 
of Whitewater, except that one member may be a non-qualified elector.  

E. Membership Representation - Membership shall be representative of the important 
segments of the community including:  

 Agriculture  

 Natural Resources/Environmental  

 Recreation  

 Education  

 Public Health/Safety 

 Government  

 Transportation  

 Industry  

 Commerce  

 Waterfront Owner  

 Building Trades  

 Resident at Large  

51

1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

6. 

7. 

8. 

9. 

10. 

11. 

12. 



 

 

PAGE 2 OF 9 

 

 

F. Township Board Representation – One member of the Township Board shall serve 
as a member of the PC.  His/her term shall coincide with their term of office on the 
Whitewater Township Board of Trustees. The Township Supervisor is ineligible to 
serve in this capacity.  As a Township Board representative, he or she shall prepare 
and share a report on PC activities at Board meetings, and shall act as a primary 
liaison between the PC and the Board.  The Township Board representative shall also 
present proposed PC action items at Township Board meetings for consideration. The 
Township Board representative may not serve as an officer of the PC.  The Township 
Board representative shall also inform the PC of Township Board activities, actions, 
and goals.    

G. Zoning Board of Appeals Representation – The Michigan Zoning Enabling Act 
requires Townships that enact a zoning ordinance to have a Zoning Board of Appeals 
(ZBA). The ZBA is responsible for ruling on appeals of administrative decisions and 
zoning ordinance requirements.  The processes are explained in the ZBA handbook 
published by the Michigan Municipal League, and in the Whitewater Township Zoning 
Ordinance itself. One member of the PC shall be appointed by the supervisor to serve 
as a member of the (ZBA). His/her term shall coincide with their appointment to the 
PC.  The PC chair shall provide the supervisor with a recommendation for appointment 
following consultation with the PC membership.  The PC member reports to the ZBA 
on relevant PC actions, proposed ordinances and, developments etc..., and responds 
to questions regarding the spirit and intent of ordinances. The PC member reports 
back to the PC on ZBA decisions and any issues the ZBA would like assistance on.     

H. Meeting Participation - The Township Attorney, Planner, Zoning Administrator and 
any township planning staff shall have the ability to participate in discussions of the PC 
as they deliberate on agenda items during meetings.   

I. Zoning Administrator - The Zoning Administrator shall carry out all responsibilities 
associated with an employment contract, or job description (if an employee).  Such 
responsibilities should include assisting with the development of the PC annual report, 
preparation of required legal notices and preparation of materials needed to support 
development-related PC action items.  

J. Planner - Subject to applicable contractual terms, the Planner may assist with updates 
to the Master Plan and zoning ordinance amendments. The Planner may also assist 
with independent reviews of development-related PC action items (special use 
approvals, site plans, etc...).  

SECTION 2: OFFICERS  

A. Selection and Tenure - At the first regular meeting each January, the PC shall select 
a Chairperson, Vice Chairperson and Secretary. All officers shall serve a term of one 
year and shall be eligible for re-election for consecutive terms for the same office.  The 
newly elected officers shall assume their responsibilities at the next regular meeting.  If 
due to unforeseen circumstances, the PC is unable to elect officers at the January 
meeting, those officers whose terms as officers have expired and who remain as 
active members of the PC shall continue their services as officers until elections are 
held.  

52

Highlight

Highlight



 

 

PAGE 3 OF 9 

 

 

B. Chairperson - The Chairperson shall preside at all meetings, appoint committees and 
perform such other duties as may be ordered by the PC, including recommending the 
ZBA Representative to the Township Board when a vacancy occurs.  Other roles and 
responsibilities include:  

1. Preside at all meetings 

2. Appoint committees 

3. Agenda creation and submission  

4. Inform Clerk of any necessary meeting date and/or time changes within 48 hours of 
known change 

5. Create Action Item list and distribute within 72 business hours of meeting to PC 
members  

C. Vice Chairperson - The Vice Chairperson shall act in the capacity of the chairperson 
in his/her absence. In the event the office of Chairperson becomes vacant, the Vice 
Chairperson shall succeed to this office for the unexpired term, and the PC shall select 
a successor to the office of Vice Chairperson for the unexpired term.  

D. Secretary - The Secretary shall execute documents in the name of the PC and shall 
perform such other duties as the PC may determine. The Secretary may be assisted 
by a Recording Secretary and/or the Zoning Administrator in the performance of 
his/her duties. Other roles and responsibilities include: 

 Ensure hall setup is complete 5 minutes prior to meeting start time (mics checked, 
name tags, recording equipment, Zoom, chairs, tables, etc.) 

 Conduct Roll Calls 

 Monitor zoom & equipment 

 Take notes 

 Assist with meeting packet organization and posting in a timely manner.  

SECTION 3: MEETINGS  
The business the PC may perform shall be conducted at a public meeting held in compliance 
with the Open Meetings Act. The PC may establish reasonable rules and regulations in order to 
minimize the possibility of disrupting the meeting.  

A. Regular Meetings – Meetings of the PC shall be held on the First Wednesday of each 
month.  All meetings shall take place at Whitewater Township Hall, 5777 Vinton Road, 
Williamsburg, MI  49690 at 7:00 P.M.  When a regular meeting falls on a legal holiday 
or upon a day resulting in a conflict, the PC shall, if possible, select a suitable alternate 
meeting date in the same month as the originally scheduled meeting.  

 Notice of regular PC meetings shall be posted at Township Hall each year in 
accordance with the Open Meetings Act and on the township website.  

53

1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 



 

 

PAGE 4 OF 9 

 

 

B. Special Meetings - Special meetings may be called by the Chairperson or upon 
written request to the secretary by at least two members of the PC.  Notice of special 
meetings shall be given to the members of the PC at least 48 hours prior to the 
meeting. Such notice shall state the purpose, time and location of the special meeting 
and shall be posted in accordance with the Open Meetings Act.   

C. Notice - Notice required for specific planning, zoning or other land use actions will be 
given in accordance with the Michigan Planning Enabling Act, the Michigan Zoning 
Enabling Act, Land Division Act, or other applicable statute.  All PC agendas and 
notices will be posted on the Township website, whitewatertownship.org. and in all 
other Township designated locations.  

D. Public Hearings - All public hearings held by the PC must be held as part of a regular 
or special meeting of the PC.   

 Public Hearings that will result in the consideration of amending the Zoning 
Ordinance text or map shall be set by motion of the PC.  

 Public Hearings that are required for site plan and/or special use consideration 
may be set in accordance with the PC regular schedule by the Zoning 
Administrator.   

E. Agenda – Per, Section 2B above, the chairperson is responsible for preparing a 
tentative agenda, with assistance from the Zoning Administrator and/or Recording 
Secretary, if requested.  The agenda may be modified by quorum of the PC. The PC 
may only take action on items that appear on the agenda.  

F. Quorum - Four (4) members of the PC shall constitute a quorum for transacting 
business and taking official action for all matters with the exception of Master Plan 
adoption or amendments (see G below).  

G. Voting - An affirmative vote of 2/3 of the members of the PC is required to recommend 
approval of the master plan or amendments to the plan or to amend these bylaws. 
Unless otherwise required by statute, other actions or motions placed before the PC 
may be adopted by a majority vote of the members present and voting, as long as a 
quorum is present. Voting shall be by voice vote; a roll call vote shall be required if 
requested by any PC member or directed by the chairperson. Except in the case of 
conflict of interest, all PC members, including the Chairperson and ex officio member, 
shall vote on all matters.    

H. Public Records - All meetings, minutes, records, documents, correspondence and 
other materials of the PC shall be open to public inspection in accordance with the 
Freedom of Information Act, except as may otherwise be provided by law.  

I. Parliamentary Procedure – Parliamentary procedure in PC meetings shall be 
governed by Roberts Rules of Order.  

J. Subcommittees - The PC may establish subcommittees to aid in conducting business 
as described below. All subcommittees are advisory in nature and only capable of 
making recommendations to the full PC. 

 Executive Subcommittee: An Executive Committee consisting of the Chair, 
Vice-Chair, and Secretary of the PC may consider matters related to budgets, 
contracts, and similar administrative items and draft a report containing 

54

1. 

2. 

1. 

• 



 

 

PAGE 5 OF 9 

 

 

recommendations as to those items. The report shall be presented to the entire 
PC, who may amend, adopt, or veto the recommendation contained therein. 

 

 Ad Hoc Subcommittees: The PC may establish and appoint members and 
other individuals to ad hoc subcommittees for purposes related to the duties of 
the PC. A new subcommittee may be formed when the PC identifies an issue 
that needs attention, substantial discussion, or investigation. Each 
subcommittee shall be titled to ensure notices, agendas, packets, payments, 
and documentation can be easily identified. This will also help delineate if the 
subcommittee is advisory and only capable of making recommendations 
concerning a particular subject matter. 

a. Chair and Report: Each subcommittee shall appoint a chair, who shall 
be responsible for drafting and submitting a report to the PC included in 
the PC Regular Meeting packet, summarizing the subcommittee’s 
findings and recommendations. The subcommittee chair must be a 
member of the PC. All subcommittees serve the entire PC, and the 
recommendations offered to the PC are subject to review, amendment, 
or veto. 

b. Ad Hoc Membership: The size of a subcommittee can vary as the PC 
deems fit. Subcommittees can be made up of both PC members and 
individuals who are not PC members. However, at no time shall a 
quorum of PC members serve on an ad hoc subcommittee. 

 

 Subcommittee Operation: 

a. The subcommittee chairperson shall conduct the meeting, and a quorum 
shall consist of at least half of the total membership of the subcommittee. 

b. Subcommittee meetings are not “meetings” under the Michigan Open 
Meetings Act, MCL 15.261 et seq. 

c. Motions are adopted by a majority vote of the members present and 
voting with a quorum present. Only subcommittee members physically 
present at a meeting are eligible to cast a vote. 

d. If any subcommittee member is absent for three consecutively scheduled 
meetings, the PC may remove such member from the subcommittee. 

e. Minutes of meetings shall be prepared in the same format used by the 
PC and filed in the same manner as PC minutes. 

f. Subcommittee meetings are open meetings for public attendance and 
participation, and minutes of the meetings are to be available for public 
inspection. Subcommittee meetings may be open for public attendance 
and participation via videoconference software, such as Zoom. 

g. Subcommittee members, including residents, may be paid according to 
the salary and wage schedule adopted by the Township Board. Non-PC 
members on a subcommittee must complete payroll paperwork with the 
Clerk before payments are processed. 

SECTION 4: DUTIES OF THE PC  
The PC shall perform the following duties:  

55

2. 

3. 



 

 

PAGE 6 OF 9 

 

 

A. Prepare, review, and update a master plan as a guide for development within the 
Township’s planning jurisdiction.  

B. Take such action on petitions, staff proposals and Township Board requests for 
amendments to the Zoning Ordinance as required.  

C. Take such action on petitions, staff proposals and Township Board requests for 
amendments to the Master Plan as required.  

D. At the beginning of each year the Chairperson shall appoint one member of the PC to 
prepare an annual written report of the PC’s accomplishments, development and 
planning activities for the Township Board. As required by the Michigan Planning 
Enabling Act, this report will include the status of planning activities, including 
recommendations regarding actions by the Township Board. This report will be 
presented to the PC for approval before presentation to the Township Board.   

E. Take such actions as authorized or required by the Michigan Planning Enabling Act.  

F. Take such actions as authorized or required by the Michigan Zoning Enabling Act, and 
Whitewater Township Zoning Ordinance.  

G. Review, approve and submit an annual budget to the Supervisor, on or before the first 
Township Board meeting in January of each year.   

H. Perform other duties and responsibilities or respond as requested by any Township 
Board or Commission.  

SECTION 5: ABSENCES AND REMOVALS   

A. To be excused, members of the PC shall notify the PC Chairperson, or Township Staff 
when they intend to be absent from a meeting. Failure to make this notification prior to 
the meeting shall result in an unexcused absence.  

B. Members may be removed by the Township Board for misfeasance, malfeasance, or 
nonfeasance in office upon written charges and after a public hearing.  

C. Following three consecutive absences or six within any 12-month period, the PC 
Chairperson shall present to the Township Board a recommendation for dismissal or 
continued service of a member.     

SECTION 6: CONFLICT OF INTEREST  
During the Declaration of Conflict of Interest portion of the agenda, PC member(s) shall disclose 
the potential conflict of interest to the full PC membership.  Failure of a member to disclose a 
potential conflict of interest as required by these bylaws constitutes malfeasance in office.  

56



 

 

PAGE 7 OF 9 

 

 

Conflict of interest is defined as, and a PC member shall declare a conflict of interest and 
abstain from participating in PC deliberations and voting on a request, when:   

A. An immediate family member is involved in any request for which the PC is asked to 
make a decision. “Immediate family member” is defined as a spouse, mother, father, 
sister, brother, son, or daughter, including an adopted child.  

B. The PC member has a business or financial interest in the property involved in the 
request or has a business or financial interest in the applicant’s company, agency or 
association.  

C. The PC member owns, or has a financial interest in, property that is required to receive 
a notice of a public hearing as required by the Whitewater Township Zoning Ordinance 
on an application under consideration by the PC.  A financial interest is herein defined 
as an ownership stake in an equity security or debt security issued by an entity, 
including the rights and obligations to acquire such an interest.   

D. These guidelines shall be superseded when the “rule of necessity” is invoked.   

  
If there is a question whether a conflict of interest exists or not, the question shall be put before 
the PC.  Whether a conflict of interest exists or not shall be determined by a majority vote of the 
remaining members of the PC.  

In the event that a conflict is declared, the member shall remove themselves from the meeting 
table until the agenda item is concluded.   

SECTION 7:  COMPENSATION   

PC members will receive compensation on a per meeting basis as determined by the Township 
of Whitewater Board of Trustees.  PC members may receive reimbursement for travel and 
expenses with recommendation by the PC and approval by the Township Board.  

SECTION 8:  EDUCATION  

Members shall complete one training/educational program each year. Training may be provided 
when available at regular meetings of the PC by other PC members, the Planner or Zoning 
Administrator and will qualify as acceptable training.  Additional training from professional or 
educational organizations is also encouraged.   

SECTION 9:  ORDER OF BUSINESS  
The order of business shall be as follows:  

 

 

 

 

57



 

 

PAGE 8 OF 9 

 

 

 Mic Check, Call to Order/Pledge of Allegiance  

 Roll Call of PC Members  

 Set/Adjust Meeting Agenda  

 Declaration of Conflict of Interest pertinent to agenda items 

 Public Comment – Any person shall be permitted to address a meeting of the PC.  
Public comments shall be carried out in accordance with the following rules and 
procedures:   

a. Comments shall be directed to the PC, with questions directed to the Chair.  
b. Any person wishing to address the PC shall speak from the lectern (or use raise 

hand feature if Zoom is being utilized) and state his/her name and address.  
c. Persons may address the PC on matters that are relevant to Township planning 

and zoning issues.  
d. No person shall be allowed to speak more than once on the same matter, 

excluding the time needed to answer a PC members’ questions.   
e. Public comment shall be limited to 3 minutes per person. 

  

 Public Hearing  

a. Open public hearing/ state time.  
b. Request those attending sign attendance sheet.  
c. State date of public hearing notice publication and newspaper published in.  
d. State purpose of public hearing.  
e. Brief Introductory Presentation (Zoning Admin. Planner, Applicant/Agent, etc.).  
f. Read any written comments received.  
g. Receive public comment.  
h. Close public hearing/state time.  

 
Questions shall be addressed through the Chair during the public hearing.  PC 
discussion and action shall take place after the public hearing is closed.  Action may 
also take place at a subsequent PC meeting.   

 
 Approval of Minutes of Previous Meeting(s)  

 Correspondence  

 Reports/Presentations/Announcements/Comments  

a. Zoning Administrator  
b. Chair  
c. Township Board Representative  
d. ZBA Representative  
e. Committee Reports  
f. Additional Items  

 

 Unfinished Business  

 New Business  

 Next Meeting Agenda (Review action items, due dates, meeting date/time) 

 Public Comment  

 PC Discussion/Comments  

 Continuing Education (5-15 minutes at each meeting)  

 Adjournment  

58

1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

6. 

7. 

8. 

9. 

10. 

11. 

12. 

13. 

14. 

15. 

16. 

Trustee01
Highlight

Trustee01
Sticky Note

Trustee01
Sticky Note
Update to include: In order to avoid unscheduled debates, the PC generally will not comment or respond to public comment.  Silence or non-response from the PC should not be interpreted as disinterest.  



 

 

PAGE 9 OF 9 

 

 

SECTION 10:  EX-PARTE COMMUNICATIONS 
Pursuant to the Open Meetings Act, a “meeting” is any gathering of a quorum of members of a 
governmental body to discuss, or take action on, official business or policy.  The term “meeting” 
also applies to information-gathering and fact-finding sessions at any location where a quorum 
of members is present and discussions include a public business item.  All meetings must be 
property noticed and advertised pursuant to the Open Meetings Act.    

Members of the PC may not email, text or engage in other forms of electronic communication 
during, or outside of formal meetings for the purpose of sharing information or asking questions 
related to any action item.  Additionally, it is the policy of the PC to not take part in meetings of 
three or more PC members at any location with an applicant to discuss a pending action item.  
Such communication may constitute deliberations toward decision-making or an actual decision.     

SECTION 11: SUBMITTAL DEADLINES  
To facilitate timely action on agenda items, it is the policy of the PC to require complete 
applications, applicable fees and related supporting material to be submitted to the Zoning 
Administrator no less than ten working days before a scheduled PC meeting. This provides time 
to review material, determine its completeness, place it on the meeting agenda and include all 
relevant materials in the meeting packet. If changes, updates, or additional information related 
to application for an action item is provided less than ten working days before a PC meeting, the 
PC reserves the right to defer consideration of such additional or updated material to a 
subsequent meeting.          

SECTION 12: MEETING PACKETS    
To ensure that PC members and the public have adequate time to review the agenda, and 
supporting materials for an upcoming meeting, the PC will aim toward making meeting packets 
available by the close of business on the day that is one week before the meeting.  Pursuant to 
Section 3A above, the packet should be available by 5 PM on the prior Wednesday.         

SECTION 13:  AMENDMENTS  
These bylaws may be amended at any time following a recommendation of the majority of the 
membership of the PC and subsequent notification to the Township Board. It is the policy of the 
PC to review these by-laws in January of each year and thereafter, make necessary changes to 
maintain a relevant and useful set of rules of conduct and practice.    

  

  

59

--

Highlight

Trustee01
Highlight



Budget Discussion: 
1. Mee�ngs – How many of what type/s? 

Month Regular PC Public Hearings Special PC  Joint TB/PC ROS  

April 04/03     

May 05/01     

June 06/05     

July 07/03     

August 08/07     

September 09/04     

October 10/02     

November 11/06     

December 12/04     

January 01/08     

February 02/05     

March 03/05     
Total FY Meetings 12     

 
2. Line Items – What is reasonable considering the MP and ZP to comple�on? 

Line Item FY 2023/24 Estimated 
2024/25 Shortfall / Gain Notes  

702 (Salaries) $16,000    

703 (Wages) $7,000    

715 (Social Sec.) $1,426    

716 (Medicare) $336    

727 (Office Supplies) $2,000    

728 (Postage)  $3,000    
804 (Prof. Services) $57,000    

840 (Dues) $250    

847 (Software) $160    

860 (Mileage) $250    

865 (Meals/ Lodging) $0    

880 (Ed/ Training) $2,000    

901 (Publishing) $3,000    
902 (Printing) $2,500    

TOTAL $94,922    
 

60



Cheryl A. Goss  
From:clerk@whitewatertownship.org 
To:Rachel Steelman 
Wed, Dec 20 at 12:56 PM 
Rachel – 
  
Attached are up to date budget documents for the planning commission.  Let me know if you need 
anything else, although I will be out of the office shortly and not back in until 12/26.     
  
Merry Christmas! 
  
Cheryl A. Goss 
Whitewater Township Clerk 
5777 Vinton Road, P.O. Box 159 
Williamsburg, Michigan 49690 
Telephone:  231.267.5141 x24 
Fax:  231.267-9020 
clerk@whitewatertownship.org 
Office Hours:  Mon/Tue/Wed/Thurs 9:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. 
I Pledge Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of America, and to the REPUBLIC for which it 
stands, One Nation, Under God, Indivisible, with Liberty and Justice for All. 
  

•  

Planning Commission Budget as of 12.20.2023.pdf 

963.2kB 

 

 

61

mailto:clerk@whitewatertownship.org
https://apis.mail.yahoo.com/ws/v3/mailboxes/@.id==VjN-o1IveupeQLInY982kVfQ94laL9gpN5iQunLaoOnOYZ2YT0k0DUCGHdT6S7HxgqZWOstHGQ2SvOzuBlPC52QM-g/messages/@.id==APD5jahEnZNmZYMqtQRwuBBYJ7U/content/parts/@.id==2/refresh?appid=YMailNorrinLaunch&ymreqid=0c4bfa0c-7f2b-314b-1c65-21000001db00
https://apis.mail.yahoo.com/ws/v3/mailboxes/@.id==VjN-o1IveupeQLInY982kVfQ94laL9gpN5iQunLaoOnOYZ2YT0k0DUCGHdT6S7HxgqZWOstHGQ2SvOzuBlPC52QM-g/messages/@.id==APD5jahEnZNmZYMqtQRwuBBYJ7U/content/parts/@.id==2/refresh?appid=YMailNorrinLaunch&ymreqid=0c4bfa0c-7f2b-314b-1c65-21000001db00
https://apis.mail.yahoo.com/ws/v3/mailboxes/@.id==VjN-o1IveupeQLInY982kVfQ94laL9gpN5iQunLaoOnOYZ2YT0k0DUCGHdT6S7HxgqZWOstHGQ2SvOzuBlPC52QM-g/messages/@.id==APD5jahEnZNmZYMqtQRwuBBYJ7U/content/parts/@.id==2/refresh?appid=YMailNorrinLaunch&ymreqid=0c4bfa0c-7f2b-314b-1c65-21000001db00
https://apis.mail.yahoo.com/ws/v3/mailboxes/@.id==VjN-o1IveupeQLInY982kVfQ94laL9gpN5iQunLaoOnOYZ2YT0k0DUCGHdT6S7HxgqZWOstHGQ2SvOzuBlPC52QM-g/messages/@.id==APD5jahEnZNmZYMqtQRwuBBYJ7U/content/parts/@.id==2/refresh?appid=YMailNorrinLaunch&ymreqid=0c4bfa0c-7f2b-314b-1c65-21000001db00


62

Whitewater Township 

Month: 12131/2023 

Fund: 101 - GENERAL FUND 
Expenditures 

Dept: 400 Planning Commission 
702 Salaries 

703 Wages 

715 Social Security (Employer} 

716 Medicare (Employer) 

727 Office Supplies & Expense 

728 Postage 

804 Professional Seivices 

840 Dues and Memberships 

847 Software Support 

860 Mileage Reimbursement 

865 Meal/Lodging Expense 

880 Education & Training 

901 Publishing 

902 Printing 

Planning Commission 

Total Expenditures 

GENERAL FUND 

Grand Total: 

p tl, \,! ,-o (l 
J 

Prior 
Year 

Actual 

5,010 

2,615 

473 

110 

569 

0 

4,238 

o 
0 

o 
0 

1,767 

1,275 

0 

16,057 

16,057 

-16,057 

-16,057 

BUDGET WORKSHEET 

- Current Year 
Original Amended Actual Thru 
Budget Budget December 

16,000 16,000 8,610 

2,120 7,000 4,520 

937 1,426 814 

219 336 190 

2,000 2,000 4,438 

3,000 3,000 1. 119 

32,000 57,000 26,759 

250 250 o 
160 160 o 
250 250 0 

0 0 o 
2,000 2,000 350 

3,000 3,000 268 

2,500 2,500 828 

64,436 94,922 47 ,896 

64,436 94,922 47,896 

-64,436 -94.922 -47,896 

-64,436 -94,922 -47,896 

f PE 

Page: 1 
12/20/2023 

12:34 pm 

(6) (7) (8) 
Estimated 

Total Requested Recommended Adopted 

0 0 0 0 

0 0 0 0 

0 0 0 0 

0 0 0 0 

0 0 0 0 

0 0 0 0 

o o o o 
o o o o 
0 0 0 0 

0 0 0 0 

0 0 0 0 

0 0 0 0 

0 0 0 0 

o 0 0 0 

0 0 0 0 

0 0 0 0 

0 0 o 0 

0 0 0 0 

.:J_ 'AV o &u,.:s cf'hru_ 

{d-'/LD 1~ 
,J.-/ I 9 le').Da.-3 

~Je., ~ Cv 2> WJ;.,,LI.... fVVVl e~ of 
r,> D °WI ..fo V ti,,, S u-: r+. 'on S l51,t.,, ; fl\ I) /71, ',:_e.S. 

'1_-f ~ ,;,-,('e.; SJ7>"'1-e.-~ ~ Id 

--h:;, I O Dk_ ~e,,-) iJ {, Iv t' /)_ k- M,f-fj 
c.+o /4o 4{,.d> Cer--



63

GLNumber 
Fund Name 
Department Name 
Account Name 

101-400-727 
GENERAL FUND 
Planning Commission 
Office Supplies & Expense 

Account Detail Report 
04/01/2023 to 12/20/2023 

YTD Actual 
Fund Type 
Function Name 
Class Name 

$ 4,438.44 

General Government 
Supplies 

06/07/2023 AP 114048 THE COPY SHOP 2500 Envelopes Out & Ret/ 

06/07/ 2023 AP 114052 VISA PARK/PC/CLERK/lWP HALL/ 

09/26/2023 AP 115831 GRAND TRAVERSE CO TREASURER MAPS FOR MASTER PLAN & 

09/26/2023 AP 115845 VISA RON POPP CARD 

11/21/2023 AP 116812 NORTH PLACE PLANNING LLC MATERIALS FOR SIGNS 

12/19/2023 AP 117155 NETUNK BUSINESS SOLUTIONS LAPTOP & ACCESSORIES FOR 

'5\of5~ 
Total Journal Entries: 6 

INV#: 

INV# : 

INV#: 

INV# : 

INV#: 

INV# : 

Page: 1 
12/20/2023 

12:36 pm 

Expenditure 

21 663.90 

154.86 

1 31.04 

1,208.64 

126.00 

2,254.00 

Total : 4,438.44 



64

GLNumber 
Fund Name 
Department Name 
Account Name 

101-400-728 
GENERAL FUND 
Planning Commission 
Pasta e 
04/25/2023 AP 112995 MICHIGAN TOWNSHIPS 

ASSOCIATION 
06/ 07/ 2023 AP 114048 THE COPY SHOP 

Total Journal Entries: 2 

Account Detail Report 
04/01/2023 to 12/20/2023 

YTD Actual 
Fund Type 
Function Name 
Class Name 

$ 1,118.95 

General Government 
Su lies 

6 AUTHORITIES/RESPONSIBILITIES INV#: 

2500 Envelopes Out & Ret/ INV# : 

Page: 1 
12/20/2023 

12:37 pm 

Expenditure 

21 S'' 



65

GLNumber 
Fund Name 
Department Name 
Account Name 

101-400-804 
GENERAL FUND 
Planning Commission 
Professional Services 
04/25/2023 AP 112997 NORTH PLACE PLANNING LLC 

05/ 10/ 2023 AP 113059 NORTH PLACE PLANNING LLC 

05/23/2023 AP 113156 NETWORKS NORTHWEST 

06/20/2023 AP 114382 NORTH PLACE PLANNING LLC 

07/19/2023 AP 114518 NORTH PLACE PLANNING LLC 

07/19/2023 AP 114530 NETWORKS NORTHWEST 

07/19/2023 AP 114548 NETWORKS NORTHWEST 

08/15/2023 AP 115047 NORTH PLACE PLANNING LLC 

09/13/2023 AP 115638 NETWORKS NORTHWEST 

09/13/2023 AP 115640 NORTH PLACE PLANNING LLC 

10/24/2023 AP 116293 NORTH PLACE PLANNING LLC 

11/ 21/ 2023 AP 116811 NORTH PLACE PLANNING LLC 

12/19/2023 AP 117137 NORTH PLACE PLANNING LLC 

12/19/2023 AP 117153 LAND INFORMATION ACCESS 

Total Journal Entries: 14 

Account Detail Report 
04/01/2023 to 12/20/2023 

YTD Actual 
Fund Type 
Function Name 
Class Name 

$ 26,759.49 

General Government 
Contractual 

03/01-03/31/2023 

April 2023 

1ST PMT ON CONTRACTUAL 

05/01-05/31/2023 

Services 06/01 thru 06/30/2023 

Contract 1730 - 1/2 Payment on 

Bal Due Contract 3161 

07/01-07/31/2023 

FINAL PAYMENT TWP SURVEY 

08/01-08/31/2023 

09/01-09/30/2023 MASTER PLAN 

13 HRS MASTER PLAN 

14 HOURS MASTER PLAN 

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT 

INV# : 

INV#: 

INV# : 

INV#: 

INV# : 

INV#: 

INV# : 

INV# : 

INV#: 

INV#: 

INV#: 

INV#: 

INV#: 

INV#: 

Page: 1 
12/20/2023 

12:37 pm 

Expenditure 

Total : 

900.00 

825.00 

400.00 

975.00 

900.00 

1,207.50 

400.00 

1,200.00 

1,207.50 

1,800.00 

1,875.00 

2,100.00 

2,325.00 

10,644.49 

26,759.49 



66

GLNumber 
Fund Name 
Department Name 
Account Name 

101-400-880 
GENERAL FUND 
Planning Commission 
Education & Training 

04/12/2023 AP 112884 CARLYLE WROUBEL 

113077 VISA 

Account Detail Report 
04/01/2023 to 12/20/2023 

YTD Actual 
Fund Type 
Function Name 
Class Name 

$ 350.00 

General Government 
Miscellaneous 

05/10/2023 AP 

09/30/2023 GJ 

12/19/2023 AP 

116602 Move Expense to Correct Depart 

117134 LINDA SLOPSEMA 

ZBA ONLINE CERTIFICATE 

Clerk{rreas{rwpBd/Park/Cem/PC 

(ZBA) 

cmZEN PLANNER COURSE 

Total Journal Entries: 4 

INV#: 

INV#: 

INV#: 

Page: 1 
12/20/2023 

12:37 pm 

Expenditure 

Total: 

75.00 

100.00 

-75.00 

250.00 

350.00 



67

GLNumber 
Fund Name 
Department Name 
Account Name 

101-400-901 
GENERAL FUND 
Planning Commission 
Publishing 
04/12/2023 AP 112930 TC RECORD-EAGLE, INC. 

06/20/2023 AP 114389 TC RECORD-EAGLE, INC. 

Total Journal Entries: 2 

Account Detail Report 
04/01/2023 to 12/20/2023 

YTD Actual 
Fund Type 
Function Name 
Class Name 

$ 268.15 

General Government 
Miscellaneous 

NTC OF ADOPTION ZOA # 86 

NTC OF 6/07 /23 PLANNING 

INV# : 

INV#: 

Page: 1 
12/20/2023 

12:38 pm 

Expenditure 

03 

05 

Total: 

135.70 

132.45 

268.15 



68

GLNumber 
Fund Name 
Department Name 
Account Name 

101-400-902 
GENERAL FUND 
Planning Commission 
Printing 

07/03/2023 AP 114473 RODNEY REBANT 

09/13/ 2023 AP 115639 NORTH PLACE PLANNING LLC 

Total Journal Entries: 2 

Account Detail Report 
04/01/2023 to 12/20/2023 

YTD Actual 
Fund Type 
Function Name 
Class Name 

$ 827.89 

General Government 
Miscellaneous 

20 LAWN SIGNS RE: MASTER 

18 SIGNS FOR UPCOMING 

INV# : 

INV# : 

Page: 1 
12/20/2023 

12:38 pm 

Expenditure 

Total : 

466.19 

361.70 

827.89 



 
Al Keaton  
From:kakeaton@charter.net 
To:'Rachel Steelman' 
Fri, Dec 22 at 10:53 AM 
Rachel, 
  
I would add $5000.00 professional services covering surveying services needed to 
straighten out that mess we inherited called zoning map.  As Cheryl indicated at the 
joint meeting, the best we can conclude is the map and its boundaries were set by a 
couple internes and that’s not acceptable. Actually it’s an easy fix than prove/verify 
boundaries. 
  
Again, currently we’re in front of any future law suit knowing the data is corrupt and not 
acting. 
Thanks, AL   
  
    
 

69



From:norzoning@kaltelnet.net 
To:clerk@whitewatertownship.org,rsteelmanpc@yahoo.com 
Cc:'Bob Hall' 
Tue, Dec 12 at 9:04 AM 
See item #6 below. 

• Just a thought – 
Bob 
  
Robert Hall – Zoning Administrator 
Dr. Ben Townsend – Assistant Zoning Administrator 
Norman Township Zoning 
1273 S. Seaman Road – P.O. Box 143 
Wellston, Michigan 49689 
  
Phone: 231-848-4564 
Fax: 231-848-7081 
  
norzoning@kaltelnet.net 
  
www.normantownship.org 
  
  
From: Reilly, Mary <reillym8@MSU.EDU> 
Sent: Monday, December 11, 2023 1:59 PM 
To: MIPLANZONING@LIST.MSU.EDU 
Subject: Renewables, MCP bundle, Housing Ready Grants 
  
Hello everyone:  
This December 11, 2024 edition, includes 6 items: 
  

1. Webinar: Changes for Renewable Energy Permitting in Michigan: the knowns and 
unknowns 

2. Courts:  Dezman v. Charter Twp. Of Bloomfield (If the use is not listed… and chickens in 
residential) 

3. Training:  MSU Extension, 2023 MCP Webinar Bundle 
4. Training: MSU Extension, Zoning Administrator Certificate 
5. Training: MAP Transportation Bonanza 
6. Grant: MSHDA Housing Ready Grant Initiative 

  
These puns sleigh…. 
Fir sure. 
  
Please send emails to reillym8@msu.edu to comment or subscribe to this service. 
--Mary Reilly, AICP 

1.   Webinar: Changes Ahead for Renewable Energy Permitting in Michigan: the 
knowns and unknowns 

70

mailto:norzoning@kaltelnet.net
https://mail.yahoo.com/d/folders/1/messages/AIjIPYJh3BQfZXhoVgD2GL5Ga6M?reason=invalid_crumb&guce_referrer=aHR0cHM6Ly9sb2dpbi55YWhvby5jb20v&guce_referrer_sig=AQAAANLEJ50sAsjVtnpw-sZFyVrw42Wc1cgvk1fFxBiXqDe0gP2XwZqK5TGshgssrCKo_lWk2xup9qiY0Y8RT7JsHc2LiQCtrjOLEs0HAbPJMrVF7l4X3Zu2hVI7nXwCIAYK26gz7Uc9-bQ6eTJMihWj9to2Y14mMV4h-1trkflUr5n1#_top
mailto:reillym8@msu.edu


Public Act 233 of 2023, signed by Governor Whitmer on November 28, 2023, makes significant changes 
to the permitting process for large-scale renewable energy facilities. The new law grants permitting 
authority to the Michigan Public Service Commission (MPSC), unless local governments adopt 
'compatible renewable energy ordinances'. Join us to learn more about the knowns and unknowns of 
this new law during an introductory one-hour webinar followed by 15+ minutes for Q and A. This 
includes what requirements developers must meet if permitted through the MPSC, what qualifies as a 
compatible renewable energy ordinance, and the pros and cons of starting the process now of 
modifying your zoning to be a compatible ordinance. Look to your municipal attorney, consulting 
planner, and professional organizations for additional support and programming in 2024.  
  
Instructors for the webinar include Catherine Kaufman, Attorney, Bauckham, Sparks, Thall, Seeber, and 
Kaufman, P.C; Madeleine Krol, U of M, Graham Sustainability Institute; Sarah Mills, U of M, Graham 
Sustainability Institute; Emily Palacios, Attorney, Miller Johnson; Mary Reilly, AICP, Michigan State 
University Extension. January 10, 2024 from 12:30 PM to 1:45 PM (eastern time).  1 MCP. There is no 
cost to attend. This webinar is intended for local government elected and appointed officials, local 
government staff, consulting planners, and attorneys. Register or learn more here. 
  
2. Supreme Court: Reverse and remand COA decision on chicken coop in 
residential area. 
Case: Dezman v. Charter Twp. of Bloomfield 

Court: Michigan Supreme Court, Case No. 165878, 2023 Mich. LEXIS 1936, 2023 WL 8115828 
(Supreme Court of Michigan November 22, 2023, Decided) 

In an order in lieu of granting leave to appeal, the court reversed the Court of Appeals judgment [e-
Journal # 79606, 2023 Mich. App. LEXIS 3923, 2023 WL 3767221, June 1, 2023, Decided], which held 
that “plaintiffs were not required to seek a variance and permission to keep chickens in a chicken 
coop on their property.” The court noted that the zoning ordinance at issue “stated what activities are 
permitted at the one-family detached dwelling on plaintiffs’ property: accessory uses and accessory 
structures customarily incidental to one-family detached dwellings.” 

Pursuant to Pittsfield Twp, under an ordinance that “specifically sets forth permissible uses under each 
zoning classification . . . absence of the specifically stated use must be regarded as excluding that use.” 
The court remanded the case to the Court of Appeals for consideration of whether the trial court erred 
in affirming the decision of defendant-Charter Township’s Zoning Board of Appeals to deny “plaintiffs’ 
request to keep chickens in a chicken coop on their property.” (Source: State Bar of Michigan e-Journal Number: 
80571; November 29, 2023 
Full Text: https://www.michbar.org/file/opinions/supreme/2023/112223/80571.pdf 

  

3.  Training: 2023 Master Citizen Planner Webinar Recording Bundle Available 

Recordings for all six 2023 Master Citizen Planner Webinars are now available for purchase 
through December 31, 2023 for $60.   Many MCP’s wait with anticipation for this bundle… to 
then swiftly and efficiently earn their 6 MCP hours of continuing education in December (by a 
warm fire).  Have you been waiting?  Now is the time!  These webinars were initially presented 
live via Zoom throughout 2023 and have now been compiled for easy viewing and access. In 
addition to getting the latest updates and information on current topics of interest to planning 
and zoning officials, this webinar bundle is a great option for Master Citizen Planners looking to 

71

https://events.anr.msu.edu/RenewableEnergy/
https://www.michbar.org/opinions/content_search_detail/EjournalID=102666
https://www.michbar.org/opinions/content_search_detail/EjournalID=102666
https://www.michbar.org/file/opinions/supreme/2023/112223/80571.pdf


complete their continuing education hours. Available until December 31, 2023.  Learn more or 
register for the webinars here. 
Cost: $60 (Six one-hour webinars, 6 MCP) 

• Michigan Demographic Trends 

• Zoning Conflict and the Public Meeting: The Who, Why, How and Best Practices for Next 
Times 

• Local Government Regulation of Mining in Michigan 

• Local Hazard Mitigation Planning: Saving Lives One Plan at a Time 

• Mending Communities through Reuse of Land & Storytelling 

• 2nd Annual Master Citizen Planner Showcase 

  

4. Training: MSU Extension Zoning Administrator Certificate Course, register by 
December 20 

There are just few spots left for… Zoning Administrator Certificate (ZAC): February 8-9, 
2024. Zoning Administrators are among the most important local officials. They are the front 
line for new development and redevelopment in a community. How well they do or do not do 
their job has a great impact on the future of their community.  Most zoning administrators 
learn on the job and may not have uniform skills, but courts expect them to know the 
rudiments of law as it relates to zoning administration. This class teaches zoning administrators 
how to prevent mistakes that lead to expensive lawsuits, while improving their day-to-day 
effectiveness. This class is for new and current zoning administrators, private consultants, 
county planners, or state agency staff who consult with local zoning administrators. While not 
required, many find it helpful to have a minimum of 6-12 months of on-the-job experience prior 
to attending. 

The 2024 Zoning Administrator Certificate Program is a unique, intensive 18-hour training 
designed specifically for zoning administrators. This hybrid offering consists of webinar delivery, 
self-paced online learning, and two days of engaging in-person training. The program begins 
January 18 with a kick-off webinar. In-person training will be in Mt. Pleasant on February 8-9. 
Consider reserving your spot early, this course is limited to 60 participants. Citizen Planner (in 
person or online) completion or AICP is a pre-requisite to taking ZAC. Registration is open. 
  

5.  Training: Michigan Association of Planning, Transportation Bonanza 15 

The purpose of Transportation Bonanza is to connect professionals from planning, 
transportation, engineering, health and allied fields for a day of training and connection 
focusing on active transportation and Safe Routes to School. This event is brought to you by the 
Michigan Association of Planning, in partnership with Michigan Safe Routes to School and the 
Michigan Department of Transportation. February 15, 2024, 8:30 - 5:00 p.m., Eagle Eye Golf 
Club, 15500 Chandler Rd, Bath Twp., MI 48808.  Registration Fee: $80 | Student Members: 
$15.  Learn more or register here. 

72

https://events.anr.msu.edu/2023MCPWebinarRecordings/
https://events.anr.msu.edu/2023MCPWebinarRecordings/
https://www.canr.msu.edu/zoning_administrator_certificate_program/registration
https://www.canr.msu.edu/zoning_administrator_certificate_program/registration
https://www.planningmi.org/transportation-bonanza


Topics Include: How to Implement Federal Highway Administration's (FHWA's) Safe System 
Approach at the Local Level; Quick Builds for Better Streets; Safe Routes to Parks; Safe Routes 
to School; How to Integrate Transportation into Your Sustainability Plan; Federal Funding: 
Metropolitan Planning Organizations (MPOs), Transportation Improvement Program Processes 
TIPs, and the Bipartisan Infrastructure Law (BIL). 
  

6. Grant: MSHDA Housing Ready Grant Initiative 

The Michigan State Housing Development Authority (MSHDA) has announced a $5,000,000 
allocation to help Michigan communities cover the cost of developing land use policies, master 
plan updates, zoning, and text amendments, to increase housing supply and affordability.  The 
maximum grant per award is $50,000.  Funds have been allocated for communities that have, 
or have not, engaged with Redevelopment Ready Communities (RRC); RRC is not a prerequisite 
to apply. The online application portal will open January 16, 2024 and stay open until funds are 
no longer available.  Learn more here. 
  

____________________________________________________________________________________  
Michigan Trivia:  This Michigan actor was born in Wyandotte:  Lee Majors (Six Million Dollar Man) 

Follow this link for news articles on various land use/planning topics http://canr.msu.edu/planning 

To unsubscribe:  You may leave the list at any time by sending  a "SIGNOFF MIPLANZONING" command 
to LISTSERV@LIST.MSU.EDU.  The email should contain only the command in the area for the body of 
the text of the email, nothing else. Or email reillym8@msu.edu, and I will unsubscribe you from this list. 
   
Mary Reilly, AICP 
Government and Public Policy Educator 
Michigan State University Extension 
395 Third St. 
Manistee, MI   49660 
Ph. 231-889-4277 Ext. 1 
CELL (231) 907-1873 
www.msue.msu.edu 
  
MSU is an affirmative-action, equal-opportunity employer. Michigan State University Extension programs 
and materials are open to all without regard to race, color, national origin, gender, gender identity, 
religion, age, height, weight, disability, political beliefs, sexual orientation, marital status, family status or 
veteran status. 
  
Michigan State University occupies the ancestral, traditional and contemporary lands of the Anishinaabeg 
– Three Fires Confederacy of Ojibwe, Odawa and Potawatomi peoples. The university resides on land 
ceded in the 1819 Treaty of Saginaw. 
  

73

https://www.michigan.gov/mshda/neighborhoods/housing-readiness-incentive-grant-program
http://canr.msu.edu/planning
mailto:LISTSERV@LIST.MSU.EDU
mailto:reillym8@msu.edu
http://www.msue.msu.edu/


 
Ron Popp  
From:supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com 
To:Rachel Steelman,heidivyourtrustee@gmail.com 
Thu, Dec 14 at 10:13 AM 
Good morning Rachel - Good job at the meeting last night. Here is a copy of my packet with the 
comments already summarized. I figured in the short term I would convert the file and when 
appropriate we can talk about how it is done.  
 
Please feel free to call with any questions. 
 
Ron Popp 
Whitewater Township Supervisor 
231.267.5141 Ext. 23 
supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com 

•  

2023.12.13 PC Packet Summarized Comments RMP.pdf 

15.1MB 

 

 

74

mailto:supervisorwhitewater@gmail.com
https://apis.mail.yahoo.com/ws/v3/mailboxes/@.id==VjN-o1IveupeQLInY982kVfQ94laL9gpN5iQunLaoOnOYZ2YT0k0DUCGHdT6S7HxgqZWOstHGQ2SvOzuBlPC52QM-g/messages/@.id==AHtQJttH_UexZXsbsQ1GcI8YvO0/content/parts/@.id==2/refresh?appid=YMailNorrinLaunch&ymreqid=0c4bfa0c-7f2b-314b-1c65-21000001db00
https://apis.mail.yahoo.com/ws/v3/mailboxes/@.id==VjN-o1IveupeQLInY982kVfQ94laL9gpN5iQunLaoOnOYZ2YT0k0DUCGHdT6S7HxgqZWOstHGQ2SvOzuBlPC52QM-g/messages/@.id==AHtQJttH_UexZXsbsQ1GcI8YvO0/content/parts/@.id==2/refresh?appid=YMailNorrinLaunch&ymreqid=0c4bfa0c-7f2b-314b-1c65-21000001db00
https://apis.mail.yahoo.com/ws/v3/mailboxes/@.id==VjN-o1IveupeQLInY982kVfQ94laL9gpN5iQunLaoOnOYZ2YT0k0DUCGHdT6S7HxgqZWOstHGQ2SvOzuBlPC52QM-g/messages/@.id==AHtQJttH_UexZXsbsQ1GcI8YvO0/content/parts/@.id==2/refresh?appid=YMailNorrinLaunch&ymreqid=0c4bfa0c-7f2b-314b-1c65-21000001db00
https://apis.mail.yahoo.com/ws/v3/mailboxes/@.id==VjN-o1IveupeQLInY982kVfQ94laL9gpN5iQunLaoOnOYZ2YT0k0DUCGHdT6S7HxgqZWOstHGQ2SvOzuBlPC52QM-g/messages/@.id==AHtQJttH_UexZXsbsQ1GcI8YvO0/content/parts/@.id==2/refresh?appid=YMailNorrinLaunch&ymreqid=0c4bfa0c-7f2b-314b-1c65-21000001db00


WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP PLANNING COMMISSION and TOWNSHIP BOARD 
AGENDA FOR SPECIAL MEETING,  

12/13/2023, 7pm  
 Whitewater Township Hall 

5777 Vinton Road, Williamsburg, MI  49690 
Phone 231-267-5141/Fax 231-267-9020

 
Zoom Link:  https://us06web.zoom.us/j/87889107802?pwd=COZFRdtF4vT8g0LtQua9iKD5alJSse.1 

 Meeting ID:  878 8910 7802   Passcode: 942715 

 

1.    Mic Check / Call to Order / Pledge of Allegiance 
2.  Roll Call of Members  
3.  Set/Adjust Meeting Agenda  
4.  Declaration of Conflict of Interest  
5.    Public Comment – Any person shall be permitted to address a meeting of the PC. Public  

comments shall be carried out in accordance with the following rules and procedures:  
a. Comments shall be directed to the PC, with questions directed to the Chair.  
b. Any person wishing to address the PC shall speak from the lectern (or use the raise 

hand feature if Zoom is being utilized) and state his/her name and address.  
c. Persons may address the PC on matters that are relevant to Township planning and 

zoning issues. 
d. No person shall be allowed to speak more than once on the same matter, excluding 

the time needed to answer a PC member’s questions.  
e. Public comment shall be limited to 3 minutes per person. 

6.  Special Meeting Business:  
a. Master Plan  
b. Zoning Project  
c. FY 2024/2025 Budget Discussion  
d. Metropolitan Planning Organization  
e. Anything Else Related to Planning Commission 

 
7.  Next Meeting Date; PC – January 3rd, 2024 
8.  Public Comment 
9.  Commission Discussion/Comments 
10.  Adjournment 
 

Whitewater Township will provide necessary reasonable auxiliary aids and services to individuals 
with disabilities who are planning to attend contact the Township Supervisor at 231-267-5141

 

1

1

75



Summary of Comments on joint_tb_pc_12.13.23_meeting_packet 
Commented.pdf
Page: 1

Number: 1 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/14/2023 8:08:36 AM 
Where is the special needs statement? People who special needs, audio, visual, physical need a contact number to arrange for those services

76



Whitewater 
Township 

Master Plan 
and Zoning 

Update

W H I T E W A T E R  

T O W N S H I P  P L A N N I N G  

C O M M I S S I O N

Photo Credit - Horizon Drone Services 

2

77



3

1

78

Overview 

Master Plan Update - What has been done 
tt,1 

Master Plan - Next Steps 

Zoning Update - What has been done 

Zoning - Next Steps 



Page: 3
Number: 1 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/11/2023 1:33:48 PM 
why the low opacity of the charters?

79



4

80

Master Plan Update 

• The existing document is nearly ten years old ( completed 
in 2015). 

• Falls short of many MPEA requirements. 

• Work started in Late 2022. 

• New PC members and new Chairperson in January 2023 

efforts. 

• Launched and completed a three-phased community 
outreach effort - Survey, Open House, and Workshop. 

sn,v1n1011110•<1 
PO •o,r1u 

Wutt•m•b~,g,ll!Jchlg • no,sgo 

T•l~~~~~•,~::/::;:!41 
www ... hll• w• 1•,oo,_n,111p.o,g 



Jan Feb Mar April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec. 

Planning Commission discussion 
about citizen engagement and 
community outreach.  ROS 
formation & meetings   

Special joint 
township 
board and 
planning 
commission 
Meeting

Introductory 
Chapters (1-
4) of the 
Master Plan 
Released for 
comment.

Survey responses  returned and results 
Tabulated 

Report on 
survey 
results 
released 

Master plan 
open house 

Master 
Plan  
Workshop

Report of 
results from 
open house 
and 
workshop 
provided

Work on 
survey 
questions and 
methodology Planning for master plan 

open house & workshop 

Planning 
for 
Workshop

Special joint 
township 
board and 
planning 
commission 
meeting

Updated 
chapters (1-
4) of the 
master plan 
released

Master Plan

5

1

81

Timeline / Milestones 2023 

D •D •D •D •D •D •D •D •D •D •D •D 

~•• ~=~=====:_•••• 
• • • 



Page: 5
Number: 1 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/11/2023 1:35:14 PM 
What does this do?

82



Photo Credit - Horizon Drone Services 

6

83



Jan Feb Mar April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec. 

Release Final 3-4 Chapters to PC for 
Review and Comment

PC 
Review 
& Edits 

Full 
Master 
Plan 
Draft 
Provided

Begin formal adoption process per MPEA (distribution, hearings, etc.)

7

1

84



Page: 7
Number: 1 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/11/2023 1:35:29 PM 
What does this do?

85



8

1

86

Figure 29. Whitewater Tow,uhip Current Zoning Map 

22 

Whitewater Township 

N 

A 
Current Zoning Map 

D 1akn 

Zoning Districts 

0 R1•Resi6fw1tial 

D R2-RKioential 

- R3-Rni6fw1tial 

0RC-R1creelionlll 

0A1-Agri,:ut,..., 

- C1-CD1m'>trical 

DN-1nct.1~riel 

- V\lolage 

D COPUD Corridor 0.--1.., Pl.JD 

D PUO Pl8nnedUnil Devalop,-,t 

r2'.l:J MHPMenuflctu redHcme P• k 

Whitewater Township Master Plan 



Page: 8
Number: 1 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/11/2023 1:35:58 PM 
Unproven map

87



TT H E  P R I M A R Y  F O C U S  I S  T O  C L A R I F Y

9

1

88

Zoning Project Goals -

• Review/ incorporate amendments 
(including locating those missing) 

• Add I update definitions were needed 

• Eliminate redundancy (same 
requirement in more than one place, 
written differently) 

• Produce one MS Word Document. 
Add links to enable users to navigate 
the document. 

• Reorganize so related material is 
next to each other. This includes 
collapsing the number of Articles. 

• Eliminate legal descriptions tot'i.1 
describe zoning districts. Crea!e a 
new official zoning map to be 
adopted. 

• Reviewing for consistency with 
MZEA. 



Page: 9
Number: 1 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/11/2023 1:37:24 PM 
Disagree show lossie road nature trail on a map, then prove it. you cant

89



WW H A T  I S  C U R R E N T LY  B E I N G  AV O I D E D

10

1

2

90

Zoning Project Goals -

• Changes to process and procedures (unless contrary to MZEA) 

• Add or change permitted or special uses. ti.1 

• Changes to development standards (setbacks, lot sizes, b1~ ,Jing heights, etc.) 



Page: 10
Number: 1 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/11/2023 1:38:16 PM 
Add or change permitted uses? Special uses? Public Hearing?

Number: 2 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/11/2023 1:39:52 PM 
Add the township's ability to hire third party plan reviewers so we can get traffic studys, stormwater issues (new vet clinick)

91



DD E V E L O P I N G  A  L I S T  O F  P O T E N T I A L  
A M E N D M E N T S  F O R  T H E  F U T U R E

11

92

Zoning Project Goals -

DA list of areas to be addressed in the future is being generated. 
These represent areas of potentially substantial change. 

• Work on these future amendments also relates to expected 
recommendations generated by the Master Plan. 



July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec. 
Meetings with Clerk, Bob Hall, Ron 
Popp, etc. 

Work on reviewing materials and 
generating draft material   

Draft Articles 1-4 discussed at PC Meetings  PC Discussion on 
Zoning Map 

Work on Zoning Map

Joint Meeting with 
TB and PC to discuss 

12

1

93

Zoning Project - Timeline / Milestones 2023 

D •D •D •D •D •D 



Page: 12
Number: 1 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/11/2023 1:40:27 PM 
What does this do?

94



Jan Feb Mar Apr. May June 

Continue producing draft Articles and discussions at PC Meetings  

Continue work on zoning map

13

95

Zoning Project - Expected Timeline 2024 

D •D •D •D •D •D 

In the future, projecting the number of meetings needed to work through all zoning issues is difficult for several reasons (to be 
discussed) 



 

Township Board:  If you have not already 
reviewed the Master Plan DRAFT Chapters 1-4 
please do so here: 

 

 

 

1496



15

1

97

LIAA~ ) 
Innovative idea -:==>' s for sustainab/ ecommuniti . es smce 1993 



Page: 15
Number: 1 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/13/2023 7:13:23 PM 
How many were mailed? 

98



o
o
o

1699



o

o
o

17

1

2

3

100



Page: 17
Number: 1 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/11/2023 1:47:18 PM 
Where will the pedestrians walk?

Number: 2 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/13/2023 7:23:43 PM 
The developer, thrid party plan reviewer.

Number: 3 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/11/2023 1:48:43 PM 
8 to 10 million

101

'Ii--------------------------------



o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o

o
o

18

1

2

3

102



Page: 18
Number: 1 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/11/2023 1:49:09 PM 
See number 1 above.

Number: 2 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/13/2023 7:28:36 PM 
on what? Possible roads

Number: 3 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/11/2023 1:50:05 PM 
In the works

103

'Ii--------------------------------



o

o
o
o

o

o

o

o
o
o

o

19

1

104



Page: 19
Number: 1 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/11/2023 1:53:28 PM 
this creates a density in consitent with earlier statements 

105



20

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

106



Page: 20
Number: 1 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/11/2023 1:53:54 PM 
R-1 is not low density?

Number: 2 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/11/2023 2:06:32 PM 
What is section 32 for?

Number: 3 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/11/2023 2:07:17 PM 
define it before going any further

Number: 4 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/11/2023 2:09:15 PM 
For the most part our minimum lot size is 1 acre, and some complain that it is too dense

Number: 5 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/11/2023 2:09:56 PM 
What would you replace it with?

Number: 6 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/11/2023 2:20:01 PM 
Do we have A pud 

Number: 7 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/11/2023 2:20:42 PM 
tried this before. it did not work then either.

107



21

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

108



Page: 21
Number: 1 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/11/2023 2:23:11 PM 
In the farm land? in the rural character? 

Number: 2 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/11/2023 2:23:40 PM 
With no parking?

Number: 3 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/11/2023 2:24:34 PM 
Tribal water is available, sewer is not.

Number: 4 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/11/2023 2:25:28 PM 
Does this limit the use of cars?

Number: 5 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/11/2023 2:25:58 PM 
What would this do?

Number: 6 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/11/2023 2:29:07 PM 
What do we need to do, what does it provide?

Number: 7 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/11/2023 2:29:41 PM 
Without sewer you will not have additional density.

Number: 8 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/11/2023 2:30:23 PM 
Hum, update what

Number: 9 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/11/2023 2:31:21 PM 
We have no fire protection water to provide. Significant Industrial development willnot happen without it.

109



22

1

2

3

110



Page: 22
Number: 1 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/11/2023 2:32:29 PM 
How long does it currently take? 
 
Has it been done in two meetings, 60 days?

Number: 2 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/11/2023 2:34:58 PM 
It is currently addressed, the use is not permitted except in bed and breakfast establishments. . 
What does this Mean? Do you want to allow the use or not?  
 

Number: 3 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/11/2023 2:36:42 PM 
The State owns the property, which is likely contaminated. The last time the Township looked at purchasing a parcel the price was 17K for 0.5 acre

111



23112



2015 Master Plan 

24113

Respect the Rights of Township Residents and Property Owners 

•:Re~ ect private property rights as guaranteed by the State of Michigan and Unitede 

#~ates Constitution~•"•• .... •• ••--• • • 

•• 
• E'lourage new development in areas with infrastructure that is available or 

••attainable. : • • • • ••• • • •• 

• 1icourage land uses that are compatible with adjacent land uses. •• . •'- ·••·•· .. 
•~nci lJ.[age the cleanup or containment of blighted and/or contaminated siteC ... . ,.... ... .... ......... . 
• Increase awarei ess of land use issues and the techniques available to address 

land use issues.••• • • • .. • • •• • • 
.. ,,.., ... 

Preserve Whitewater Township's Rural Character• ~:; "'"' 

Encourage development that retains or mimics natu~ I features. • •••,, • 

•• • •• Encourage guidelines that preserve the environmental integrity of Township 
il'•floodplains, wetlands, watersheds and water bodies ••.• •••••••••••• • ••• • • • • 
: Encourage community sewer and water systems in areas of the greatest • 

• environmental need. •• • • •• • • • 

• • Encourage the continuation of hunting, fishing, trapping, and other outdoor 

•" recreational opportunities. •• • ••• • • • ••••"• • • • • .... . 

• 



25114

Green = Yes/Keep Orange = Not sure/Maybe Red = No/Do not keep 

Build a Sense of Community 

S••·· • .-.,sow-age social and cultural activities for year-round and seasonal residents.&.-.• • • • • 
a..4t1cogn•ize and 1;1reserve the scale and compact nature of the commercial district•• 
~ t: ....... . 

• • s~ pport and encourage the development and implementation of a recreation••• 
• I ..... •• • • • i an.• 
• e Encourage 1;1reservation of historically significant features within the Township.••• ••••• •• •• • 

Encourage Economic Opportunities 

9-;upport property owners who engage in home occu~atio~ activities which are in 
\:haracter with the area/neighborhoodl •• •• .. • .... 

~ ~ port business, agricultural production and agritourism.e ----•• ·•I··· ... 
~ t reamlin~ he application process for development.•~:•.f • • • • • 
•'-ncourage municipal infrastructure for the benefit of the Township and areas ofe 

•• the greatest nef d. • • ...... 

I 



Zoning/Land-Use

26115

Alternative Energy 
:ky dot Where should alternative energy facilities be located? GREEN sticky dot 

Where should alternative energy facilities absolutely not be located? RED sticky dot 

• • • • • . : 
• • • • • • • • • • • • •L: • • ! ~ 

• , , , 
I 

I 
I 

' 

-- Major Arterial 

-- Minor Arterial 

-- Local Roads 

-- Battle Creek Trail 

-- Boardman River Trail 

-- Iron Belle Trail 

--North Country Trail 

--Sand Lake Trails 

--Shore to Shore 

--VASA; VASA Marked Singletrack 

State Land 

• Parks 
1 Whitewatet' Towns.tup Pane and Campground 
2 Petobego Creek Net~ralArea 
3 "Hr Pray Paf'k 
4 Battle Creek Natural Area 
S Lossie Road Natute Tra·t 

• Community Facilities 
6 Mill Cfee~ Elementary Sct\ool 
7 W-1tewa\er Tovmship Hall 
8 'v\tl1tewaterTownship EMS 

QlAA· Largesdafori,w,dtt.cilOeSarenot~•n MIC:b9,.,n 
(~ACrtreiONnShip~S04aeso&a,tam,ol'tM•72) 

~ sow o, Vo1tld tacaiotS pt00uce lafgeo-a,n(M'lf$ ot power dl!wered 
to the grid and do not lnclu~ lndM:lual systems seMng d'IC!Mdual 
properu.$ (1,e .• so1a1 ~ oo 1oollopS). Ther~ are no coocnc plftJ'S kW 
an *r,-atrve eM«/1 b::1hty in Vll'lltewamr Townstii,. blJI WM! a,o ~ 
lhoughtS abOOtSUCh 3 laci.ty in the f\aUfe? 

·-------... ---..-~ .. --... ---.----,-,_....,.,Ml __ .,._ ... .,._~ .. --... 
.. _111..,.,..._....__ ·-•----.-~-------

• 

••• 

In past master 
township. Rur. 

Below are sorr 
mostly captun 

You may also I, 

• 

• • • • • 



27116

Preserve, Enhance and Transform 
PRESERVE - these are the things that are great - keep them just how they are! GREEN sticky dot 
ENHANCE - there are already positive things happening here, how can we make them even better? YELLOW sticky dot 
TRANSFORM - what could this look like or how could it be better? RED sticky dot 

-- Major Arterial 

-- Minor Arterial 

-- Local Roads 

-- Battle Creek Trail 

- - Boardman River Trail 

-- Iron Belle Trail 

-- North Country Trail 

-- Sand Lake Trails 

-- Shore to Shore 

--VASA; VASA Marked Singletrack 

State Land 

• Parks 
1 Wlitewater Township Park and Campground 
2 Petobego Creek Natural Area 
3 "HI" Pray Par1< 
4 Battle Creek Natural Alea 
5 lossie Road Nature Trail 

• Community Facilities 
6 Mill Creek Elementary SchOOI 
7 Wlitewater Towns.hip Hall 
8 'M'litewater Township EMS 

• 

C e • • • • • • • • • 1• • • • • • • 

\I 
• • • 
~ 

• • • • • • , , 
F 

Ql4A-t..argeso,ie, 

(N1'kJhbOfiJ'lg Acm4i 
LMge soW Of~ 

to U'8 grid and do n 
j)(l)()el1ies (i.e., soll 
an alterM!Ne enen --sue 



 

 

28117

What else would you like to acknowledge? 

.. 

I 
Q6 .1,.0,.,.ot rur&ldliataetec IS sc,r»ewnt$ m,enooneid as a()()(Qrflwhetl 
new ~1'1. 1$ propo$ed Hc,we,tef, ltlle term wrut81 CIWIM:tef" can 
be vago,e AeMe ll'dit;a.le twO Ol tbt ~ lo,nd,eape elements tt'lal 
Youmosl ~e 'Mth 1\11'111 ~ac&ef tnwn~fef lo'M'lslup. 

-·-_.,. .. ....,....,.,._,. .. -iiw,o,io ___ _... __ ~_ 
~---.... -
........ ------
___.... ........ ......--------

•• 
• j , t 

. . • 



 

 

29118

~ i, 1-~ ~ -e-n-ic_ a_n_d_ --.-~ll•• L ---------.---~ ~~~ -..-----,--------.-----._---, 

Iconic Areas 

--Maio<Arulr\al 

-- M1noJ Artenal 

--Mll\OrRoacSs 

State Land 

e Park 
2 PctobeQOCteell'~S\\.lal~aa 

e Community Fac1lliM 
M•U Cr~ ElieMetlUl,Y SfflOOt 
W/li~'1i!leltownsl'l1pl-W 
,....,,,w.,nerTc,wnstupEMS 

, 
• 



 

 

30119

Q9A - Much of the land South of M-72 in Whitewater Township is 

zoned Recreational (RC-1). The minimum required parcel size in the 

RC-1 District is 5 acres (217,800 square feet - or about 300' x 725'). 

In your mind, is this 5-acre minimum parcel size appropriate in the 
RC-1 District? 

Yes 

No. s acres Is 100 large 

No. 5 acres is too small 

Not Sure 

100 200 300 

Crn>lceCoum 

Yes 

No, s aa'es is too large 

No, s aaes is 100 small 

Not Sure 

Total 

329 

93 

74 

85 

581 



Development 

 

31120

Development: Location 
h hould low-density residential neighborhoods be located? Indicate with a YELLOW sticky dot W ere s .d . I . hb 

Where should higher-density res, entia ne,g orhoods be located? Indicate with a GREEN sticky dot 
Where should commercial development be located? Indicate with a RED sticky dot 

__ Major Arterial 

__ Minor Arterial 

-- Local Roads 
-- Battle Creek Trail 

-- Boardman River Trail 

-- Iron Belle Trail 

--North Country Trail 

-- Sand Lake Trails 

-- Shore to Shore 

--VASA; VASA Marked Singletrack 

State Land 

• Parks 
1 \Mlltewate< Township Park and Campground 
2 Petobego Creek Natura! Area 
3 "Hi" Pray Park 

Battle Creek Natural Area 
Losste Road Nature Trarl 

• Community Facilities 
6 Mui Cree~ Elementary School 
7 \f\tlrtewater Township HaJI 
8 VVhitewater Township EMS 

I 

I 



 

 

32121

I Development: Housing 
the next fe e also know from the 

The U.S. Census is estimating that the township will gain residents over~ wnship is important to the residents . 
. water ,o most recent survey that maintaining the rural character of White 

. • its identity? 
How should the township balance that growth while maintaining 

heir new homes/neighborhoods look like? 
Imagine 500 new residents move into the township - what would t 

. rtain types of housing options - please keep 
You may leave a comment and explain why you do or do not hke ce k GREEN for "Pros" and RED for "Cons" 
comments brief so that others have an opportunity to provide feedbac · 

• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • C ...,.,._,. ., 
' 0 • • • • • I • • • • • • '" ... . ,, • • • • 

'" 

• • • • • •• •• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • ' 
• • • • • • • • • • • • • 

I -



 

 

33122

Development: M-72 
M -72 is the most heavily trafficked corridor in the township and it Is the only region that would be considered traditional 
commercial development. It is a major throughfare that drivers pass through on their way to or from Traverse City. 

What should the development in this corridor look like? Below are some photos that show current buildings along the 
corridor as well as some samples from other communities. Use a GREEN dot If you like it and a RED dot if you do not. 

You may leave a comment and explain why you do or do not like something - please keep comments brief so that others 
have an opportunity to provide feedback. GREEN for "Pros" and RED for "Cons" 

• • •• • • • •• • • • • • • • • • •• • • • • • • • • • • • • 
• 

• 
• 

• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • ~ • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • 

#1 Scenica-:1_ • ___ _ ------------- \ 

I 



 

 

34123

-

Downtown Williamsburg is located near the intersection of Williamsburg Road/Elk Lak R h past, 
·d d "t d.'"' I" d e oad and Old M-72 In t e . g there was what some may have cons1 ere a ra 1 .. ona owntown. Residents have . d. · . hav1n 

. in 1cated there is interest in a traditional downtown again. 

What should the downtown look like? Below are some p~otos that show current buildings along the corridor as well as 
some samples from other communities. Use a GREEN dot 1f you like it and a RED dot if you do not. 

You may leave a comment and explain what you do or do not like in any of the pictures _ please keep comments brief so 
that others have an opportunity to provide feedback. Green for "Pros" and Red for "Cons" 

• • • 
• • 

• 

• • 

• • 

• •• 
• 

• 

• • • 
• • 
• • 

• 
• • • • 

• • 

• 
• • • • • 

• • 

• 
• 

Q'i 
co<; ..,, ... , 
,eel ... 

·-··-



 

 

35124

-.... 

£:l.,.cfr,f.: G.,. "-';l H,,;~-, 
~ h-1.\-4,., <2°(;.0VOl,,oo'lt_11 C\i ...... 1-... .. 

• • • • 

• • 

• • • 

• 



Infrastructure 

 

36125

Infrastructure: Facilities 

Fire/EMS 

Comments 
• 

jJ\ A 

• 

Do you feel the Emergency Service . . 
adequate? sin Whitewater Township are 

Should the Fire/EMS Building b · e improved/updated? 

Public Transportation 

Comments 
••• • 

Do you feel that public transportation services are adequate? • y,, 
Currently, there are no bus stops in the township- should there be? If 

so, where? 

- -------- - -

Township Hall 

Should the Township offices be improved/updated? 
What types of updates would improve services? 

c,.,,,.,.;, bv,1&•~ <'••-, =;1•1 ....,.i., •• • • 

--' ,., ......... ~,.-,...;., 
,..i •.\."' -',.er 

.• • 

1'ul'f«(.....r 
i:S ~ MIIISf-/ 

0.,-~ ,..,J, 
,.. A.1.-}k. •.• 

• 
• 

• 

• 



 

 

37126

One s.i nificant trail in Whitewat~r Township is the Iron Belle Trail which connects e_elle Isle (in ~he Detroit River near 
g Oetroitl to lfOl'IWood 1n the western Uppet Peninsula. The Iron Belle Trail Is 2,000 mdes long and It crisscrosses 

downtown h If of Michigan's counties along two distinct hiking and blking routes. The biking route utilizes many of the 
more tha~stl• bilce paths, btke lanes and designated biking routes as it travels up the east side of 1he state. The hiking 
state's ex1 rig . , route (whith goes through Whitewater Tow_nshlp) utilizes sidewalks, trails, and the 1,000-mile plus North Coun~ry 
N . al SC:ef"lit TraTI uavelin& up the wes:l side of t he Lower Penrnsula. The lrail Is still under development and 1s more 
th:tlno;wo-,hirds complete. When done, it will be the longest state.designated trail in the nation. The west leg of the Iron 

Bell!! Trail travels through southern Whitewater Township. 
An lllustration of all trails in Whitewater fownshlp is provlded to the right. It should also be noted that fART (Traverse 
Area Recreation and rransportatiofl Trails, Inc.) is a loc.al S01(c)(3) nonprofit organization. The mission of this organizat1on 

h to provide and p,omote a trail network that enriches people and communities throughout the greater Grand Traverse 
region. The TART Trail network is within and near Whitewater Township. The Boardman/Ottaway River Trail Is a 24-mile 

trail that crosses Supply Road west of Williamsburg Road. 

--Major Artertal 
- - Minor Arterial 

- - Local Roads 

- - Baltte Creek Trail 
- - Boardman River Trail 

--Iron Belle Trail 

--North Country Trail 

--Sand Lake Trals 

--Shore to Shore 
--VAf',A; VASA Marked Singletrack 

What are your thoughts on the trails? 

Do we need more? If so, where? 

State Land 

• Parks 
1 ~~Pai1Cfll'ldC8mpgrolm 
2 PcictieQOCttiekN&.1\nllAIH 
3 "W PrayPalt 
• Bai:18 c:::.rofk NNa!Almi 
5 LDWe~N-..'~Trail 

• Community Facilities 
M,IQ-e,di:~Sd'loot 
'MlitewlMfTowt'lulpHd 
~Towns.tlPEMS 

Are t he township trai ls adequately connected to 

the region? 
What facilities need t o be added or improved? 

1(-,, I / -i,:,{: 



38127

Infrastructure: M-72 
M-72 is a high-speed, heavily trafficked corridor that is the center of commerc.lal development in the township. 
There are a number of reasons why it is i mportant to consider what infrastructure in this corridor will look like as 
more businesses change ownership or new businesses are developed. 

Combining acc.ess drives, also known as dr'iveway consolidation or access management, ts a planning and design 
strategy used in transportation and urban development to improve safety, traffic flow, and overall efficiency. 
Access management should be carefully planned and el'iecuted to balance the needs of various stakeholders, 
Including property owners, businesses, commuters, pedestrians, and local communities. Here are Se'\'E:ral reasons 
why combining access drives might be implemented: 

Safety Improvement: One of the primary reasons for combining access drives is to enhance safety on roads and 
streets. Multiple driveways or access points close to one another can lead to conflicts between vehicles and 
pedestrians, create weaving movements, and increase the risk of accidents. Bv tonsolidating access points., 
you can reduce the number of cont11ct points and improve safety for all road users. 

Traffic Flow: Multiple access points can disrupt the now of traffic by causing congestion, especially during peak 
hours. Combining access drives can reduce congestion and Improve the overall traffic flow, benefiting both 
commuters and businesses in the area. 

Efficiency: Consolidating access drives can improve the efficiency of transportation networks. When access 
points are combined or reduced, it can lead to smoother traffic. operations, shorter travel times, and reduced 
delays for motorists. 

Pedestrian Safety: Access management is not only about vehic.1es; it also takes into consideration the safety and 
convenience of pedestrians. Fewet access points mean fewer potential conflicts between pedestrians and 
vehicles, making It safer for people walking or using crosswalks. 

Accessibility: Improving access management can enhance accessibility for individuals with djsabilities. Well• 
designed access points can provide safe and convenient crossing opportunities for people with mobility 
impairments. 

Land Use Planning: Combining access drives is often part of a broader urban planning strategy. It can help guide 
and control development in a way that ensures the efficient use of land and promotes a more sustainable, 
walkable, and transit-friendly urban environment. 

Economic Benefits: Enhanced access management can benefit businesses by improving the visibllity and 
accessibility of commercial properties. When access points are strategically located and consolidated, it can 
make it easier for customers to access bus[nesse.s, boosting their economic viability. 

Aesthetics: Combining access drives can lead to a more aestheticalty pleasing streetscal)C'. It can reduce vlsual 
clutter and create a more attractive environment for residents and visitors. 

Environmental Impact: Reduced congestion and smoother traffic now resulti~g from access manage~ent_ ~an 
contribute to lower fuel consumption and reduced emis.sions., which align with environmental sustainability 

goals. 

-n-... 

Source.! Ccmcr for 'T'n:nsportMioo R.efarth and Ed~. Iowa State 
!Jri!'Ymity, /owo ,fa:,c;u MOJJO(fffl,,t?,I Gtd4d>oot,0c:IObc:r 2000,p. 19. 

~ 9L l®::Pf11 
I 

~GiL~w 

Combined access drives for multiple buslne.sses provide [mproved safety for motoriSt:s. 
limited crossing paints for pedestrfans decreases the opportunity for vehic.le/ 
pedestrian accidents. Uniform landscaping and development patterns create an 

aesthetically improved look. 

unregulated .access drives lead to reduced pedestdan and motorist sarety by Increasing 
the opportunities for vehicular dece1erat1on and more polnts of conflict. It can also lead 
to drlver confusion when looking for a drive to access a specific bus1nes.s. 

1 
. 

1 
ti ns to improve the M-72 corridor to assure that it remains safe, 

Would you support the township deve oping r~gu a o "YES" and RED for "NO" • 
efficient, and an economic hub for the township? GREEN for 

• • • J ... ' 

• • • • 
YES • •• 

• 
••••• 
\ ... 
• • 

• 
• • • • 

• 
NO 



 

 

39128

vVov(d yov ~e It'\ r~vc-; 6 ( '->e,')\,c .( \e,{ (\ p 1 \.A,J 

(JVl (,+ ••• 

• l\\D 



 

 

40129

..,, §' :aa ... (.,.,......,....,,,,.BO)ol-•""""'~ ~ 
t,orne,~ll'l10rne~and1ti1J~tspart,c1Aarty 
POpUfN ti N'Ocdittn M Ch9i!f! tlWI tHm "Shct!.-..c,m rem.al' l)'J)ielily 
moans Ult, rtir.wo1 a0wc-ang l#UI r0fae»o,111A30 ~ da,s 
'IJhai111e)'OIA'flougl'itsaboul'MleVl«,Mn,1~t$f'lt(ilS:Shoo,lldbe 

•~In V41l1e-.... a1E1 r~('~-A 8W and8reakfWGdllicter1 
front a Sl'IOn-term1el'lf.a) and JS pe,lflllUed ~111 Spec.ai'USeinVll)i:ewooe,c 
TOY,rtstJ!p,oYICIStaleifiwCOUldchangel)OWe!OCM;ove,n~rn;ry 
f~la-.e sll('ifNerrn rCl"ICM, II lflC IWlft) 

_,....._........,,.,._ .. ____ -----.......... _ _...,. _ __,_,..._ 
-----~-• ..... i-.-...,_M .._,. ---------·--·--"""",_,_....., ---... --,-~ 

~o 



 

 

41130

o acknowledge? 



42131



Whitewater Township Planning Principles, Goals, and 
Implementation 

 

 
 

 
 

   
  

  
      

  
  

 

S -  
M   
A  
R  
T -  
 

 
   

   

   

 

43132



Planning Principle:  Respect the Rights of the Township Residents and 
Property Owners. 
 
Context: The rights of residents and property owners can be infringed upon in several ways.  These include: 
 

1. No one is served by poorly drafted or ambiguous zoning requirements that create confusion, permitting delays, 
and legal challenges.   

2. A lack of consistent zoning enforcement can leave property owners unprotected from nuisances and diminish 
property values.   

3. Blighted areas in Whitewater Township reduce property values and discourage investment.  
4. Existing permitted and special uses in various zoning districts 

uses are currently allowed in the industrial zone). 
5. Effective and reasonable landscaping requirements in the zoning ordinance can mitigate visual and noise 

impacts between dissimilar land uses.     
 

s

H -

  
 

X  

u
 

   

X  

 
 

   

X X 

  
 

 -  

X  

- .   

 

X X 

(   
-     

X X 

44133



Planning Principle:  Preserve Whitewater Township’s Rural Character 

Context: Residents value the rural character of Whitewater Township and want to preserve it.   Additionally: 

1. To residents, the area's rural character is the presence of orchards, farm stands, other agricultural land, woodlots
and forests, and extended views of undeveloped land across the landscape.

2. Preserving rural character also includes protecting the environmental 
wetlands, watersheds, and water bodies.

3. Land east of Cook Road on M-72 is largely zoned A-1.
4. There is strong support for agricultural tourism as a broad category of activities that can include roadside stands, u-

pick operations, and other activities incidental to the operation of a farm that brings members of the public to the
farm for educational, recreational, or retail purposes.

s

 X 

- -
-   

- -  -

X 

 

X 

u o
 - X 

.  
 

-  
-

X 

-  
-  

-
 

-

X 

 
  

 

X 

Re-e .  

 
  

 

X

45

1

2

3

134

gJ 

gJ 

gJ 



Page: 45
Number: 1 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/11/2023 3:09:15 PM 
Remember A-1 allows 1 single wide mobile home every 40k sqft. 

Number: 2 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/11/2023 3:10:44 PM 
Puds will not be a development strategy until water, sewer and other utilities are present.

Number: 3 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/11/2023 3:12:54 PM 
Tried already Red FLAGS

135

'Ii--------------------------------



Planning Principle:  Build a Sense of Community 

Context: Like many small rural communities, W  sense of place 
common in cities and villages.  However, Williamsburg was once a commercial center, but many buildings are now gone.  
Additionally:    

1. Three out of four survey respondents want to encourage redevelopment of Williamsburg, north of M-72, into a
downtown-type setting with small-scale retail, commercial services, restaurants, and upper-

2. Most, if not all, -
and the Methodist Church).

3. senior programs, etc.)

4. The area west of Elk Lake Road and North of M-72 is zoned “V” 
5. Residents point to the need to develop more convenient bike trails and walking paths in Whitewater Township.

More non-motorized transportation options in Whitewater Township would help build a sense of community.
s

(
M- west

- - -
   

 
   

X 

- west
   

 

X 

-
   X X 

   
 

 

X 

-  
  -   

 -  
   

 

X 

  
  

-
 

X 

 
  

 
 

X 

46

o a 1

2

3

4

5

6

7

136



Page: 46
Number: 1 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/11/2023 3:13:51 PM 
Water and sewer needed

Number: 2 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/11/2023 3:15:46 PM 
How many do we need? Elk Rapids has two?

Number: 3 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/11/2023 3:18:28 PM 
Not sure trails would build community. Moreover, the parks and trails we now have are not well maintained except those at the camping park which is self 
funding. 
 
Plan on the maintenance before more development.

Number: 4 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/11/2023 3:21:40 PM 
Building are very close to what is considered the roadway. Parking will have to be incorporated into building design or underground. 
 
Consideration should be given to this district being purchased by the Township. Then a devlopment plan could be established where the township is the 
landlord.

Number: 5 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/11/2023 3:22:41 PM 
See above suggestion

Number: 6 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/11/2023 3:25:16 PM 
I don't buy the MPO, it is a scheme similar to the road commission asking for millage money and sending that money to different area. 
 
This proposal is to get additional revenue for Networks Northwest at the cost of tax payers.

Number: 7 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/11/2023 3:31:03 PM 
If you combined all 1800 parcels of whitewater township in a special assessment district to fund a 12M dollar investment that would be in the 6K 
neighborhood. Then to operate the system another 750K annually would be needed and that system only covers N,V and some of commercial. 
 

137

'Ii--------------------------------



Planning Principle:  Encourage Economic Opportunities 

Context: Whitewater Township is pro-business and seeks to provide an environment wherein people can succeed 
economically. Additionally:  
 
1. -72, West of Williamsburg Rd and east of Moore 

Road).  It is home to several light industrial uses that provide jobs and a local tax base.   
2. The M- s 

generally 
driveways, limited site lighting, and extensive landscaping.   

s

   
-

 

 X 

-

 
 

X  

-

   
     

X  

-1
-  -

 

 

X  

- -
 

 
 

X  

  

 - -
 

 X 

    
-

 
 

  

 X 

  

47

1

2

3

4

138

gJ 

gJ 

gJ 

gJ 



Page: 47
Number: 1 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/11/2023 3:34:19 PM 
Before spending a lot of time on this question do a build out lite analysis just to see how many parcels can be improved in this manner. 

Number: 2 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/11/2023 3:36:37 PM 
See above comment to define compelling sites before spending a lot of time on this.

Number: 3 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/11/2023 3:38:17 PM 
Voluntary is a waste of time unless you provide some incentives for additional cost. 

Number: 4 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/11/2023 3:40:34 PM 
Would this be a dead end trail? Rail right of way stops at Elk Lake Road?

139

'Ii--------------------------------



48140



 

 
WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP

PLANNING WORKSHOP RESOURCES 

Whitewater Township Master Plan Update 

 

 

 

GENERAL ZONING  INFORMATION  
Like most Michigan Townships, Whitewater has a Zoning Ordinance.  It was first adopted in 1972 
and it divides the township into 11 Zoning Districts (see map).  Each zoning district allows certain 
land uses.  Some uses are “permitted” and some are “special uses.”   Special uses require 
Planning Commission review and approval.  Each zoning district has development standards 
(minimum lot sizes, building setbacks, etc.).  These are summarized below:  

R-1 RESIDENTIAL  

Permitted Uses Such As: Single family dwellings, 
parks, churches (less than 5,000 square feet), etc.  

Special Uses Such As: Bed and Breakfasts, 
churches (more than 5,000 square feet), Planned 
Unit Developments  

Minimum Lot Size:  20,000 square feet 

R-2 RESIDENTIAL  

Permitted Uses Such As: All uses permitted in R-1, 
two family dwellings, schools, libraries.  

Special Uses Such As: All special uses in R-1, 
Nursing homes,  

Minimum Lot Size:  12,000 square feet (1 fam.), 
22,000 (2 fam.) 

R-3 RESIDENTIAL  

Permitted Uses Such As: All uses permitted in R-2, 
two family dwellings, schools, libraries.  

Special Uses Such As: All special uses in R-2, multi-
family dwellings, townhouses and apartments  

Minimum Lot Size:  12,000 square feet (1 fam.), 
11,000 square feet per dwelling unit.  
 

C-1 Commercial   

Permitted Uses Such As: All uses allowed in R-1 
and R-2, restaurants, offices, retail stores, 
equipment rental, personal services, daycare, 
churches. 

Special Uses Such As:  Any use in a building more 
than 10,000 square feet, drive thru, indoor 
recreation, multi-family, vet clinics, storage 
buildings, etc.  

Minimum Lot Size:  N/A  

V Village   

Permitted Uses Such As: All uses allowed in R-1, R-
2, R-3 and C in buildings with a footprint of less than 
5,000 square feet, apartments and offices located 
above commercial uses in mixed-use buildings 

Special Uses Such As:  Permitted Uses allowed in 
the R1, R2, R3, and C districts in buildings with a 
building footprint of 5,000 square feet or more, and 
any use in a building which exceeds 5,000 square 
feet, and drive-through services, or live 
entertainment., 

Minimum Lot Size:  NA 

49141



WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP
PLANNING WORKSHOP RESOURCES 

Whitewater Township Master Plan Update 

N Industrial 

Permitted Uses Such As: All uses permitted and as 
regulated within the Commercial, Village, and 
Residential Districts, wholesale warehouses, storage 
warehouses, billboards.  

Special Uses Such As:   Junk, scrap metal, or 
salvage yards, stock yards, slaughterhouses, 
rendering plants, meat or pelt processing 
establishments, heavy industry such as smelters, 
foundries, heavy industrial stamping operations, all 
special uses permitted within the Commercial, 
Village, and Residential Districts.  

Minimum Lot Size:  N/A 

A-1 Agricultural

Permitted Uses Such As: All uses permitted and as 
regulated in Residential District R- 2, Farming of all 
types, including the construction and maintenance 
of migrant worker's quarters, Riding academies and 
stables, veterinarian hospitals and kennels, farm 
markets, private family campgrounds.  

Special Uses Such As:   Commercial Campgrounds 

Minimum Lot Size:  40,000 square feet 

RC-1 Recreational 

Permitted Uses Such As: All uses permitted and as 
regulated within R-2, Bed and breakfast 
establishments providing tourist/vacation 
accommodations, private family campgrounds, 
riding academies and stables, veterinarian hospitals 
and kennels, hydro-electric plants, State-owned 
conservation lands. 

Special Uses Such As:  Planned Unit Developments, 
commercial campgrounds 

Minimum Lot Size:  5 Acres 

50142



WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP 
PLANNING WORKSHOP RESOURCES 

Whitewater Township Master Plan Update 

Images: Dealing with Change in the Connecticut River Vally:  A Design Manual 
for Conservation and Development.  Lincoln Institute of Land Policy 

Planned Unit Developments (PUD)  
A PUD is a broad category of zoning that allows for more creativity in land planning, site design, 
and the protection of environmentally sensitive lands not possible with conventional zoning and 
development practices.  A PUD can allow for more compact development with common open 
space making, it easier to preserve environmental and scenic attributes of a site.  PUDs often allow 
for smaller lots on some parts of the site in exchange for permanently preserved common open 
space elsewhere on the site.   They can also allow for mixed uses (different housing types and non-
residential uses).   

Conventional Development 

Cluster Option with Preserved Open Space 

Conventional Development 

Cluster Option with Preserved Open Space 

51

ts1

2

143



Page: 51
Number: 1 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/11/2023 3:43:36 PM 
why use a pud when you have site condo? No rules just underlying density

Number: 2 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/11/2023 3:53:27 PM 
The concept works on paper however, for the individual this is a densely populated area

144



WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP
PLANNING WORKSHOP RESOURCES 

Whitewater Township Master Plan Update 

Evaluates a community’s zoning ordinance and how 
it meets community goals, enables the form and 
type of development the community is seeking and 
includes modern approaches to zoning. Zoning is a 
key tool for plan implementation and obsolete 
zoning regulations can discourage development and 
investment.  

Evaluates the community’s development review 
policies and procedures to ensure they integrate 
predictability throughout. Unnecessary steps or 
unclear instructions increase time and expenses 
associated with development. Community leaders 
should look to simplify and clarify policies and 
increase efficiency to create an inviting development 
climate that is vital to attracting investment. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

REDEVELOPMENT READY 
CCOMMUNITIES (RRC) 
Several years ago, the Michigan Economic Development Corporation (MEDC) created a program 
called Redevelopment Ready Communities (RRC).  RRC is a voluntary technical assistance 
program offered by the (MEDC) to empower communities by building a strong foundation of 
planning, zoning, and economic development best practices.  RRC Technical Assistance (RRC TA) 
match funding is available. 

Some area communities now involved in the RRC program include: East Bay Charter Twp., Elk Rapids, Ellsworth, 

Garfield Charter Twp., Kalkaska, and Mancelona. 

Best Practice – 1 (Plans & Engagement) 
Evaluates community planning and how a 
community’s redevelopment vision is embedded in 
the master plan, capital improvements plan, and 
downtown plan or corridor plan(s). It also assesses 
how a community identifies its stakeholders and 
engages them, not only during planning processes, 
but on a continual basis. 

Best Practice 2 (Zoning) 

Best Practice 3 (Development Review) 

Assesses the tools a community has put in place to 
strengthen their boards and commissions. Diversity 
on boards and commissions can ensure a wide range 
of perspectives are considered when making 
decisions on development and financial incentives. 
Being intentional when a community conducts 
recruitment and orientation for newly appointed or 
elected officials and board members creates a solid 
foundation for the community to build upon. 

Best Practice 4 (Boards & Commissions) 

Best Practice 5 (Economic Development & 
Marketing) 

Assess the community’s plans to strengthen its 
overall economic health and market itself to create 
community pride and increase investor confidence. 
Today, economic development means more than 
business attraction and retention. While business 
development is a core value, a community needs to 
include community development and talent in the 
overall equation for economic success. 

Best Practice 6 (Redevelopment Ready Sites) 

Assesses how a community identifies, envisions, and 
markets their priority redevelopment sites. Instead of 
waiting for developers to propose projects, 
Redevelopment Ready Communities identify priority 
sites and prepare information to assist developers in 
finding opportunities that match the community’s vision. 

52145



53146



Planning Principle:  Respect the Rights of the Township Residents and Property Owners 

 

54147

1clude: 

se impacts be-

I" 
I' 
.... 



Planning Principle:  Preserve Whitewater Township’s Rural Character 

55148

£J~s? 
~ . + ~~-s_) -=ti-I , .:,. 3 . · 

* WQY)f /_of- Sj ;JZ l'Y1 I (It Yl1l£&j 
-+ D>p11, -1z:, w ;cU 1-. /?<ii ffe!Jco "k:Ane,( 

(do~ ~-k ~ /qr~r>) 
( 4-, . 

.¥ I ,...---~k..-1or~ ~ 1.1e,ess.'b-1o 4 .i,,;,;n-fiin ~ 
u ~rctC..-kY' 

11, .;i v:_ "'"-' o¼, •• .....,, ~iii., 0( "'7-li: a( ~ ..1l-l, ~h~I& 1 
~1" ~~41:Q ~ ~ 
3 ShOt.t/d ~ t_5 

~ U\;)) ~ " 

s ~ ii( be.'? 
7 ~;,1 ~ f 



Planning Principle:  Build a Sense of Community 

56149

/ ,) [_ X? A A) V 1\/0€-rt-,+ \N ~Y, 
ro pu () _'.. ~ l ( b rf ~2... IJE AJS 1-r-/ 

~ I; 2.) V / l-./,.._(\ 02 GE,ug2ft-(_ 

z_u I\..), .JJ ~ N ec---r>~ ,u l?e 
C,}{A,vl::EO - NO f<--f J /2..-2J Q-_3 

P&<-SAJ-t - r<es<~,AJ714L 1/J<-LC,J()e[) 

Bt/f IN(_ 1 oe-;ff,4L- /Z) C a /1 H (rt,c IA-<....... 

o(Z... TZJtv Al 1--f v 1'1 "'/ C. d -dJ o 7t-f PGF /:Je-v J7f'1 

J _) Sc, l.JE-rc • w~ ~ lJ 1 
- \.1er2-y eRr t"NS111e 
- t/<. l: t\-1,rvt EAl'r- P-A<., l: L ( M 

y) !31__ J ')1-(/ 

3M 

I 



Planning Principle:  Encourage Economic  

57150



Master Plan e (ROS) Update: 

The ROS was instrumental in assisting the PC with the planning, preparing, and 
executing the Citizen Engagement portions (Survey, Open House, and Workshop) 
of the Master Plan.  Thanks to their focused efforts, we now have a deeper 
understanding of public attitudes toward important planning issues facing 
Whitewater Township.   As we move into the final plan development phase of the 
process, the PC asked the ROS team to pause their formal activity and allow the 
PC to work through proposed goals, policies, and initiatives that will be central to 
the updated Master Plan.  The PC has, however, encouraged the ROS team to 
attend and participate in the Master Plan discussions at our Regular PC 
meetings.  We value their feedback, insight, and review to ensure we continue to 
reflect the valuable citizen feedback as the remaining Draft Chapters come to 
fruition. 

An important part of the updated Master Plan will be the identification of larger 
Zoning Ordinance updates necessary to achieve the goals identified in our Master 
Plan.  This is beyond the current effort to clarify the zoning ordinance and provide 
a more suitable foundation for more significant changes and updates.   When this 
happens, it will be invaluable to utilize this knowledgeable, dedicated, and hard-
working team to make sure we are following the direction indicated by our citizen 
participation efforts. 

58151



The following screen shots are taken from the TB Board Regular 
(pages 215-218) to illustrate and help 

prepare the TB for their ’  
 

59152

MICHIGAN 
TOWNSHIPS 

ASSOCIATION 



60153

CHAPTER 15; I and Use 

A planning commiss,on mus.! .1dopt b)·l.,~ aJld k~ep minutes, indudrng 
1t, resolut'k,ns, transactions, findulgs and dctcrmittahonS, (MCl 125.3819) 

Budget 
A pfa.1\ning: commission mll.s4 make an annual written rq1orl to the 
towmhip bo.u-d concerning its operations and the status of planning 
1ctivi1ies, including rccommendat10JlS teg;1rding actions by the 
townsbip boord related to planning and development, (MCL 12$ . .).819> 

Afte1 preparing the annual report, a plannjng cornrniss1on may prerare 
a dctaiJcdbudget aild submit 1he hudgct to the township board for 
apprcwal or disapproval The township bo.'\td anauall)' ma)' appropria1e 
fun& for :arrying out th.e purposes :ind functions permitted under 
this act. and may match local government funds with f«icral, stale:, 
county or other local government or priv·ate grants, contributions or 
endowments, (MCL llS.3823) 

Planning ,:ommi.ssion membC'rs may bC' rdmburstd for C'.xpcnses and 
ma>' recei•re compensation as fixed b)' the tO\\'nShip board. (MCL 
12S.3823) 

A towns.hp boord m.1y employ a planning dlrc,ctot and 01ht1 pnsonu<I 
as it oonstjtrS ue-..essary. contr.act for the Krvices of planning and other 
techniciars, and Incur other expenses within a budge1 au1hon2:«1 by 
1he IC'lwn...:1ip ho.:ml A rnwn"'hip Mi1rd rC'lultl .-lt<lr-g;1tt' 1hi,; :mthn.rit}' to 

the planning commission or ,mother official. {MCL JlS.3$2$) 

Master plan 
The planning c-0mm1sslon Is. required 10 deveJop and t<,onunt11d ;i 
'";1s1er plm for the future <levelopment of th< township and whkh 
would gui:lc fut~ zonmg ordinanc< amendment decislOns. {MCL 
12S.383 I) 

The mai.tcr plan C'.an cover anticipalcd dcvclopmC'nt o( the township 
over the n!Xt 20 years or more. (MCL 125.3833) 

To ac.:ommodate ooopr-ration, the commission 1s required to send 
no11ce o(i'.S mteo1,on cooctm1,ig 1h.e Cuture de...d-01-,men1 of the 
township 10 the planning commission of each contiguoui< local umt Qf 
governmeu that has a pl.aomng commis~ion or to th(' legiWah\'(' body-

355 



61154

QI APTER 15: Land t,se 

of such contib'UOUS unil'i th;u do not h,we: such pfanning comrnission. 
h mu.st .-ho send uoclcc: of its intentions to the count}' planning 
commh:.1on or 10 the c&unty board of commissioners m counucs thlll 
do not have su,;,:h rlanning oommissiom.. In addition, 11 must similarly 
nohf)· tich public utility company and railroad com pan)' rcgistn-ed 
W>th the township for s.1ch Ltotification, to the cowlf)' road commission 
and l() the state transpc4'tllion department if the plans include masttt 
~reet plans. Such 11oticrs shOllld request the recipient's coopcrat1on 
:md conuneot. and mar be accomphshed h}' lirsH.l.lss mail or p,efSQna.l 
d;Uvcry. (MCL l25.38l9) 

A planning comm1$S.io:1 should be prepared to ha\'C the .11ssistance of:,. 
rn1fe:ssional planner MJ township attorney in drafting a mast et plan\t' '&t}t/\Oll·r x,.-,. 
.\tit'r 1he proposed ma,ll!• plan h.a.s lxen prepan:d. il .shall be submtued 4 J 1 ,~ 14 __ 
to tl,e town.ship l:>o;.\rJ for tC"\'ltW .1.,nd commtnt After the township 
b<.1Md h.u appro\'ed the distribution o( 1he pbn, a copy -:hall then be 
t ubm111,~d H'I uch of tJ.e fot,:,gning unit~ pW.\' lot.1li.lf required to be 
nollficd of lhe pbnnin; commission'li. inttntion.~ (MC:L 125..384 l) 

Tht· pllnning comn'l.~l• 1l mus1 wail al le3.St 63 dap for the rtccipt of 
•nr <..oinmcnls from thO'Se re-ct!iving the prop0$<d master plan. h n.ms1 
then holJ 1101 k.$ th.ir one public hearing on the proposal, preceded 
b)' not less 1h,m 15 da~ published notke in a newspaper of genera.I 
i;. iri;ulation \\·ithin the .uwn.:;,Mp. Such notice must also be given to 
aJJ enl1ttes ixe,•1ou.d)' notified. which ooth'.1! could accompafl)' the 
origin.ii submi~ ion of1he proposed pl,m ra1he, th:m any subsequent 
:1oc1ticauon. {MC L 125.l84J) 

f·oUowmg the-public heuing. the pfan.n.ing c(lmmission may-:tpprovc 
the proposc-d master ~.m or any changes lhtrtlC> by resolution of a 
mlJOritr of ils mcmbe·M'11p. To,s lppro1"l..l ls vt'ri6ed hr th~ $lgn.aru.re of 
1he 1.hi1rprr5on or ..ccrC'1arr on tht· J1bMe of the front or b.ickcover of 
the prop05<"d plan h nQ!.l lhtu l.>1:- i.ul,mith:J tu tJ1c l0\"tt$hip baa.rd for 
liJl.ll ,,dopcion if the township bo,an-1 has assencd its linaJ .:iuthorhy in 
thb ..:onne,11011 

\\'here the township board hllS resen.·td its final approval and upon 
n:.,1cw has rejected th, proposed plan, u mu~ then be r«.-00$.idered by 



62155

CHAPTER 15; I ard lls,e 

thcplru,ning commission (ollowlng a further p1.1blic h(anng pre<cded 
br the nouficauon rtqu1rcd for 1ht 1~1~1 vubti.:: hciu,ng. (~ICL 12$.lSJJ) 
Thi'; proctss is repealed unul approval by d1t wwn..ship botuJ. 

Amendments lO tJ1e masttr plan for tht most part follow the ).uni: 
pr<ccdure as prc,·iously requir.:<I; however, lhe 63•day pc:uod is 
reduced to 41 day$ for rmivlng cOu\ments froru lhe mtcr~kd ,ntitks. 
Gnmma1ical. typographical or similar editorial change may lx 11\ildc 
without following thJS process for amendment. (MCL 125.3345) 

Al lea.st c,'tr)' 6ve years after adoption ol' a m..a.stcr plan, the pl.tming 
commission must rc,•1e~' the mast~r plan a.nd determine wheth,r 10 
amend the.' masttt plan or adopt a new master plan. The re,,,ew ind its 
findings m\1$1 be recorded in the plainnlng commJSSlOn minutes (MCI. 
12).3845) 

Additional planning c.ommlssion authority 
Before a Slt~t. park, open space, public building or other SlTUcture 
<W'I be authorized ot oonstrucled ul an area '°''Cftd by the lowll.)hip\ 
m1$ter plan. the location, thara,ter and extent of the project or urility 
must be submitted to the planning eoirunlssion by the township board 
oro1he-r body h;whlgjurisdiction Q\'er the aulhonzatkm or linan,1.llg 
of the ptoject for the planning commjs&1on's review ant.I appronl 
The pl.ornlng commj$.)JOn must submit its re.:isons for :.iipprovalor 
disapproval to the subn:itting bod)~ Ii it disapprO\'ts. the propos.iJ. the 
su:,mlning body may overrule tht disapproval by :,1 vote of not less th:tn 
nro•thirds of the bod r's mtmbership. If the planning commlssi)n fails 
to act on the submission within :JS day$. the prop<>sed proJCct shall be 
cmsidc~d 3ppro\1cd. (MCL l25.3861) 

If the towmhip own$ or operates 3 water supply ot sewage dispo:.;,il 
syntm !ndMdua11)· or jointly with aMther unit or luti1S of gonmmeru. 
then th( planning comm1:s:11011 must annually pri.p,uc a oapit•I 
impro,•tmtot program of public structures and hnprovcm<'nb. Toe 
phnning commission mu!it prioritize the reconimendcd prQJ«IS 
1M1, in itsopm100, are nc<'dcd ;'IJ\d can b<' accompll.sh<d w1thin the 
cr,umg six-year ptrn:xt Upon request of the pla.rud1\g com.mis.ion. 
tl-ose in charge of the pro}e<t shaU furmsh the commiMion whh lists. 
plans.. and eslunates of time and costs of the proposed improvements. 

357 



The following 3 pages were taken from the 05/17/2023 TB/PC Joint meeting
Packet. Included here as a reminder and validation of the PC's Zoning 
Project Visions and Goals. 
https://www.whitewatertownship.org/uploads/2/1/9/6/21966412/pc_tb_joint_special_meeting_packet_05.17.2023.pdf

63

1

156

TAB 1 

The Plannilng Commissions Vis.ion 

TODAY 

liihe Whiltewsiter Tim shi p Pla.rnning Comrni:ssio rn believes, ·li:hat t h e eiciS' ·mg zoning ordina rnoe 

n eeds substantial aUent i:onL Since fJliSI: adopted in 197-2, it has, n_olt um ferg.one a 

comprehelliSi !o'e updalte kl lc:eep pace w it h land deYelapmenlt ·1trends or regu'laklry beslt 

pracilli ces. While it !has been ended many t imes over ·liihe yea~ ·m addres,s, specific issues 

S\gnincan.t averani:h" g shoritoom·ngs, are e'ilident. These indude: 

1. lfihe m ni ng @rdin artce seems to now exist a:s a series, of independenrt chapters ·n 

wrio u-s mnnats.. A zoning ordinance sh@u Id be one highly 'interrelated un iform 

document. De nition-s should be used ams.·isJtentl·t th rnugjMlult t he ®rdin ance an d 

m aiterjal !ih®ulcl be propet"ly cros,s,--:referem:ed ·liJhrough@l!liL How-ei.rer, since we do nolt 

ha!o'e a single doaimenlt in a format s:udh as, MS • ®rd, we cannot easily search ·m r 

p roper uISe @fdefin"liians and nei!ess.arv cross-r eferences. Th is ·ncrease.s t he pot ential 

for problems. 

2. lfihere a re d up licalili oos i n t erms of r eq ui ret"nen.ts. W hen requ·rernents, are red'un_clant. 

there is a greaiterr risk. ®f ina;dvertenlt c®n-"lliirltS. Far e;amp le,, an d at a o.aisk level, 

m in im um lalt sizes ·n some :wn·ngdisli:rids.e~:'ist in more than one p'laoe. 

3. liihere a re areas where procedural acti@ns mu Id !be irnprl[)ved ito ensur e clar itv an:cl 

1redu'Ce :amh igu·ity. 

. Graphics are inclui::l1elll in some parts. of ·li:he Zan ing Ordin ance. However, one is 

backward 1(33-11 an d imp0.Ssib le ·It® use. M®re 1gra,phks wou'ld be he lpM !throughout 

the ®n:l in ance t o he lp oonvey comp le;i; terminology. 

5. Because m uch o t he W h" ewalter Tcwmship Zon·ng On:linanoe was wMiltlten pr io r ito 

the Mich igan Zonin,g E:na'bll . Act m .2006,. a review- s.houlcl be conducted itO d.m-ub le 

check requ·rem consistency. 

6. The zoni.n,g d is,trri eits ·n t he W h" ew-alter Ti::wmship Zi!!ln"ngOn:linance ar e defined !by· 

legal descriplli oos. This m e,th!l!id o f defini ng zon·ngdis.trk ts boundar ies is. rarely used ~ 

today an d obvi ously problem atic ·m anyone w lil@ w'is.hes rto simply' detet"min:e ho _ ~ 

llan:cl is ron:edL A .zooin,g map was. prepared a rnd e~is-.ts l an d on ilJhe Website]~ but il:he:re 

is no e'ilidence iili: is. part of'ltllile zoning @rdin ance. ~It a'IS!lll lat:ks a !basic scale itO m easure 

distance_ 



Page: 63
Number: 1 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/11/2023 4:04:04 PM 
An interact-able mapping to the parcel level should be considered

157



64

1

158

., _ To@ls. such as hyp.erl"nks can be added ito the m ning ord inam:e 'Ito a 11 ®.W qu idk an1oP 

earsy n,a; ·gaoon wi ltlhirn ith-e ordin ance. Crea.ti rn,g ithese links. h.e li:,s ·ro make ith.e 

ordirnance easier to fa low and he li:,s ensure cross-references. a.re accu raite. 

a.. Secil:'ions of t h e Ord inance may need to be moved m provide for a m ore h!igiic:aJ 

:5equ ence of zon·ng rnatteria'I. 

91• Oe' ~n- ·ons should be re"'iew:ed. updated and im,proved. G:@ocl zoning practice arwids 

def1in'iliioo.s with development stam:la.rds conlt:ainecl therein . For e:-:ampLe ithe e:-:isting 

defini liioo !!!i a residentia l fence ·ncludes. requi rements mr height, ? lacemen , 

maltenials., etc. lit is unl ikely· th.at someone would il\im:111:he requ irements for r esiden ial 

fence i n ·!the de in'ioons. Issues I ike ithese create a greater p©'ten ial for errors. 

See a:ttardhm-ent A. for wmmary of these• po]nts ·n a grap'hica1 fonnat .. 



Page: 64
Number: 1 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/11/2023 4:04:43 PM 
Reverse Hyper links?

159



65

1

2

160

GO NG FO -WARD 

The Planning Com miss'ion holds. the fo I." ·ng views regard ing ifmure work on the lDni rng 

Ordinam:e 

1. No mare am endments s.hould be woriied on 1[a,parlt from Arltic 28J unt il 

sh®ritCDmmgs. withi ·ltlhe exislbing ordinance are addressed. We simp1v bel"eve we ladk a 
good foundation ito buik:I on and g:® lfon.vard · h. 

2. The wimrk ne!l:es.sary to create ·· he needed lfou ndat ion shauld bE apprC>ai:hed in ·· he 

fol l ngway: 

a. Ident ify a l adopted m ning la uag:e inwhaitevefi-mrm it is ·n a:nd 

con vert/retype into a s.'ingle M6 Word IDooume:nt. 

b.. R · w and edit zon'ing lan,guag,e- in a manner it hat a"1oid5 any sub"51t:ilnrt'ive 

cha.ng,es... Sma.11 issues. shou Id be deanly.· idenlbified and oorracited. We !l:ani use 

colored it ext so it hat t hese smal I changes are evident. fi.tDre su bsta.nillial issues 

sh®ukl be id ent if~e~. atlded ·m a runn in,g l is and h en left to a(ld ress lat er. This 

w ·11 he lp avoid g,"etting lxl,gged down in larger issues and delay c:®mp'leti®n of 
t he w h®le prnjert. ''ilbe detailed ·itas,k and proc:es:s of re"1ie<Wing itihe exi s,t i 

ord·nance as de~ribe<I a bDVe will I ikely. reveal many la:rg_-er issues t hat need to 

be atldressed lat er. 

c. lhe Plann i · Commi55ion ~5 ready ·1to worii w ith our P nner on t his project. He 

w@uld lead 1ilhi:s p roject and we would narurally. include our .rnn·ng 

.adminislbraitor and mwnship attorney in t he prKess. 

d. Of' oou rs.e, we are loo ·ng at a su"bstant ial amou nit of work and · here will be 

assDCiaited CD51b:s. Ol!lr PJan rner has ~nd i!i:alted it hat need lfor betureen $7,000 am::I 

$.91JOOO in foncf ng to su pporlt ·dlis. w®nk:. A f undi ng ran,ge i s ne!l:Essary as t here 

are se"1eral unkm:nvn5 . iltlh res.pert t o avai bis dD!l:uments. An u pda.t ed zon'ing 

ord"nance can be expected in about 5 t o 8 mon~hs. 1[depend ing on meeting 

arvai lab i i0wr-=------ ---
e. D e u .dated Zor.i i n,g--Q d in ce. wil be the su b,ect of at ast one PJ b ic..heann 

before being forv.rard:ed ii:® , he Towns,hi p Board mr action. 

f . 0 n:ce a.d®pted W h"te-water Town'1ih"p can ·then sy.ste:mailliully more t hroug;h more 

substantial ;rihanges. g iv·ng e,achi needed attent i.®n and deliberati®n. 



Page: 65
Number: 1 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/13/2023 11:13:27 AM 
I believe there should be more than one public hearing and the ordinance should be reviewed in sections. More than one section can be presented but if the
document is too long, people will not review it.

Number: 2 Author: Supervisor Subject: Highlight Date: 12/13/2023 11:10:58 AM 

161



1 | P a g e

Proposed New Organiza on to the Whitewater Township Zoning Ordinance. 

OLD New 
ARTICLE 1 SHORT TITLE ARTICLE I TITLE, PURPOSE, AND SCOPE (COMBINE ART. I,

II, XX, XXII, XXIII (SHORT TITLE, PURPOSE, SCOPE, INTERPRETATION, 
SEPARABILITY, REPEAL, EFFECTIVE DATE) 

ARTICLE II INTERPRETATION ARTICLE II DEFINITIONS 
(ARTICLE III DEFINITIONS) 

ARTICLE III DEFINITIONS ARTICLE III ZONING MAP AND DISTRICTS (NEW
SECTION THAT REPLACES ART. V AND ESTABLISHES THE ZONING MAP AS PART 
OF THE ZO, IDENTIFIES ZONING DISTRICTS, ETC.) 

ARTICLE IV ACCESSORY AND NONCONFORMING USES AND 
BUILDINGS ARTICLE IV ZONING DISTRICTS, USE REGULATIONS 

AND PRIMARY DIMENSIONAL REQUIREMENTS
(ARTICLE VI, VII, VIII, IX, X, XI, XII) DESCRIBES ALL ZONING DISTRICTS, 
PERMITTED SPECIAL USES AND PRIMARY DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS 

ARTICLE V DISTRICTS ARTICLE V SUPPLEMENTAL DEVELOPMENT 
STANDARDS AND PROVISIONS (IV. XIII, XIV, XV, XVI, XXIX,
XXXIII, XXIX XXXVII) 

ARTICLE VI RESIDENTIAL R-1 ARTICLE VI OFF-STREET PARKING, LOADING, 
LIGHTING AND LANDSCAPE STANDARDS (XXXIX, XXXIII,
XXIV)

66

162



2 | P a g e

OLD New 
ARTICLE VII MULTIPLE RESIDENTIAL R-2 and R-3 ARTICLE VII OPTIONAL PLANNED DEVELOPMENTS

(ARTICLE XXXI and XXXII) PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT AND CORRIDOR 
OVERLAY PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 

ARTICLE VIII COMMERCIAL C and VILLAGE V ARTICLE VIII CONDOMINIUM DEVELOPMENT 
REGULATIONS  (XXVIII)

ARTICLE IX INDUSTRIAL ARTICLE IX SITE PLAN REVIEW (XXV)

ARTICLE X AGRICULTURAL A-1 ARTICLE X SPECIAL LAND USES (XXV) 

ARTICLE XI RECREATIONAL RC-1 ARTICLE XI SIGN REGULATIONS (XXX)

ARTICLE XII BUILDING LOT SIZES AND YARD REQUIREMENTS ARTICLE XII TELECOMMUNICATION TOWERS (XXXV) 
ARTICLE XIII ESSENTIAL PUBLIC SERVICES ARTICLE XIII MOBILE HOME STANDARDS (XXXVI)

ARTICLE XIV WATERFRONT PROPERTY ARTICLE XIV SANITARY LANDFILL AND WASTE 
DISPOSALS (XXIV) 

ARTICLE XV SANITATION REQUIREMENTS ARTICLE XV ADMINISTRATION (XVII, XVIII, XIX, XXI)
ADMINISTRATION, ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS, AMENDMENTS, VIOLATIONS 

ARTICLE XVI OUTDOOR STORAGE 

ARTICLE XVII ADMINISTRATION 

ARTICLE XVIII ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

67

163



3 | P a g e

OLD New 
ARTICLE XIX REQUEST FOR AMENDMENT 

ARTICLE XX SEPARABILITY 

ARTICLE XXI VIOLATIONS 

ARTICLE XXII EFFECTIVE DATE 

ARTICLE XXIII REPEAL 

ARTICLE XXIV SANITARY LANDFILL AND WASTE DISPOSAL 

ARTICLE XXV SITE PLAN REVIEW AND SPECIAL LAND USES 

ARTICLE XXVI RESERVED 
ARTICLE XXVII RESERVED 

ARTICLE XXVIII CONDOMINIUM DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS 

ARTICLE XXIX EXTERIOR LIGHTING REGULATIONS 

ARTICLE XXX SIGN REGULATIONS 

ARTICLE XXXI PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 

ARTICLE XXXII CORRIDOR OVERLAY PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 

ARTICLE XXXIII LANDSCAPE STANDARDS 

ARTICLE XXXIV OFF-STREET PARKING AND LOADING 

ARTICLE XXXV TELECOMMUNICATION TOWERS 

68

164

' 1 

I I 

I I 



4 | P a g e

OLD New 
ARTICLE XXXVI MOBILE HOME STANDARDS 

ARTICLE XXXVII SUPPLEMENTARY PROVISIONS 

69

165



70

166



71

167



Same as Article 1, Section 1.00

Same as Article II Section 2.10

Same as Article II Section 2.11

Same as Article II, Section 2.12.  Except changed the title to read Splitting 
Lots Within a Recorded Subdivision, rather than “Splitting Lots With Recorded Subdivisions” 
Also, I deleted the last sentence as the Land Division Ord. should control 

Same as Article II, Section 2.13

72

12

34

5
6

78

168

I • 

• 

• 

-1-~ ---~-----~ 



Page: 72
Number: 1 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/13/2023 11:21:53 AM 
Why is this in the zoning ordinance? Developing these systems are very expensive. Adequate user fees cannot be established.

Number: 2 Author: Supervisor Subject: Highlight Date: 12/13/2023 11:18:54 AM 

Number: 3 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/13/2023 11:24:19 AM 
The historical society has zero members despite an on going effort to get more members. If so few people are interested in saving the history, why does the 
zoning ordinance think it is  important?

Number: 4 Author: Supervisor Subject: Highlight Date: 12/13/2023 11:21:56 AM 

Number: 5 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/13/2023 11:25:41 AM 
Is it the intent of this statement to make corrects to areas that flood?

Number: 6 Author: Supervisor Subject: Highlight Date: 12/13/2023 11:25:41 AM 

Number: 7 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/13/2023 11:29:43 AM 
Lots can be split. This statement needs more work. For example 3 subdivision lots in a row. the middle lot is vacant lot owners to the left and to the right 
wish to split the middle lot and combine that property to their lot.

Number: 8 Author: Supervisor Subject: Highlight Date: 12/13/2023 11:27:29 AM 

169



This existing clause is in Article XX, Section 20.10.   It is more common to 
place such general provisions at the beginning of the Zoning Ordinance rather than in the 
middle.   

Article XXIII contains one section regarding the repeal of the prior Interim 
Zoning Ordinance.   A broader repeal clause is needed here in Article 1.  Section 23.10 is 
removed  

Article XXII, Section 22.10 contains the statement that...  “This Ordinance 
shall take immediate effect upon passage by the Township Board.”  This section is inconsistent 
with MZEA, and it needs to be corrected. Section 22.10 is to be removed   The green text will be 
a hyperlink later.  

73

1
2

170

• ~-



Page: 73
Number: 1 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/13/2023 11:39:08 AM 
Not sure this is correct.

Number: 2 Author: Supervisor Subject: Highlight Date: 12/13/2023 11:38:53 AM 

171

rn--------------------------



New Definition. Adult Foster Care Facilities are allowed in Res Districts – but 
a definition is missing.  The Michigan Zoning Enabling Act (125.3206) requires that AFC homes 
(a state-licensed residential facility) be treated as a residential use of property for the purposes 
of zoning and a permitted use in all residential zones.

Better to use MCL Definition 125.1504b for a B&B. It is much more specific 
and clearer 

Note – all Signage definitions and regulations must be reviewed according 
to Reed/Gilbert.  This should be done after this Zoning Clarification Project.    

Need a definition for Building Coverage to support Section 12.11.   Building 
Coverage is not the same as building footprint.   Building Coverage applies to all buildings on a 
lot. “Building Footprint” refers to a single building.

Removed the term “Footprint” (later in the definitions) and replaced it with 
“Building Footprint.” The term “Building Footprint” is used in Table 12.11 currently.  

74

1
2

34

56

172

•~ 

•·--- ·~ 
l 

I • 



Page: 74
Number: 1 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/13/2023 11:41:53 AM 
According to State Tax Commission woodlots are not part of ag use.

Number: 2 Author: Supervisor Subject: Highlight Date: 12/13/2023 11:41:14 AM 

Number: 3 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/13/2023 11:45:40 AM 
What is MCL 125.1504b?

Number: 4 Author: Supervisor Subject: Highlight Date: 12/13/2023 11:44:12 AM 

Number: 5 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/13/2023 2:05:42 PM 
Can you explain this?

Number: 6 Author: Supervisor Subject: Highlight Date: 12/13/2023 2:05:26 PM 

173



Definitions for condominium project and conversion were updated in 
Amendment #86. These amendments are part of the ZO now – but are shown as changes as 
they differ from the printed ZO the P C members have.

75

12

34

56

174

• - ~ 

• == ~ 



Page: 75
Number: 1 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/13/2023 2:13:12 PM 
Not sure we currently have a maximum lot coverage

Number: 2 Author: Supervisor Subject: Highlight Date: 12/13/2023 2:12:22 PM 

Number: 3 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/13/2023 2:13:58 PM 
Add short term rental 

Number: 4 Author: Supervisor Subject: Highlight Date: 12/13/2023 2:13:43 PM 

Number: 5 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/13/2023 2:15:53 PM 
What is the envelope size of this burden?

Number: 6 Author: Supervisor Subject: Highlight Date: 12/13/2023 2:15:23 PM 

175



76

12

34

56

78

910

11
12

176

•~ 
• 

• ~ 

• 



Page: 76
Number: 1 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/13/2023 2:18:07 PM 
What is the definition of legally occupied? 

Number: 2 Author: Supervisor Subject: Highlight Date: 12/13/2023 2:16:34 PM 

Number: 3 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/13/2023 2:18:24 PM 
Common Kitchen?

Number: 4 Author: Supervisor Subject: Highlight Date: 12/13/2023 2:18:10 PM 

Number: 5 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/13/2023 2:19:09 PM 
Can you explain this?

Number: 6 Author: Supervisor Subject: Highlight Date: 12/13/2023 2:18:59 PM 

Number: 7 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/13/2023 2:21:40 PM 
Can you explain this?

Number: 8 Author: Supervisor Subject: Highlight Date: 12/13/2023 2:21:29 PM 

Number: 9 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/13/2023 2:25:34 PM 
The deleted sections should be reconsidered

Number: 10 Author: Supervisor Subject: Highlight Date: 12/13/2023 2:25:10 PM 

Number: 11 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/13/2023 2:27:15 PM 
Why this? All other measurements are taken from "interior"

Number: 12 Author: Supervisor Subject: Highlight Date: 12/13/2023 2:26:06 PM 

177

00------------------------------

rn------------------------------



New Definition.   Presently, there is no definition of how lot area is 
computed.  Also added the provision for lot area as not including land that is broken by roads 
here (now appears in 12.11)

77

12

3
4

5
6

178

•- --~-- ~ 



Page: 77
Number: 1 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/13/2023 2:29:24 PM 
What is a hospital?

Number: 2 Author: Supervisor Subject: Highlight Date: 12/13/2023 2:28:59 PM 

Number: 3 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/13/2023 2:33:19 PM 
The State Tax Commission allows a lot to be broken by a road or street. 

Number: 4 Author: Supervisor Subject: Highlight Date: 12/13/2023 2:31:56 PM 

Number: 5 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/13/2023 2:35:00 PM 
Objection - should be measured at the road right of way.

Number: 6 Author: Supervisor Subject: Highlight Date: 12/13/2023 2:33:59 PM 

179



Definitions for Mobile Home Condominium Project were updated in 
Amendment #86

78

12

34

5
6

180

• _r-________ -_ -_ -_ -_ -_ -_ -_ -_ -_ 

• ----~ 
r-----------

•,~-~ 



Page: 78
Number: 1 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/13/2023 2:36:15 PM 
This is a corner lot?

Number: 2 Author: Supervisor Subject: Highlight Date: 12/13/2023 2:35:32 PM 

Number: 3 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/13/2023 2:38:30 PM 
Does includes lakes?

Number: 4 Author: Supervisor Subject: Highlight Date: 12/13/2023 2:38:18 PM 

Number: 5 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/13/2023 2:45:12 PM 
This definition needs work. A panelized home would fall in to this definition.  
 
I think the intent of this definition is to describe a sectional home transported to the site as a trailer with the sections being assembled on site.

Number: 6 Author: Supervisor Subject: Highlight Date: 12/13/2023 2:39:06 PM 

181

00------------------------------



High Water should be hyphenated.  

Improve definition of Outdoor Display Area

Add definition of Outdoor Sales Areas.   Outdoor sales, display, and 
Inventory areas could all be different things  

79

12

3

45

67

89

182

• 

I l 

• 

•- ~ 

• lDb 

~h-



Page: 79
Number: 1 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/13/2023 2:45:31 PM 
Needs work

Number: 2 Author: Supervisor Subject: Highlight Date: 12/13/2023 2:45:23 PM 

Number: 3 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/13/2023 2:47:47 PM 
Liked the old definition better

Number: 4 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/13/2023 2:50:34 PM 
How would an enforcement person ever know the difference between these three areas? 
 
Recommend a limit on the area and drop any two of the definitions

Number: 5 Author: Supervisor Subject: Highlight Date: 12/13/2023 2:48:18 PM 

Number: 6 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/13/2023 2:52:32 PM 
Should this be based on a survey so the parcel boundaries are known?

Number: 7 Author: Supervisor Subject: Highlight Date: 12/13/2023 2:51:56 PM 

Number: 8 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/13/2023 2:54:36 PM 
Disagree, a premises has some kind of improvement, house, barn etc otherwise it is vacant property

Number: 9 Author: Supervisor Subject: Highlight Date: 12/13/2023 2:52:51 PM 

183

00-------------------------------

00-------------------------------



Note – all Signage definitions and regulations will need to be reviewed 
pursuant to Reed v. Gilbert  

80

1
2

34

56

184

• 

I 

• ~ 



Page: 80
Number: 1 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/13/2023 2:57:42 PM 
This seems to border on the commercial definition?

Number: 2 Author: Supervisor Subject: Highlight Date: 12/13/2023 2:55:35 PM 

Number: 3 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/13/2023 2:57:56 PM 
Based on a survey?

Number: 4 Author: Supervisor Subject: Highlight Date: 12/13/2023 2:57:45 PM 

Number: 5 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/13/2023 3:00:47 PM 
Tractor, orv, sled?

Number: 6 Author: Supervisor Subject: Highlight Date: 12/13/2023 2:59:36 PM 

185



81

186



This is a new Article created to define zoning Districts in Whitewater 
Township.  It recognizes and defines an official zoning map depicting zoning districts’ 
boundaries.  It also provides rules for the interpretation of the map.  The Zoning Map is 
made a part of this ordinance.  Existing legal descriptions provided later have been 
removed so that there is only one source of information concerning the limits of zoning 
districts.    

New Section establishing the Zoning Districts as illustrated on the 
zoning map used by Whitewater Township (see 2015 Master Plan and map on WWT 
website).   

This new language directly connects the written Zoning Ordinance with 
the Official Zoning Map.  We will need to add this language to the zoning map (along with a 
scale)

82

p g g p p
removed so that there is only one source of information concerning the limits of zoning f
districts. 

ship.  It
daries. 
a part 

12

34

5
6

78

910

187

• ~ 

T 

• 

• ~ 



Page: 82
Number: 1 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/13/2023 3:02:15 PM 
This seems wrong

Number: 2 Author: Supervisor Subject: Highlight Date: 12/13/2023 3:01:52 PM 

Number: 3 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/13/2023 3:03:42 PM 
Who makes the changes?

Number: 4 Author: Supervisor Subject: Highlight Date: 12/13/2023 3:03:29 PM 

Number: 5 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/13/2023 3:06:40 PM 
This should not happen and is a major reason not to totally erase the legal description of each district 
 
If we are going to use a map then it must be of sufficient size to depict each parcel

Number: 6 Author: Supervisor Subject: Highlight Date: 12/13/2023 3:04:01 PM 

Number: 7 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/13/2023 3:07:07 PM 
We know this is not ture in Whitewater Township

Number: 8 Author: Supervisor Subject: Highlight Date: 12/13/2023 3:06:49 PM 

Number: 9 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/13/2023 3:09:23 PM 
Should this be center thread?

Number: 10 Author: Supervisor Subject: Highlight Date: 12/13/2023 3:08:40 PM 

188

00------------------------------

'ti------------------------------

rn-------------------------------

00-------------------------------



New section that addresses interpretation of zoning district 
boundaries.  

83

189



This Chapter will reorganize Articles V- XII into a single, more easily read 
Article.  It contains existing permitted and special uses and existing primary dimensional 
requirements.   

84

12

190

• [pb 

L I 



Page: 84
Number: 1 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/13/2023 3:14:41 PM 
Purpose?

Number: 2 Author: Supervisor Subject: Highlight Date: 12/13/2023 3:14:32 PM 

191

rn--------------------------



85

12

34

5
6

7 8

910

1112

192

J 1. • - _[?b __ _ 
--

I 
I 

~ • ~ ~ - • 
-

________________ _[ -

I 

I 

I 

~ 
-

• 
-

I 

• ~ 
:J 



Page: 85
Number: 1 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/13/2023 3:16:56 PM 
Was this defined?

Number: 2 Author: Supervisor Subject: Highlight Date: 12/13/2023 3:16:43 PM 

Number: 3 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/13/2023 3:18:25 PM 
Redundant

Number: 4 Author: Supervisor Subject: Highlight Date: 12/13/2023 3:18:14 PM 

Number: 5 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/13/2023 3:18:10 PM 
seems like a conflict?

Number: 6 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/13/2023 3:19:33 PM 
Definition? Footprint size similar to a church?

Number: 7 Author: Supervisor Subject: Highlight Date: 12/13/2023 3:17:54 PM 

Number: 8 Author: Supervisor Subject: Highlight Date: 12/13/2023 3:18:45 PM 

Number: 9 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/13/2023 3:22:54 PM 
So this will read Multi-family such as townhouses and apartments? 

dwellings appears in the lead off paragraph and remains. Reason for deleting this word? 

Number: 10 Author: Supervisor Subject: Highlight Date: 12/13/2023 3:20:58 PM 

Number: 11 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/13/2023 3:26:12 PM 
So this is the only place a commercial activity can take place? 
 
Short Term Rentals have been legally identified as a commercial activity. 
 
Brunner's auto repair, Cherry Capital Connection?

Number: 12 Author: Supervisor Subject: Highlight Date: 12/13/2023 3:24:03 PM 

193

rn--------------------------

00------------------------------

00------------------------------



86

1
2

3
4

5
6

78

9
10

194

• 
• 

------------------1~ L----

1 • 



Page: 86
Number: 1 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/13/2023 3:28:45 PM 
This is an example of the stacking you want to get rid of in the industrial district. Why are you not targeting this district?

Number: 2 Author: Supervisor Subject: Highlight Date: 12/13/2023 3:26:37 PM 

Number: 3 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/13/2023 3:31:09 PM 
Appears to border on industrial?

Number: 4 Author: Supervisor Subject: Highlight Date: 12/13/2023 3:30:42 PM 

Number: 5 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/13/2023 3:29:07 PM 
Definitions?

Number: 6 Author: Supervisor Subject: Highlight Date: 12/13/2023 3:28:49 PM 

Number: 7 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/13/2023 3:34:01 PM 
Section appears not to list mixed uses. for example apartments above a commercial space.

Number: 8 Author: Supervisor Subject: Highlight Date: 12/13/2023 3:33:03 PM 

Number: 9 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/13/2023 3:35:36 PM 
What was section 8.52? 
 
Why is it not shown as being deleted?

Number: 10 Author: Supervisor Subject: Highlight Date: 12/13/2023 3:34:57 PM 

195

00------------------------------

00------------------------------



87

1
2

34

56

7
8

9
10

1112

196



Page: 87
Number: 1 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/13/2023 3:36:08 PM 
More stacking?

Number: 2 Author: Supervisor Subject: Highlight Date: 12/13/2023 3:35:51 PM 

Number: 3 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/13/2023 3:37:04 PM 
Liked the old version

Number: 4 Author: Supervisor Subject: Highlight Date: 12/13/2023 3:36:47 PM 

Number: 5 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/13/2023 3:39:43 PM 
Are you recommending we delete all of #1?

Number: 6 Author: Supervisor Subject: Highlight Date: 12/13/2023 3:39:21 PM 

Number: 7 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/13/2023 3:40:35 PM 
Stacking?

Number: 8 Author: Supervisor Subject: Highlight Date: 12/13/2023 3:40:15 PM 

Number: 9 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/13/2023 3:41:08 PM 
Should bill boards be listed in other districts?

Number: 10 Author: Supervisor Subject: Highlight Date: 12/13/2023 3:40:41 PM 

Number: 11 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/13/2023 3:41:59 PM 
I think you can farm in R-2?

Number: 12 Author: Supervisor Subject: Highlight Date: 12/13/2023 3:41:44 PM 

197

00------------------------------

rn------------------------------



88

12

198

-

I ~--~ 



Page: 88
Number: 1 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/14/2023 8:13:43 AM 
My opinion: A roadside stand is different from a farm market. One the most basic level, a customer would walk "inside" of a roadside market. However, the 
Roadside stand may have a "roof" protecting the products and customer from weather elements.

Number: 2 Author: Supervisor Subject: Highlight Date: 12/14/2023 8:10:17 AM 

199

00-----------------------------------



89

1
2

34

5 6

78

910

1112

200

it::=========== - -

- - -

~--j__J- --=-+--+-+r-t117 c--_ -_ -_ -_ -_ -_ -_ -_ -_ ----=-LL - -

E~ -Q++t-t117 c - _- _ --_- _- _- _- _- -----= 



Page: 89
Number: 1 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/14/2023 8:31:34 AM 
I am concerned about additional land use restrictions beyond setbacks. Why can't a person use all of their property within the building envelope?

Number: 2 Author: Supervisor Subject: Highlight Date: 12/14/2023 8:29:54 AM 

Number: 3 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/14/2023 8:35:42 AM 
Is V District in the existing 12.11?

Number: 4 Author: Supervisor Subject: Highlight Date: 12/14/2023 8:35:10 AM 

Number: 5 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/14/2023 8:38:02 AM 
Yes, too restrictive in the N district, however storm water concerns must be addressed keeping your water on your land

Number: 6 Author: Supervisor Subject: Highlight Date: 12/14/2023 8:36:17 AM 

Number: 7 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/14/2023 8:41:01 AM 
Does number 1 state or have a depth of less than 200? So I can have a lot with 10 feet of depth?

Number: 8 Author: Supervisor Subject: Highlight Date: 12/14/2023 8:39:17 AM 

Number: 9 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/14/2023 8:42:57 AM 
Thinking about Randy's earlier comment that buildings and structures are not the same should this provision be reworded?

Number: 10 Author: Supervisor Subject: Highlight Date: 12/14/2023 8:42:03 AM 

Number: 11 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/14/2023 8:45:06 AM 
2.5 acres of land will only support a given number of animals making this provision too vague.

Number: 12 Author: Supervisor Subject: Highlight Date: 12/14/2023 8:43:29 AM 

201

00------------------------------

rn------------------------------



90

1 2

3
4

202

- 1. ~ 
I . 

: 

~ 
I 

I 

- L 
() I l 

LI 

I 



Page: 90
Number: 1 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/14/2023 9:52:19 AM 
Is the deletion of this considered a minor change? 

Imagine a narrow stream of 2 foot wide, then build a dock parallel to the bank which protrudes into or is cantilevered 12" over the stream have you created 
a bridge? 

Number: 2 Author: Supervisor Subject: Highlight Date: 12/14/2023 9:49:08 AM 

Number: 3 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/14/2023 9:54:22 AM 
Is this considered an minor change? 
 
This should be a ZBA action. 
 

Number: 4 Author: Supervisor Subject: Highlight Date: 12/14/2023 9:52:56 AM 

203



91204



92205



93206



94207

-



95208



96209



97210



98211



99212



100213



101214



102215



103216



104217



105218

• 



106219

- -
-

-



107220

-

~ 

• -



108221



109222

I I 7 

-

- -



110223



111224



This screen shot was taken from the Approved 11/01/2023 PC minutes 
at which a  for “ ” was created to aid in the 

forward.   

 

112

1
2
3

225

2. Zoning Project pdate: 
a. Define substantial change. Define what is a minor change and what is a major change? Working on cl.arifying 

Page l of2 Planning Commission 11/01/2023 APPROVED 

and correcting words and definitions right now not changing an bing-that changes an-outcome. 
Co11se11si1s__on a definition of c11rce11t zoning ordinance wodc rification, fix conflicts. state or federal law, 
1'1Q lication and organi=ation bw does not change the spirit of the ordinance. A substantial change is anything 
tfl•ond. 
~elm 1s working on reorganization of the zoning ordinance to make it more c-0mprehensive and creating 
consistency. 
Conse11si1s to accept what has been presemed by Mielnikfor tonight 's packet, Articles 1-4. 
b. Review proposed W restructure and determine which should be updated now and which should wait for the 
completion of the master plan was included in the previous discussion. 



Page: 112
Number: 1 Author: SteelmanR Subject: Highlight Date: 12/8/2023 10:26:48 AM 

Number: 2 Author: SteelmanR Subject: Highlight Date: 12/8/2023 10:26:51 AM 

Number: 3 Author: SteelmanR Subject: Highlight Date: 12/8/2023 10:26:54 AM 

226

ii 

ii 



Zoning Map Discussion: 

There are some concerns with our Townships Zoning Map.  Based on the TB’s 
history and knowledge we ask your assistance in ing the 
and/or , please answer the 

 

1. Do you know where and/or how th Zoning Map
originated?

2.
checked you are not 
Industrial Zone which is a known issue).

3. this with a so hat ,
and/or ideas  ensuring our Zoning Map is accurate?

113

ere 1

2

3

227



Page: 113
Number: 1 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/13/2023 3:48:22 PM 
No

Number: 2 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/13/2023 3:48:48 PM 
All districts should be checked against current legal description

Number: 3 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/13/2023 3:49:13 PM 
Interactable

228

'Ii--------------------------------



FY23/24 Budget: 

Currently, all contracts are  of plan spend through 
the FY.  We do not foresee a need for addi onal funding. 

FY24/25 Budget: 

The PC Seeks the TB’s guidance in preparing for the FY24/25 
Budget.  Please be prepared 
related to policy and procedures: 

1. By what date should the PC pro
 budget needs?

2. In what format, 
budget needs?

3. How detailed does the TB prefer to 
budget needs?

a. Example: Should we include a total number of
 , 

(  public
hearings, etc.), a total dollar amount, or all the

?
b. Example: Should we breakdown our an needs

by project (MP & ZP), or line item, or both?
4. What else should the PC know about Budge ?  We

don’t know what we don’t know and are relying on your
insight, experience, and  to ensure a smooth

114

1

2

3

4

229



Page: 114
Number: 1 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/13/2023 3:50:23 PM 
Excel based on the clerk's print out of the chart of accounts

Number: 2 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/13/2023 3:50:57 PM 
all of the above

Number: 3 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/13/2023 3:51:41 PM 
What is ZP? Both

Number: 4 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/13/2023 3:53:29 PM 
Submit often and early, some line items may not receive requested funding 

230

'Ii--------------------------------



Metropolitan Planning Org  Discussion: 

At the PC’s Regular 10/04/2023 
 the MPO.  Materials  

 .

At the PC’s 6/2023,  a
the PO.

o 12/06/2023 PC M

 

The PC is  

 /or a  
MPO.

115

At the PC’s Regular 10/04/2023 
the MPO.  Materials 

.

/or a
MPO.

1
2

3

4

231

• 

MPO discussion to be pre ented to the board as a positive thing. make a recommenda.tion. 
!MOTION! by DeYoang., second by Keaton to recommend the township participate in the Metropolitan Planning 
Organization MPO). 
Roll call vote: Jacob on-yes; Wroubel-yes ; Steelman-yes; DeYoang-yes; Slop ema-yes; Keaton-yes; 
Vollmut!h-abstain ( o she can vote at the Board level wit!hout any question of duplicity) . Motion carried. 

• 



Page: 115
Number: 1 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/13/2023 3:55:06 PM 
This is the same organization multiple PC members said they were disappointed by the Networks Northwest.

Number: 2 Author: Supervisor Subject: Highlight Date: 12/13/2023 3:54:13 PM 

Number: 3 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/13/2023 4:23:13 PM 
The benefits to Whitewater Township do not warrant the cost. 
 
Who will represent the Township? How will they be paid. 
 
White Water has no urbanized areas noted on the map 

Number: 4 Author: Supervisor Subject: Highlight Date: 12/13/2023 3:55:42 PM 

232



Robert Carson <rob.carson@networksnorthwest.org> 
To:Randy Mielnik 
Cc:Cheryl Goss,Rachel Steelman 
Tue, Oct 17 at 9:02 PM 
Randy,

Please find attached the following documents:

Resolution of Adoption: This is the resolution adopted by each local participating entity to the
Traverse Transportation Coordinating Initiative (TTCI). I've edited the document to reflect
Whitewater Township.
Intergovernmental Agreement (IA, THE AGREEMENT): This is the agreement referenced in the
resolution of adoption and outlines the structure of the TTCI MPO Body. This document would
stand "as is" and would only be edited for Appendix C and Appendix D.

o Appendix C is the membership dues calculations. Currently the amount for the
entities that are participating is $3,378.13. If Whitewater elects to participate the amount
of dues per entity will be $3,167.00.

o Appendix D lists the participating members. This would be edited to include Whitewater
Twp on the list.

TTCI Bylaws Executed 2023-09-12: This is the current adopted bylaws for the organization.

I'm going to be gone on vacation starting Thursday evening and won't be returning until Oct. 30th. You 
can reach out to Mathew Cooke at <mathew.cooke@networksnorthwest> or Zach Vega at 
<zach.vega@networksnorthwest.org> if you need anything in my absence.

Please let me know if you have any questions.

Thanks,

Rob

116233



Traverse Transportation Coordinating Initiative
Resolution # _________________

________________, 2023

RESOLUTION TO ESTABLISH AN INTERMUNICIPALITY COMMITTEE UNDER MICHIGAN
PUBLIC ACT 200 OF 1957 FOR PURPOSES OF TRANSPORTATION PLANNING IN THE

TRAVERSE STUDY AREA

WHEREAS, the urban transportation planning regulations implementing sections of the Federal-Aid Highway 
Act of 1962, and the Urban Mass Transportation Act of 1964, as amended, require that each urbanized area, as a 
condition of receipt of Federal transportation capital or operating assistance, having a continuing, cooperative and 
comprehensive (3-C) transportation planning process that results in plans and programs consistent with the 
comprehensively plan development of the urbanized area; and

WHEREAS, Michigan Public Act 200 of 1957 provides for the creation, by two or more municipalities, of an 
Intermunicipality Committee for the purpose of studying area problems; and

WHEREAS, Whitewater Township elected to participate in the formation of the Metropolitan Planning 
Organization through participation in the Traverse Transportation Coordinating Initiative (TTCI), and

WHEREAS, the conditions for the participation of eligible entities and the requirements for formation of the 
MPO Policy Board and committees to the board, rules of procedure and overall operation of the collaborative 
body are contained within the attached referenced Traverse Transportation Coordinating Initiative 
Intergovernmental Agreement for Participants of the Metropolitan Planning Organization, and

WHEREAS, bylaws for TTCI have been drafted and are attached and referenced as the Traverse 
Transportation Coordinating Initiative (TTCI) Bylaws.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that Whitewater Township authorizes their participation as an eligible 
entity in the creation of what is hereinafter referred to as the Traverse Transportation Coordinating Initiative 
(TTCI) Metropolitan Planning Organization;

On a motion made by ___________________ seconded by _______________, to adopt the Resolution  in support 
of the establishment of an intermunicipality committee, under Michigan Public Act 200 of 1957, for the purposes 
of transportation planning in the Greater Traverse Study Area.

Roll call vote:

Ayes- ______________________________________________________________________________________
Nays- ______________________________________________________________________________________

CERTIFICATE

I, _______________________, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true copy of a resolution adopted by the
Whitewater Township Board, at a regular board meeting, held at the Whitewater Township Hall on XX XX, 2023.

117

urbanized 
d Hig

1

2

234

• 



Page: 117
Number: 1 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/13/2023 4:01:41 PM 
How does this maintain rural ?

Number: 2 Author: Supervisor Subject: Highlight Date: 12/13/2023 4:01:14 PM 

235

rn--------------------------



1 

Traverse Transportation Coordinating Initiative (TTCI) 

Intergovernmental Agreement 
for Participants of the 

Metropolitan Planning Organization 

Article I. Name 
The name of the inter-municipality committee formed under this agreement shall be the 
Traverse Transportation Coordinating Initiative, hereafter referred to as TTCI.  The formation of 
this body replaces any former committee which was organized as a precursor to the formal 
establishment of the Metropolitan Planning Organization. 

Section 1.01 Transfer of Balance of Funds 
All funds held under the control of the committee established as the Traverse Transportation 
Coordinating Initiative previous to the execution of this agreement shall be transferred under 
the control of the entity named in Article I. 

Article II. Purpose and Authority 
Michigan Public Act 200 of 1957 provides for the creation, by two or more municipalities, of an 
inter-municipality committee for the purpose of studying area transportation issues of mutual 
interest and concern.  TTCI shall operate and act in compliance with and under the authority of 
Michigan Public Act 200 of 1957 and shall have the duties, privileges and rights prescribed in 
that Act. 

Article III. Fiscal Year 
The fiscal year for TTCI shall be October 1st  through September 30th of the following year. 

Article IV. Duties of TTCI 
The duties of TTCI shall be broad objectives that will encompass, but are not limited to the 
following: 

1. Develop transportation plans and programs and establish processes for the continuing
review of plans, recommendations, and programs to facilitate the movement of persons
and goods in the TTCI Study Area.

2. Design and carry out the assembling and analysis of information pertaining to
transportation with the study area.

3. Coordinate transportation facility implementation and operation within the TTCI Study
Area.

118

Develop transportation plans and programs and establish processes for the continuing
review of plans, recommendations, and programs to facilitate the movement of persons
and goods in the TTCI Study Area.

2. Design and carry out the assembling and analysis of information pertaining to
transportation with the study area.

3. Coordinate transportation facility implementation and operation within the TTCI Study
Area.

1

236

• 
• -



Page: 118
Number: 1 Author: Supervisor Subject: Highlight Date: 12/13/2023 4:04:36 PM 

237

rn--------------------------



2 

4. Review and evaluate the planning and programming of transportation related activities,
projects  and programs within the TTCI Study Area, as they may impact the
transportation system.

5. Assist in project implementation where such projects require organizational, functional
and operational analysis and/or to undertake those implementation functions not
reserved to other agencies or as may be appropriately delegated by such other
agencies.

6. Establish and implement a continuing program of public information regarding
transportation planning, programs and projects.

Article V. TTCI MPO Organization 
TTCI shall be the established transportation planning body for the Census Designated Traverse 
City-Garfield Urbanized Area and TTCI Metropolitan Planning Area.  Representation from 
transportation agencies, transit agencies and units of government which constitute a minimum 
of seventy-five percent (75%) of the US Census defined urbanized area shall meet the legislative 
requirements to seek TTCI MPO establishment; when they have agreed to participate in the 
formation of the inter-municipality committee through the approval and adoption of this inter-
governmental agreement.   

Section 5.01 Census Defined Urbanized Area and Metropolitan Planning Area 

(a) Census Defined Urbanized Area:
The United States Census Bureau conducts decennial census every ten (10) years.  Upon
completion of the decennial census the US Census Bureau conducts a review of data which
supports the designation of urbanized areas.  Following each decennial census, TTCI shall work
with the Michigan Department of Transportation to ascertain changes to urbanized area
boundaries, and shall make necessary revisions to meet the requirements of Michigan Public Act
200 of 1957.  See Attachment A for a map of the urbanized area prescribed by the 2020 US
Decennial Census.  This attachment shall be updated following each decennial census.

(b) Metropolitan Planning Area:
The Metropolitan Planning Area (MPA) is the designated geographic boundary within which the
planning processes prescribed in 23 CFR 450 and 49 CFR 613 is to be carried out.  The
Metropolitan Planning Area shall include all geographic boundaries which contain census
designated urbanized areas and shall also contain geographic unit boundaries of areas which are
forecasted to become urbanized within the next twenty (20) years.  MDOT shall make
recommendation on MPA boundaries following each decennial census with the final MPA
designated by the TTCI Policy Board.  A geographic boundary is defined as a Township, Village
and City civil division boundaries.  See Attachment B for a map of the MPA.  This attachment
shall be updated following each decennial census or as necessary to include expansion of the
planning area boundary.

119

ensu1

238



Page: 119
Number: 1 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/13/2023 4:07:01 PM 
For Whitewater Township this is M-72 for which MDOT holds and invites the Township to their 5 year planning sessions for input. 

A small portion of supply and williamsburg road are also included in this. 
 
What changes would our 1 vote make to the other members?

239



3 

Section 5.02 Eligibility 
All transportation agencies, transit agencies and local units of government, which include within 
their respective service area or civil division boundary, a portion of the defined urbanized area 
or MPA; are eligible for inclusion and participation with TTCI and are referred to as Eligible 
Entities.  A local unit of government is defined as a Village, City, Township or County.  Eligibility 
shall solely be met through this section 5.02 and section 5.03 Member Conditions. 

Section 5.03 Member Conditions 
The following conditions are required of participating eligible entities. 

(a) Voting Rights:
Participating eligible entities are each provided one (1) vote on the Policy Board.  The single vote
shall be administered by the primary or alternate Policy Board Member, and in no case shall
both the primary and alternate Policy Board Member preside at the same meeting and in no
case shall more than one (1) vote be cast by an individual eligible entity.

(b) Planning Organization Dues:
Each participating eligible entity shall pay planning dues in a sufficient amount to meet the
required eighteen point fifteen percent (18.15%) of the Consolidated Planning Grant provided
by MDOT.  Planning due amounts are established in Attachment C, with the prescribed dues
having been certified through approval of this agreement.  Dues shall be paid by each
participating eligible entity each fiscal year upon receiving the invoice, and payment shall be
made within 45 days of the receipt of the invoice.  Attachment C shall be updated each year
following the release of the monetary amount of the consolidated planning grant by the
Michigan Department of Transportation.

(c) Participation:
Participating eligible entities shall make every effort to have their representative attend TTCI
Policy Board, Executive Committee (if applicable), Technical Committee (if applicable), or Ad Hoc
Committee meetings (if applicable).  Participation is fundamental to the successful operation of
the MPO Planning Process(es).  Unexcused absences will be monitoring and relayed to
respective eligible entity’s governing board following the absence. Accumulation of three (3)
unexcused absences within a single fiscal year will cause a formal request by the TTCI Policy
Board for appointment of a new representative by the respective eligible entity.

Article VI. Meeting Standards, Policy Board, and Committees 

Section 6.01 Quorum 
A quorum is required for the conducting of business.  The presence of a simple majority of the 
TTCI Policy Board Membership (as defined in Article VI, Section 6.03.(a) OR the presence of 
three-fifths (3/5) of transportation implementing agencies (BATA, City of Traverse City, GTCRC, 
LCRC, MDOT) and two (2) local units of government shall constitute a quorum for the purpose of 

120

Accumulation of three (3)
unexcused absences within a single fiscal year will cause a formal request by the TTCI Policy
Board for appointment of a new representative by the respective eligible entity.

1

2

240



Page: 120
Number: 1 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/13/2023 4:10:31 PM 
How many meetings are there?

Number: 2 Author: Supervisor Subject: Highlight Date: 12/13/2023 4:10:16 PM 

241

rn--------------------------



4 

conducting business. Active voting members are those duly appointed representatives whose 
membership dues were paid in the prior budget year. 

Section 6.02 Meeting Operation 
Meeting parliamentary procedure and voting decision processes of the TTCI Policy Board, 
Executive, Technical and Ad Hoc Committees shall operate according to “Robert’s Rules of 
Order”.  All meetings of the TTCI Policy Board and Technical Committee shall operate within the 
requirements of the Michigan Open Meetings Act (OMA), 1976 PA 267, MCL 15.261 et seq.

Section 6.03 TTCI Policy Board 

(a) TTCI Policy Board Membership
Membership on the TTCI Policy Board shall consist of one (1) individual from each participating
eligible entity, whom is designated by the respective entities governing body to serve as their
representative.  Representatives may be members of the governing board, executive staff or
their designee.  Eligible entities shall appoint one (1) primary member to the TTCI Policy Board
and shall appoint a second alternate member to attend in the primary member’s absence.
Designations shall be made by each participating eligible entity at their first meeting of the
calendar year and as otherwise outlined for replacement, with the exception of the initiation of
the board under initial execution of this agreement.  Designations shall be made in writing and
by name provide a primary and alternative representative.  Designations shall occur for each
participating entity that have executed approval of this agreement, and shall include a
representative from the Michigan Department of Transportation and the Federal Highway
Administration as necessary.  TTCI Policy Board Members are provided in Attachment D.

(b) Terms of TTCI Policy Board Members
Policy Board Members shall serve a term of two (2) years, or until their replacement is
designated by the eligible entities governing body.  Policy Board members, whom are elected
officials for eligible local units of government or a member of a governing body of an eligible
agency, shall not serve past the expiration of their elected office for the eligible entity or
expiration of their appointment on the eligible entities governing body.  Members of the Policy
Board who are staff to a participating eligible agency or local unit of government shall not serve
beyond their time of employment with such eligible entity.  A participating eligible entity
membership that has expired due to any of the factors above shall be notified and a new
designee shall be named by the respective eligible entities governing board at that time.

(c) Officers
The TTCI Policy Board shall be served by an Executive Committee comprised of elected officers,
which consist of a Chairperson, Vice-Chairperson, a Secretary and a Treasurer.  The officers shall
serve the duties outlined within the Policy Board by-laws.  Officers shall be elected from TTCI
Policy Board members who have served on the Policy Board from initial approval of this
agreement or for a minimum of one (1) year.  The four member Executive Committee shall have
at least one (1) elected City, Village, Township or County representative and at least one (1)

121

Meeting Operation

member of a governing body of an eligible
agency, shall not serve past the expiration of their elected office for the elig

1
2

3

4

242

• ---



Page: 121
Number: 1 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/13/2023 4:11:45 PM 
Where are the meetings held, how often?

Number: 2 Author: Supervisor Subject: Highlight Date: 12/13/2023 4:11:26 PM 

Number: 3 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/13/2023 4:13:19 PM 
Short term

Number: 4 Author: Supervisor Subject: Highlight Date: 12/13/2023 4:12:56 PM 

243



 

5 
 

representative of a transportation or transit agency.  Offers shall be elected following a formal 
nomination from another member of the board, followed by a vote of the board; this shall occur 
for each respective officer position.  Election of officers shall be at the first meeting of each 
calendar year or as soon as possible thereafter.  Officers shall serve a term of one (1) year, or 
until a successor is elected.  If a vacancy occurs then an election for that office shall occur at the 
next regular meeting of the Policy Board and that successor shall serve the remainder of the 
existing term. 

(d) Meetings 
The TTCI Policy Board shall hold meetings in accordance with the by-laws of the Policy Board. 

 

Section 6.04 TTCI Executive Committee 

(a) TTCI Executive Committee Established 
The TTCI Executive Committee shall be established through representation of the officers of the 
TTCI Policy Board. 

(b) TTCI Executive Committee Membership 
Membership on the Executive Committee shall follow the procedure outlined in Section 6.03.(c). 

(c) Terms of TTCI Executive Committee Members 
TTCI Executive Committee terms shall follow the standards outlined in Section 6.03.(c). 

(d) Executive Committee Meetings 
TTCI Executive Committee Meetings shall be held and operate in accordance with the TTCI Policy 
Board By-laws. 

Section 6.05 TTCI Technical Committee 

(a) TTCI Technical Committee Established 
The TTCI Technical Committee is hereby established and represented by professional staff of 
participating eligible entities of the TTCI Policy Board with inclusion of representation of other 
entities which are important to the areas transportation planning processes. 

(b) TTCI Technical Committee Membership 
Membership on the TTCI Technical Committee shall occur through designation of a 
representative by each participating eligible entity of the TTCI Policy Board.  A representative 
shall also be included, but not limited to  from each of the following entities; Northwestern 
Michigan College, Traverse City Area Public Schools, Traverse Connect, Cherry Capital Airport 
Authority, Michigan Department of Transportation, Grand Traverse Tribe of Ottawa and 
Chippewa Indians.  TTCI Technical Committee members shall be designated through the process 
established in the TTCI Policy Board By-laws. 

122

.  A representative 
shall also be included, but not limited to  from each of the following entities; Northwestern
Michigan College, Traverse City Area Public Schools, Traverse Connect, Cherry Capital Airport 
Authority, Michigan Department of Transportation, Grand Traverse Tribe of Ottawa 

1
2

244

• -- @] 



Page: 122
Number: 1 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/13/2023 4:15:03 PM 
but not paying members?

Number: 2 Author: Supervisor Subject: Highlight Date: 12/13/2023 4:14:50 PM 

245

rn--------------------------



6 

(c) Terms of TTCI Technical Committee Members
TTCI Technical Committee terms shall be in accordance with the TTCI Policy Board By-laws.

(d) TTCI Technical Committee Meetings
TTCI Technical Committee Meetings shall be held and operate in accordance with the TTCI Policy
Board By-laws.

Section 6.06 Ad Hoc Committee 

(a) TTCI Ad Hoc Committee Establishment
Ad Hoc Committees, special committees, and subcommittees may be established as deemed
necessary by the TTCI Policy Board to further purposes in keeping with responsibilities and
objectives.

(b) TTCI Ad Hoc Committee Membership
TTCI Ad Hoc Committees membership shall be in accordance with the TTCI Policy Board By-laws.

(c) Terms of TTCI Ad Hoc Committee Members
TTCI Ad Hoc Committee terms shall be in accordance with the TTCI Policy Board By-laws.

(d) TTCI Ad Hoc Committee Meetings
TTCI Ad Hoc Committee Meetings shall be held and operate in accordance with the TTCI Policy
Board By-laws.

Section 6.07 Community Engagement 
TTCI shall meet requirements for citizen input for the planning area through placement of a 
public comment agenda item on each meeting agenda for the TTCI Policy Board and TTCI 
Technical Committee meetings.  Community Engagement events will also be scheduled a 
minimum of two (2) times per fiscal year.  Events may consist of input sessions held at 
community halls or centers, pop-up sessions held in public spaces or through other interactive 
methods which gain public feedback.  The actions outlined within this section shall be included 
in the Public Participation Plan (PPP) which will be updated as necessary through guidance of 
MDOT. 

Section 6.08 Meeting Notices, Agendas and Minutes 

(a) Meeting Notices
All TTCI Policy Board, TTCI Technical Committee and TTCI Ad Hoc Committee meetings shall be
appropriately noticed in meeting the requirements of section 6.02.

(b) Meeting Agendas
All TTCI Policy Board, TTCI Technical Committee and TTCI Ad Hoc Committee meetings shall have
an agenda provided to respective members no later than five (5) days prior to all regular
meetings.

123246



7 

(c) Meeting Minutes
Minutes shall be taken and prepared for each TTCI Policy Board meeting, with the Draft minutes
reviewed and voted upon for approval to a Final Copy of the Minutes at the next regular Board
Meeting.

Article VII. Staffing and Support 

Section 7.01 Staffing Arrangement 
The TTCI Policy Board shall contract with the Northwest Michigan Council of Governments (dba. 
Networks Northwest) to coordinate and conduct administration and staffing related to its 
purpose, responsibilities and objectives.  Personnel assigned to TTCI will adhere to a staffing 
plan outlined within each fiscal year’s Unified Work Program, which is approved by the TTCI 
Policy Board.   

Section 7.02 TTCI Board Autonomy 
TTCI shall be a stand-alone entity autonomous from the Northwest Michigan Council of 
Governments (dba. Networks Northwest) Board.     

Section 7.03 Supportive Services 
TTCI may enter into agreements with other public and private agencies, including consultants, 
for all types of surveys and studies relating to its purpose, responsibilities and objectives.  Such 
surveys and studies shall be identified and described in the annual Unified Work Program. 

Article VIII. Unified Work Program Plan & Budget 

Section 8.01 Unified Work Program (UWP) 
A UWP shall be prepared prior to each fiscal year.  The UWP shall meet all necessary State and 
Federal Planning requirements and focus areas.  The UWP shall include all work to be 
undertaken within the fiscal year, outline necessary staffing and support, include action items 
and deliverables and work within a fiscally constrained context of the Consolidated Planning 
Grant.  The UWP shall be reviewed and approved by the TTCI Policy Board prior to submittal to 
MDOT. 

Section 8.02 Budget 
A budget shall be prepared prior to each fiscal year.  The budget shall detail the Consolidated 
Planning Grant (CPG) funds, and local matching funds provided for the required eighteen point 
fifteen percent (18.15%) match.  The budget shall outline expenditures for staffing committed to 
the UWP action items.  The budget shall be included within the UWP and voted upon by the 
TTCI Policy Board for approval. 

124

Staffing Arrangement 

1

2

247

• ----



Page: 124
Number: 1 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/13/2023 4:16:56 PM 
The same staff the Pc was disappointed with?

Number: 2 Author: Supervisor Subject: Highlight Date: 12/13/2023 4:16:36 PM 

248

rn--------------------------



8 

Article IX. Bylaws 
TTCI Policy Board shall operate under an agreed upon set of by-laws.  By-laws shall uphold and 
not conflict with any provisions of this agreement.  The provisions of this agreement shall always 
supersede the bylaws in guidance of board operation, the processes of the organization and all 
matters contained within this agreement.   

Section 9.01 Adoption 
Bylaws shall be adopted by a two-thirds (2/3) vote of the TTCI Policy Board Membership. 

Section 9.02 Amendment 
Bylaws may be altered, amended or replaced at any regular or special meeting of the Board by 
at least two-thirds (2/3) vote for the purpose of bylaw amendment.  A copy of the proposed 
changes to the bylaws shall be filed with the Secretary at least ten (10) days prior to the meeting 
where such action is proposed to be taken and the secretary shall send a copy of the proposed 
change to each representative along with written notice of the time and place of such meeting.  
The Secretary shall also ensure that representatives received their notices at least five (5) days 
prior to such meeting. 

Article X. Amendments to this Agreement 

Section 10.01 Addition or Withdrawal of Eligible Entity 
This intergovernmental agreement shall be amended for addition of any eligible entity and for 
the withdrawal of an eligible entity at any point during a fiscal year.   This agreement shall not 
require approval of each respective participating entity for addition and removal of any eligible 
entity.  Attachment D shall be updated to reflect any changes with eligible entity participation 
levels. 

Section 10.02 Amendment to Update Attachment A (Census Urbanized 
Boundaries) and to Update Attachment B (Metropolitan Planning Area) 

This intergovernmental agreement shall be amended following each decennial census upon the 
release of the updated Urbanized Area boundaries and whenever an adjustment is made to the 
Metropolitan Planning Area Boundary.  The amendment shall only include updates to 
attachments A and B.   This amendment shall require only a simple majority vote of the TTCI 
Policy Board. 

Section 10.03 All Other Amendments 
All other amendments to this agreement shall require approval of the TTCI Policy Board and the 
governing body of each participating entity.  The process for amendments shall be: 

1. Desired amendments shall be brought forth and placed on a TTCI Policy Board
Agenda for discussion and voting.

125249



9 

2. A simple majority vote of the TTCI Policy Board shall move to amend a draft of
the agreement.

3. The amended draft agreement will be taken to each respective participating
eligible entity’s governing board for approval.

4. Once approval from each respective participating eligible entity’s governing
board is received, the amended draft agreement will be voted upon by the TTCI
Policy Board for adoption of the amendment.

5. A two-thirds (2/3) vote of the TTCI Policy Board shall be necessary for final
approval of the amended agreement.

Article XI. Addition of Eligible Entities 
Eligible entities as outlined in Section 5.02 with ability to comply with the conditions of Section 
5.03 may be added to TTCI during any part of the fiscal year.  The process for addition of an 
eligible entity is as follows: 

1. The eligible entity shall petition in writing, directed to the TTCI Policy Board, a formal
request to be included as an entity of TTCI.

2. TTCI Staff shall review the request and determine if the entity meets the eligibility
requirements.

3. The request shall then be placed on an upcoming regular meeting Agenda of the Board
for the action to be considered, through the approval of an amendment to this
agreement as outlined in Section 10.01.

4. The Amendment shall place the name of the eligible entity in Attachment D as outlined
in Section 6.03.(a)

5. Upon TTCI Board approval of the amendment, the eligible entity to be added to TTCI
must obtain approval of this agreement from their respective governing board.

6. Upon approval of the agreement by the respective governing board, the entity shall pay
the required yearly dues as outlined in Section 5.03 (b) and Attachment C for the current
fiscal year in which they will be added.

7. The eligible entity shall be considered a member of TTCI upon paying of the required
due.

8. The bylaws shall be updated to include the eligible entity as a member of TTCI in
accordance with Section 9.02 of this agreement.

Article XII. Withdrawal of Eligible Entities 
An eligible entity may withdrawal from TTCI at any time during the fiscal year.  An eligible entity, 
which withdrawals from TTCI shall not be reimbursed for any portion of their dues for any past 
and current fiscal year.  The process for withdrawal of an eligible entity is as follows: 

126250



10 

1. The eligible entity shall petition in writing, directed to the TTCI Policy Board, a formal
request to withdrawal from TTCI.

2. The request for withdrawal shall be placed on the next upcoming regular meeting
Agenda of the TTCI Policy Board, with action requested.

3. The TTCI Policy Board shall take action on the request and amend the agreement as
outlined in Section 10.01.

4. The amendment shall include removal of the entity name from Attachment D under
Section 6.03.(a).

5. The eligible entity shall be considered withdrawn from TTCI once the amendment has
been approved.

6. The bylaws shall be updated in accordance with Section 9.02.

Article XIII. Removal of Entity 
An entity which no longer meets the conditions of this agreement, and is considered an Inactive 
Member under Article XIV of this agreement, may be removed from TTCI by a simple majority 
vote of the TTCI Policy Board. 

Article XIV. Inactive Membership Status 
Any entity which is a member of TTCI and has not paid its annual dues in accordance with 
Section 5.03.(b) or no longer meets the eligibility requirements of 5.02 shall be considered an 
“Inactive Member”, and shall no longer have authority to preside at TTCI Policy or any 
respective Committee meetings.  The entity’s “Inactive Member” status shall be referred to the 
Executive Committee for appropriate action.  Appropriate action may include Removal of the 
Entity under Article XIII or a request to the entity to meet the condition of Sections 5.02 and 
5.03. 

Article XV. Adoption 
Upon original adoption of this Intergovernmental Agreement by the legislative body of each 
participating eligible entity as outlined in Section 5.02, such adoption shall be evidenced by 

.

127251



Attachment A:  U.S. Census Defined TC-Garfield Urbanized Area (2020) 

128252

1' 

I 
I 
I 

I 

I 

I 
I 

I 
I 
I 

\ 
\ , 
\ 

' \ 
I 

I 
I I 

I I 
/ l 

I 
I 

- - - - _______ L-r----- - - - JO I 

Legend 

: := : Civil Divisions 

Water 

Streams 

Urbanized Area 

Counties 

f 

I 

\ 

\ 
\ 

I 

.. , 

\ 

·~ ' 

I 

) 

I 
I 

I 
I 

I 

I 
( 

---~ 

-,~-= .. 

• 

I 

( 

I' 
l 
I 

I 
I 

I 
/ 

I •• :' :. - I 
f-, - ,;, 

r, 
L J 

I 

I 

+- --------

I 

/ 
/ 

I ., 

I 

( 

( 

/ 

I 

I 

I 

/ - - ..... 
/ I \ 

I 

\ / I 
'- I I 

( 

I 

I 
( .. 

l 
( 

\ 

I 

I 

,, 

/ ,, 

I 

I 

I 

I 
I 

,/ 
I 

I 
I 

I 
I 

I 

I 
\ 

I 
I 

I 

I 

I 

) 

I 

I 
.) 

I .,, 
,, 

I' 

I 

/ ., 
I' 

L., __ _____ _ 

~------------ -
1 
I 
I 

I 
I 

I 

I 
I 
I 
I 

f 

~ -



Attachment B:  Metropolitan Planning Area (2023) 

129

1

2

253

, I 
/ 

I / I 
.J 

I ,I 

I ) 

I 
I•, 

/ 

/ 

/ 

< - , .. 
\ 

/ 
/ ,, 

I 

~-------+--------- • 
✓ I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

I 
I 
I 
\ 
I 

\ 
I 

I 

Bingham , 

Township 1 

> 
/ 

I / I 

- - - + - - - - - - - - '-r--- - - -·I 

Legend 

i:__-, MPA 

Urbanized Area 

Water 

) 

I 
I 

I 

1 Elmwood \ 
1 Township 
I 

I 

I 

, .,,. 
'., > 

., 
f 

/ 

I 

\ 

I 
( 

,, --. I 
\ 

J 

I 

I 
I 
I 

I 
( . 

Pernnsula 1 

/Township 1
1 

( - ' 
( { I ( 

'- I I 

( 

,, 
r 

( 

I 

J 
/ 

I 

(' 

I 
( 

) 

\ 

/ 

/ ,, 

I 
I 

/ 

/ 

I 

r 
I 

I 

/ 

I 

f 

f - , 

I 
I 
I 
I 

I 
I 
I 
\ 

I 
I 

~- .... ---, I 
/ 

,, -
f -I I 

I \ I 
I I 

\ - - \ I 
} 

\ / 

'( 

I 
r -.J Civil Divisions 

Counties 
r Acme 

I 

\ ,I-::•./ f ~- /' - - + - - - - - - - - ..L - -r-------'-;;""' f - . -, { 

I I ·, '"'<-Jo-City ✓' 
I ··, ofTraverse / 

Township : ~ -

,;'[Jhite wa_ter 

Long Lake 
Township 

I • ..._ - - - ... 1 .._ ~, - -:~City ~--, .. - - - - - - ..,. , 
1 Township 

I 

Garfield 
Township 

• • .. - j 

:.:. ---.- ... 
I 

I 
I 

I 
I I --+-

' 
---------+----------~ 

East Bay 
Township 

I 

I 

I 

I 
I 
I 
f 
I 
I 

Green Lake 
Township 

- +- - -

Blair 
Township 

I 
I 

I 
~----------
1 
I 

I I 
-+----------7 

I 
I 
I 
I 

I 

I 

I 
I 
I 

----------+--

~------ ----+---
1 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

' 



Page: 129
Number: 1 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/13/2023 4:21:48 PM 
Hum?

Number: 2 Author: Supervisor Subject: Highlight Date: 12/13/2023 4:21:39 PM 

254

" 



Attachment C:  Membership Due Calculations 

Dues shall be set at an equal proportion of the required 18.15% match to be met by each participating 
eligible entity.  The dues shall be calculated for the consolidated planning grant amount provided to TTCI 
by the Michigan Department of Transportation for each fiscal year.  The Consolidated Planning Grant 
match required for Fiscal Year 2024 shall be $50,67 .9 .

Calculation:

Fourteen (1 ) eligible entities sign onto the agreement:

$50,67 .9  / 1  = $

Each of the 1  participating eligible entities would match in the amount of $

130

1

2

3

4

5

255



Page: 130
Number: 1 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/13/2023 4:25:43 PM 
So if a new member come on board to the other members get a refund?

Number: 2 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/13/2023 4:33:15 PM 
Not in the budget

Number: 3 Author: robcarson Subject: Line Date: 9/14/2023 1:39:54 PM -04'00'

Number: 4 Author: robcarson Subject: Line Date: 9/14/2023 1:40:08 PM -04'00'

Number: 5 Author: robcarson Subject: Line Date: 9/14/2023 1:40:23 PM -04'00'

256

/ _____________________________ _ 

/ _____________________________ _ 

/ _____________________________ _ 



Attachment D:  TTCI Eligible Entity Membership 

131257



1

TRAVERSE TRANSPORTATION COORDINATING 
INITIATIVE (TTCI) 

BYLAWS 

ARTICLE I. NAME OF ORGANIZATION 

The name of the organization shall be the Traverse Transportation Coordinating Imitative,  an 
Intermunicipality Committee established under Act 200 of 1957 of the Public Acts of Michigan, 
and shall be hereinafter referred to as the TTCI. 

ARTICLE II PURPOSE AND RESPONSIBILITY 

Section 1. Purpose. TTCI is established to provide coordinated leadership and direction for the 
development and conduct of a continuing, cooperative, and comprehensive transportation 
planning process in the Traverse City-Garfield Urbanized Area. As a program of Networks 
Northwest, TTCI shall constitute the forum for cooperative transportation decision-making by 
principal elected officials of general purpose local governments and representatives of 
transportation based agencies to develop US Census Designated Traverse City- Garfield 
Urbanized Area multi-modal transportation plans and programs. 

Section 2. Responsibility. TTCI shall develop transportation plans and programs for the Greater 
Traverse Area, in coordination with local, county, regional, and state plans and programs. The 
Traverse City-Garfield Urbanized Area is defined by the US Census Bureau.  The Metropolitan 
Planning Area (MPA) of TTCI shall encompass the local civil divisions of the City of Traverse 
City, the Charter Townships of Garfield, Elmwood, East Bay, Long Lake and the General Law 
Townships of Acme, Peninsula, Blair, Bingham, Green Lake and Whitewater. 

Section 3. Objectives. 
a) Maintain a transportation planning process and improvement plan for the

Metropolitan Planning Area which meets Federal and State requirements and
ensures the area's eligibility for capital and operating funds.

b) Pursue, develop and maintain system and subsystem plans and programs for the
various modes of transportation which use the area's major streets, roads and
highways.

c) Integrate and coordinate transportation plans and programs with existing and
future plans and programs within the region, as defined by the State of
Michigan, and the Michigan Department of Transportation.

d) Recommend transportation programs and projects which are consistent with
the general transportation goals of the community and its transportation based
agencies,

e) Maintain continuously updated pertinent information about the
area's transportation systems.

f) Assist local and state implementation agencies in developing
transportation projects.  Collaborate with local, regional, state, and federal

132

in the Traverse City-Garfield Urbanized Area. 
rehe

As a

area's major streets, roads and
highways.

he

the region, as defined 
ms w

transportation projects.  Co
men

1
2

3
4

5

6

7

8

258

• ==============:) gJ 

• 
• ___ [Qp 

• ----



Page: 132
Number: 1 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/13/2023 4:28:24 PM 
Again why would Whitewater Township pay to have studies done to assist Traverse city and Garfield Township 
 
This is a ponzi scheme.

Number: 2 Author: Supervisor Subject: Highlight Date: 12/13/2023 4:27:08 PM 

Number: 3 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/13/2023 4:32:22 PM 
Limited applicability to Whitewater

Number: 4 Author: Supervisor Subject: Highlight Date: 12/13/2023 4:31:50 PM 

Number: 5 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/13/2023 4:32:52 PM 
MDOT Already does this.

Number: 6 Author: Supervisor Subject: Highlight Date: 12/13/2023 4:32:37 PM 

Number: 7 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/13/2023 4:34:51 PM 
Like 100M dollar bridges?

Number: 8 Author: Supervisor Subject: Highlight Date: 12/13/2023 4:34:34 PM 

259

00-------------------------------

• --------------------------------

00--------------------------------

00-------------------------------

• -------------------------------

rn--------------------------------



2

transportation planning agencies in developing transportation plans and 
projects. 

g) Operate the urbanized area transportation planning program in a responsible
and efficient manner.

h) Provide for and encourage public involvement in TTCI's transportation planning
activities.

i) Solicit and accept appropriate gifts and grants which will assist in the
accomplishment of TTCI objectives.

ARTICLE III. MEMBERSHIP 

Section 1. General. Voting membership shall consist of the municipalities and entities which are 
listed in Section 4 and which execute the “Traverse Transportation Coordinating Initiative 
(TTCI) Intergovernmental Agreement for Participants of Metropolitan Planning Organization”
hereafter referred to as “THE AGREEMENT”. Each member shall be entitled to representation 
on the TTCI Policy Board as hereinafter provided. With administrative and staffing assistance 
from Networks Northwest, all affairs of TTCI shall be managed by the Board. Voting members 
whose sponsoring agency becomes delinquent in any cost assessments, matching funds or other 
financial obligations to TTCI, shall be subject to review by the TTCI Policy Board. 

Section 2. New Members. New members may be added to the Board according to the 
procedures outlined in THE AGREEMENT Article XI. 

Section 3. Withdrawal of Membership. Any member may withdrawal its membership according 
to the procedures outlined in THE AGREEMENT Article XII. 

Section 4. Voting Members. Voting members shall consist of one member from each of the 
following: 

City of Traverse City 
Charter Township of Garfield (G.T. County) 
Charter Township of Elmwood (Leelanau Co.) 
Charter Township of East Bay (G.T. County) 
Acme Township (G.T. County) 
Bingham Township (Leelanau County) 
Blair Township (G.T. County) 
Peninsula Township (G.T. County) 
Green Lake Township (G.T. County) 
Charter Township of Long Lake (G.T. County) 
Grand Traverse County Board of Commissioners 
Leelanau County Board of Commissioners 
Leelanau County Road Commission 
Grand Traverse County Road Commission 
Michigan Department of Transportation 
Bay Area Transportation Authority

133

Operate the urbanized area transportation planning program in a responsible
and efficient manner.

1
2

260

• -----------



Page: 133
Number: 1 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/13/2023 4:35:53 PM 
Why is Whitewater paying for operation of a Traverse City and Garfield Township plan. 

Number: 2 Author: Supervisor Subject: Highlight Date: 12/13/2023 4:35:06 PM 

261

00-----------------------------------



3

Section 5. Designation of Representatives and Alternates. 
Membership on the TTCI Policy Board shall consist of one (1) individual from each participating eligible 
entity, whom is designated by the respective entities governing body to serve as their representative.  
Representatives may be members of the governing board, executive staff or their designee.  Eligible entities 
shall appoint one (1) primary member to the TTCI Policy Board and shall appoint a second alternate 
member to attend in the primary member’s absence.  Designations shall be made by each participating 
eligible entity at their first meeting of the calendar year and as otherwise outlined for replacement.  
Designations shall be made in writing and by name provide a primary and alternative representative.  
Designations shall occur for each participating entity that have executed approval of this agreement, and 
shall include a representative from the Michigan Department of Transportation and the Federal Highway 
Administration as necessary.  See Section 4 of these bylaws for Voting Members. 

ARTICLE IV. OFFICERS 

Section 1. General. The TTCI Executive Committee shall consist of the Chairperson, a Vice- 
Chairperson, a Secretary, and a Treasurer. Policy Board members are eligible to be elected to 
the Executive Board once they have served on the Policy Board for a minimum of one year. The 
four-member Executive Board shall have at least one elected City, Village, County or Township 
official plus one representative of a Transportation Agency. 

Section 2. Duties of the Chairperson. The Chairperson shall set the Policy Board meeting agenda, 
preside at all meetings, appoint such committees as shall be deemed necessary, appoint standing 
committees with the approval of the TTCI Policy Board, and perform such other duties as may be 
delegated by the TTCI. The Chairperson shall have the full right to propose motions and vote on 
all motions and resolutions. The Chairperson shall be an ex-officio member on all committees. 

Section 3. Duties of the Vice-Chairperson. The Vice-Chairperson shall preside at meetings in 
the absence of the Chairperson and perform such other duties as may be delegated by the 
Chairperson or the Board. 

Section 4. Duties of the Secretary. The Secretary shall keep a record of all meetings of the 
TTCI; keep a record of all plans, programs, and other material brought before the Committee; 
notify the TTCI of all meetings; and provide agenda for all meetings. 

Section 5. Duties of the Treasurer. The Treasurer shall keep a record of all financial transactions 
of the TTCI, provide periodic financial reports to the TTCI, and generally perform the traditional 
duties of this office. 

Section 6. Delegation of Duties. The duties of the Secretary and/or Treasurer may be delegated 
to the TTCI Professional Staff assigned from Networks Northwest, or another appropriate 
individual. The secretarial and financial duties may be delegated separately or together and may 
be delegated to different individuals. 

Section 7. Nomination of Officers. The Chairperson shall at the November meeting (or as soon 

134

Section 5. Designation 

. 

1

2

3

262

• ---



Page: 134
Number: 1 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/13/2023 4:37:33 PM 
Who and how much?

Number: 2 Author: Supervisor Subject: Highlight Date: 12/13/2023 4:37:23 PM 

Number: 3 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/13/2023 4:39:22 PM 
A lot of pay going out for no benefit

263

rn--------------------------



4

as possible thereafter) appoint a Nominating Committee to present nominations for the offices 
of Chairperson, Vice-Chairperson, Secretary and Treasurer at the December meeting (or as 
soon as possible thereafter). Nominations for all officers may be presented from the floor with 
the consent of the nominee. 

Section 8. Election of Officers. Election of officers of the TTCI shall be at the first meeting of 
each calendar year or as soon as possible thereafter. 

Section 9. Terms of Office. The terms of office shall be for one calendar year or until a 
successor is elected. 

Section 10. Vacancy of Office. If a vacancy occurs in any office during the year, the TTCI 
Board of Directors may fill the vacancy at any regular meeting by a simple majority vote of 
those representatives present. Appointments made to fill vacancies shall fill the remaining 
term of the vacancy. 

ARTICLE V. STAFFING 

Section 1. Personnel. The Board contracts with Networks Northwest to coordinate and 
conduct administration and staffing relating to its purpose, responsibilities and objectives. 
Personnel assigned to TTCI will adhere to a staffing plan approved by the Policy Board. 

Section 2. Other Agencies. The Board may enter into agreements with other public and private 
agencies, including consultants, for all types of surveys and studies relating to its purpose, 
responsibilities and objectives. Such surveys and studies shall be identified and described in the
annual Unified Work Program. 

ARTICLE VI. SUBCOMMITTEES/ADVISORY COMMITTEES/TASK FORCES 

Section 1. Establishing Subcommittees. Advisory Committees, and Task Forces. The Board 
may establish such subcommittees, advisory committees and/or task forces as are deemed 
necessary to further its purpose in keeping with its responsibilities and objectives. 

Section 2. Standing Subcommittees, Advisory Committees and Technical Advisory Committee 
Standing subcommittees or advisory committees shall be established by the approval of the 
Board. Standing committees and advisory committees may develop their own Bylaws, subject to 
the approval of the Board, and not in conflict with THE AGREEMENT.

Section 3. Other Subcommittees and Special Topic Groups. Other subcommittees and/or special 
topic groups may be established to address specific functional areas or individual issues as 
deemed appropriate. 

Section 4. Executive Committee. The Executive Committee is established in THE 
AGREEMENT as a standing subcommittee. The Executive Committee is responsible for 

135264



5

reviewing various items relating to TTCI's management and administration. The membership of 
the Executive Board is described in Article IV, Section 1. 

Section 5. Technical Committee. The Technical Committee shall advise the Governing Board 
on matters requiring technical planning expertise. The Technical Committee’s makeup shall 
consist of only one (1) representative from each member agency of TTCI. TTCI requests that 
each member agency designate its Technical Committee representation with preference to 
engineers, planners, and zoning administrators (in order of preference). Governing Board 
members may not serve on the Technical Committee as means to better delineate roles and 
diversify participation in TTCI. Technical Committee meetings are open to the public; however, 
all deliberations and actions for the purposes of advising the Policy Board are done by Technical 
Committee membership only. 

ARTICLE VII. MEETINGS AND AGENDAS 

Section 1. Regular Meetings. The schedule of regular meetings of the TTCI shall be established 
at the first meeting of the calendar year. These meetings shall take place at a time and location 
established by the Board. 

Section 2. Special Meetings. Special meetings may be called by the Chairperson, by a majority 
vote of the Board, or upon written request to the Chairperson by three (3) or more Board 
members. 

Section 3. Changes in Meetings. In the event that a regular meeting falls on a holiday, a 
substitute meeting shall be set by the Board. A cancellation or change in the date of a scheduled 
meeting shall be communicated to the representatives as promptly as possible. 

Section 4. Open Meetings. All Board meetings shall be open to the public and shall be held in 
conformance with Act 267 of the Public Acts of Michigan of 1976, as amended, known as the 
"Open Meetings Act.”

Section 5. Notices of Meetings. Notices of all regular meetings, including agenda, shall be 
provided to the Board members and posted to the general public no later than five (5) days prior 
to the meeting. 

Section 6. Agendas. An agenda shall be provided to Board members no later than five (5) days 
prior to all regular meetings. Where practicable, an agenda will also be mailed for special 
meetings. The Chairperson has the responsibility of determining the agenda. 

ARTICLE VIII. RULES 

Section 1. General. Except where specific rules and procedures are set forth herein, Robert's Rules 
of Order shall govern all meetings. 

136265



6

Section 2. Quorum. A quorum shall be required before any formal action can be taken on agenda 
items. The presence of a simple majority of the current active voting members (members as 
defined in Article III, Section 4) OR the presence of three-fifths (3/5) of transportation 
implementing agencies (Bay Area Transportation Authority, City of Traverse City, Grand 
Traverse County Road Commission, Leelanau County Road Commission, Michigan Department 
of Transportation) and two (2) municipalities shall constitute a quorum for the purpose of 
conducting business. Active voting members are those duly appointed representatives whose 
membership dues were paid in the prior budget year. 

Section 3. Actions by the Board. Except where otherwise specifically stated within these 
bylaws or within THE AGREEMENT, formal adoption of a motion or resolution or other 
action shall be with the assent of a simple majority of the assigned votes of those 
representatives at the meeting, with at least a quorum present. 

ARTICLE IX. UNIFIED WORK PLAN, 
FUNDS AND BUDGET 

Section 1.  Unified Work Plan.  TTCI shall undertake the development of an annual Unified 
Work Plan (UWP) in accordance with the requirements of State and Federal Agencies.  The 
TTCI Policy Board shall direct staff to develop the UWP, present the draft plan to the Policy 
Board, and Policy Board Members shall review, provide comments and adopt the UWP at their 
discretion. 
Section 1. Budget and Cost Allocation Formula. The Board shall annually adopt a budget as a 
part of the Unified Work Plan (UWP). The budget shall be prepared and approved in accordance 
with Michigan Department of Transportation guidelines and timelines.  No funds shall be 
expended without an approved budget. 
Section 3. Fiscal Year. The fiscal year shall start October 1 and end September 30. 

Section 2. Receipt of Funds. All funds received from local contributions or other sources shall 
be deposited in a specially designated account by the designated fiscal agent, Networks 
Northwest.  A record will be maintained of all funds received by the TTCI, including interest 
payments. 

Section 3. Expenditure or Obligation of Funds. The TTCI Board, assigned Networks Northwest 
staff, may cause the expenditure or obligation of funds, if such expenditure or obligation is 
within the budget approved by the Board and appears to be reimbursable.   Examples of such 
approved expenditures or obligations include salary and fringe benefit costs, indirect costs of 
operation associated with the conduct of doing business, and direct costs identified in the budget. 
The expenditure or obligation of funds which are either not budgeted, not reimbursable or may 
not be reimbursable requires the approval by a simple majority vote of the Board.  A continuous 
record of all funds expended or obligated by the TTCI Board, assigned Networks Northwest 
staff, shall be maintained. 

Section 4. Audit. A competent and independent individual or firm on an annual basis shall audit 

137266



7

the records of receipts, expenditures and obligations in conjunction with the overall Networks 
Northwest audit, and the results of the audit shall be provided to the TTCI Board. 

Section 5. Financial Reports. The Treasurer, assigned Networks Northwest staff, shall provide 
financial reports to the Board at each regularly scheduled Board meeting, and shall prepare an 
annual report which can be included in the final Audit Report. 

Section 6. Code of Conduct. The Board shall maintain a written Code of Conduct which shall 
govern the participation of its members, officers, agents and employees engaged in the award 
and administration of all contracts.

138267



8

ARTICLE X. AMENDMENTS 

Section 1. Procedure of Amendment. These Bylaws may be altered, amended or replaced at any 
regular or special meeting of the Board by at least two-thirds vote of the representatives of the 
voting members, each having one (1) vote for the purpose of Bylaw amendment. A copy of the 
proposed changes shall be filed with the Secretary at least ten (10) days prior to the meeting 
where such action is proposed to be taken, and the secretary shall send a copy of the proposed 
change to each representative along with written notice of the time and place of such meeting. 
The Secretary shall also ensure that representatives receive their notices at least five (5) days 
prior to such meeting. 

Section 2. Continuation and/or Conflict. The Bylaws will remain in full force and effect until 
such time as amendments are made and approved or until it may be determined the Bylaws are 
found to be in conflict with the laws or regulations of the State of Michigan or the United States 
of America. 

Approved by the TC-TALUS Board of Directors on August 30, 1990 
Amended by the TC-TALUS Board of Directors on January 28, 1993 
Amended by the TC-TALUS Board of Directors on September 23, 1993 
Amended by the TC-TALUS Board of Directors on January 27, 1994 
Amended by the TC-TALUS Board of Directors on September 17, 1998 
Amended by the TC-TALUS Board of Directors on April 12, 2006 
Amended by the TC-TALUS Board of Directors on May 15, 2007 
Amended by the TC-TALUS Board of Directors on January 27, 2009 
Amended by the TC-TALUS Board of Directors on June 16, 2009 
Amended by the TC-TALUS Board of Directors on October 16, 2012 
Amended by the TC-TALUS Board of Directors on August 18, 2015 
Amended by the TTCI (formerly named TC-TALUS) Board of Directors on May 17, 2016 
Amended by the TTCI Board of Directors on September 18, 2018 
Amended by the TTCI Policy Board of Directors on XX XX XXXX 

139

Approved by the TC-TALUS Board 

1

2

268

• =========:] gJ 



Page: 139
Number: 1 Author: Supervisor Subject: Sticky Note Date: 12/13/2023 4:43:38 PM 
I believe our participation in TC_TALUS was short lived and for good reason.

Number: 2 Author: Supervisor Subject: Highlight Date: 12/13/2023 4:43:05 PM 

269

rn--------------------------




